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THE GUN VIOLENCE PREVENTION ACT OF
1994: PUBLIC HEALTH AND CHILD SAFETY

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 1994

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE CONSTITUTION,

. COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,

Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:37 a.m. in room
SD-226, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Paul Simon and
Hon. Howard Metzenbaum presiding.

Also present: Senators Brown and Hatch.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. XiOWARD M. METZENBAUM, A
U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF OHIO

Senator METZENBAUM. This morning, we are meeting for the first
of several hearings on the Gun Violence Prevention Act of 1994,
and I am very pleased to have the privilege and opportunity of
sharing this hearing with my very good friend and colleague, Sen-
ator Paul Simon.

As we proceed forward, I would like to announce that there will
be an additional witness this morning, Suzanna Gratia, whose
name was not on the witness list. She will appear at the end of the
hearing.

We are meeting for the first of several hearings on the Gun Vio-
lence Prevention Act of 1994, which is comprehensive legislation in-
tended to attack the epidemic of gun violence in America. It is time
that we do something in this area. It is an absurdity what is occur-
ring in this Nation. We passed the Brady bill; it was significant
legislation, but now we have got to take the second step.

We are fast becoming a Nation afraid of its own freedom, afraid
e to come and go because of the risk of gettin% caught in a crossfire

N . between drug pushers or youth gangs, or being the victim of a

) drive-by shooting; afraid to run a shop or ride public transpor-
tation; afraid to stroll our neighborhoods at night; afraid to let our
. children play outside or go to school. We are all victims of gun vio-
N - lence. I think most Americans realize that and demand a stronger
response from their elected representatives.

You do a TV interview and the person who is doing the interview
at the conclusion of the interview says, I am with you, I think you
are right on target. The American people want us to do something
about this terrible tragedy. The Gun Violence Prevention Act,
which is known as Brady 2, is a bill I introduced on March 1 of
this year with Senators Kennedy, Bradley, Lautenberg, Boxer, Pell,
and Chafee. It is designed to build upon the foundation laid by the
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Brady bill, now the Brady law, which is the cornerstone of effective
firearm regulation. It will prevent felons from buying guns from
dealers and thereby save many lives.

The Brady law is a great start, but it is obvious that we need
to do more in order to attack the appalling and pervasive epidemic
of gun violence in this country. That is why the Gun Violence Pre-
vention Act was introduced. It is intended to begin the debate on
the next generation of protections from gun violence, a comprehen-
sive approach giving law enforcement more tools to keep guns out
of the hands of criminals.

This legislation includes six discreet initiatives. First, the bill
contains strong measures against handgun violence. From 1987 to
1992, the rate of murders committed with handguns increased 52
percent, while the murder rate committed with all other weapons
actually declined. Every 50 seconds, someone is raped, robbed, or
assaulted with a handgun in America, and handgun homicides
have now reached 13,000 a year.

The best way to keep handguns out of the wrong hands is
through licensing. Licensing is a barrier to gun crime. It allows
States to screen prospective handgun purchasers by a thorough
background check to make sure that they are not criminals, mental
defectives, or other prohibited purchasers, and to ensure that they
know how to use and store guns safely..

Accordingly, the Gun Violence Prevention Act would require indi-
viduals to have a valid State handgun license, a simple identifica-
tion card with a photograph, similar to a driver’s license, and pass
a handgun safety course before they can purchase a handgun.

I want to make it unequivocally clear, we are not talking about
guns that are used by hunters and for marksmanship purposes
other than the area of handguns. We are only talking about hand-
guns.

Licensing was initially proposed by Senator Kennedy in a bill he
introduced in 1971, and it is long overdue. In this country, we re-
quire a license and registration in order to operate a car. We
should require at least as much to own a handgun as to drive a
car. In addition, the bill would stop gun runners by limiting hand-
gun purchases to one per month.

Second, in addition to licensing of handgun purchases, this legis-
lation does more to keep all firearms out of the wrong hands. The
bill would prohibit persons convicted of violent misdemeanors, such
as spousal or child abuse, from possessing any firearm. That is a
broad-based term. People prone to violence should not have guns.
In addition, the bill includes measures designed to keep guns out
of the hands of juveniles. Senator Kohl has heen the leader of that
effort in the Senate and his Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice has
looked carefully into the issue.

Third, the bill aims to ensure that those who are granted Federal
licenses to deal guns are legitimately dealers who are not selling
to drug traffickers and gun runners. Senator Simon has led the ef.
fort in the Senate to strengthen the regulation and screening of
federally licensed gun dealers and his work 1s reflected in this bill.

Fourth, although measures directed at the primary market in
firearms, such as gun dealer regulation and the Brady law are im-
portant, we must also get at the secondary market in guns, those
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who are not buying their guns from dealers, if we are to make seri-
ous progress in curbing gun violence.

The Gun Violence Prevention Act includes several protections
aimed at the secondary market. Every handgun buyer in the sec-
ondary market would be required to have a license and every seller
would be required to register the transfer with the State police.
Registration of handgun fransfers is absolutely essential for speedy
and reliable tracing of guns used in crime.

Fifth, this legislation would take some necessary sters to im-
prove gun. safety. As I mentioned, licensing requires passage of a
gun safety course. In addition, the bill would require manufactur-
ers to add certain safety devices to guns to cut down on accidental
shootings, especially by young children. Also, the bill would require
adults to store guns safety away from juveniles.

Further, this bill would ban certain weapons that pose a special
danger to society and that have absolutely no legitimate hunting
or sporting purpose, such as semiautomatic assault weapons, Sat-
urday night specials, explosive ammunition, and large-capacity am-
munition magazines.

Let us be clear on the goals of this legislation, Contrary to the
NRA'’s predictable, worn-out claims that every bill with the word
“gun” in it is really a conspiracy to ban all guns, this legislation
would not take a single gun away from anyocne. It would not ban
any hunting or sporting gun. It would not ban handguns. It would
not put legitimate gun dealers out of business. It would not make
gunowners register all the guns they own. All this legislation does
Ts take some absolutely critical, prospective-only measures to keep
guns out of the wrong hands and reduce gun violence.

I believe that this legislation is a necessity. I believe that the
American people want us in Congress to put an end to the violence
that is occurring on the streets of America, and we are going to
make every effort to pass this bill during this session.

Senator Simon?

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. PAUL SIMON, A U.S. SENATOR
FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Senator SiMON. Thank you, Senator Metzenbaum. I thank you
for your leadership. I am pleased to cochair this hearing on some-
thing that is really important in our Nation.

There are many causes of violence in our society. Poverty is one
of the causes, and it has become too easy for policymakers to ignore
poverty. You show me an area with high poverty and I will show
you an area with high crime. What we are doing in our schools is
part of it. Of those who are in prison today, 82 percent are drop-
outs. If you want to have a real crime program, don’t just build
more prisons, do something about educational opportunity for dis-
advantaged Americans.

It is tied in with jobs. The majority of those in prison today were
unemployed when they were arrested. Again, any rrea of high un-
employment is going to be an area of high crime. What we see on
TV too often has been a cause of crime. We have glamorized vio-
lence, and 1 uppreciate Senator Metzenbaum'’s help in working on
that particular problem.
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But we stould not fool ourselves. The cause of violence is a mo-
saic with many pieces, but one of the pieces is the proliferation of
weapons in our society. When you compare Seattle, WA, and Van-
couver, BC, very similar in ethnic composition, very similar in the
rate of crime, with one exception, and that is the rate of murder
because of guns. Canada has much stricter rules in terms of weap-
ons, and their rules differ from ours in three aspects that are cov-
ered by Senator Metzenbaum’s legislation.

First, who can get a gun. There is a 28-day waiting period in
Canada: Secord, the kind of weapons that are tolerated. 1 live in
hunting territory in deep southern Illinois. We have 12 acres right
next to the Shawnee National Forest. On those rare days when I
get home to scuthern Illinois, I literally see more deer than people.
I am around Lunters all the time. I have never seen a hunter with
an Uzi or an AK-47. We don’t need those weapons in our society.

Third, Canzida is much stricter on who becomes a dealer. Three-
fourths of the dealers in our country aren’t the people we think of
as gun dealers who sell in stores. Three-fourths of the gun dealers
sell out of the trunks of their cars or out of their kitchen and keep
minimal, if any, kind of records. In the city of Chicago alone, 62
crimes were related to weapons sold by one dealer in Hammond,
IN. We have to be more careful about who becomes a gun dealer.

I want to join my colleague in paying tribute to Senator Kohl for
his work on juveniles and weapons, and Senator Feinstein on this
committee, also, on her work on trying to outlaw certain weapons.
We have moved to the point where young Americans are more like-
ly to be killed by guns than automobile accidents. That is a fright-
ening kind of a statistic.

We read about the violence in Northern Ireland and we are ap-
palled by the violence there, as we should be, but a child in the
United States is 15 times more likely to be killed by a gun than
a child in Northern Ireland. We can do better in our country, and
that is what this hearing is all about.

Let me call now on my colleague, Senator Brown, who shares the
concern, if not all the views, of Senator Metzenbaum and myself.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. HANK BROWN, A U.S. SENATOR
FROM THE STATE OF COLORADO

Senator BROWN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate your
calling this hearing and your very thoughtful consideration of this
subject. It is not often that I appear at a hearing where both you
and Senator Metzenbaum are to my right. [Laughter.]

Senator METZENBAUM. It is purely a matter of perspective.

Senator BROWN. It must be that [ have moved so far left.

Violent crime strikes America every 22 seconds. We have a mur-
der every 22 minutes. That is an incredible heritage that I don’t
think any of us are proud of. There is a rape every 5 minutes.
There is no question we have a problem that is beyond the dimen-
sions that anyone has thought about America would ever find.

The Department of Justice estimates that from 1973 to 1991,
36.3 million people were injured as a result of violent crime. If you
think of that in some military context, that simply dwarfs what has
ever happened in our wars. Of the roughly 2 million people a year
that were injured as a result of violent crime, 51 percent required
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some level of medical treatment and 23 percent went to emergency
rooms. It is not just the cost thet we are concerned about or just
the human misery, but the aecline of our society, as a result.

I believe, as Senator Simon does, that education can play and
does play a big part of it. I personally believe the fact that we send
our children to school far fewer days a year than our competitors
either in Europe or in the Far East is a factor. Young, active, vigor-
ous minds and bodies require activity, and if they are not turned
to productive endeavors they will indeed find ones that are not.

While talking to a young man in a special program in Adams
County a month or so ago, I found an interesting aspect to his life.
He is in the eighth grade; normally, he should be in the ninth
grade. He had dropped out. Through a special program he was en-
couraged to return to school, and he liked the new program. He is
doing a little better, and I think part of the special attention is
helpful. He is obviously a capable young man, even though he
hadn’t focused on academics.

1 asked him what time he got out of school. It gets out at 1:15.
His mother doesn’t get home until 6. Now, here is a young man
who is a little more mature than his contemporaries. He has got
lots of energy, his body is filled with hormones, and he doesn’t have
anything to do from 1:15 until 6. He is going to have problems, and
part of it is because our school year is not only much shorter than
our competitors in number of days, but it is much shorter in the
length of the day.

I don’t mean that we have to lay all our problems on the schools,
but it is important for us, as we think about crime, to think about
filling the void so that there is productive time in our young men
and women’s lives. Part of that, I think, has to be utilizing the
total capacity of schools far better than we do now. It also, I be-
lieve, will help make us much more competitive in education. Some
will say, Hank, that involves more resources. I suspect it does, but
the cost if we do not respond to this crisis is unimaginable.

I am one who thinks that our efforts at punishment with regard
to guns ought to be focused on the people who misuse them, not
on people who are law-abiding, and I think we probably will have
better luck if we focus in that area. But the reality is, however you
come down on that argument, we all have to join together to gnd
some positive alternatives for our young people or this problem will
get worse in spite of what we do with gun legislation.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator METZENBAUM. Dr. Joycelyn Elders, Surgeon General of
the U.S. Public Health Service, we are happy to have you with us
this morning.

I owe my colleague an apology. This is the Constitution Sub-
committee of the Judiciary Committee. Paul Simon is chairman of
that subcommittee, and I just started going forward, so I apologize
to him. Really, it is his subcommittee hearing.

Senator SIMON. You have slightly more seniority than 1 do, Sen-
ator Metzenbaum.

Senator METZENBAUM. Both based upon the number of years in
the Senate and the dates when we were born. {Laughter.]

Senator SIMON. I will defer to Senator Metzenbaum any time in
these kinds of things, so no apology is necessary.
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Dr. Elders, we are very pleased to have you here.

STATEMENT OF M. JOYCELYN ELDERS, SURGEON GENERAL,
U.S. PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

Dr. ELDERS. Thank you, Senators Metzenbaum, Simon, Senator
Brown. It is a pleasure and an honor for me to be here this morn-
ing to discuss the problem of gun violence in our society.
We all know that violence is a crime, something usually dealt
with in our criminal justice system. However, if we are to address
_ the issue of violence in our society, we must start thinking of it as
N a public health problem. It is a public health proulem because it
' can be prevented. It is a problem that can be cured. It does not
‘ have to be endured. Second, violence kills and injures more young
- peop%e than AIDS or drunken driving, especially our bright young .
- people.
T Gun violence permeates our society. In 1991, there were approxi-
e mately 26,000 homicides and 31,000 suicides in our country, or
I 57,000 deaths. The number of deaths caused by violence, as you
_ have said, is 1 every 9 minutes, or 162 per day. This number is
greater than the deaths caused by AIDS, over 30,000 per year, or
1 every 16 minutes, 90 per day, and it is greater than the deaths
caused by drunken driving, nearly 18,000 persons per year, or 1
every 30 minutes.
Gun violence is an important contributing factor to the explosion
of violence in general. Of the 57,000 deaths in 1991 related to vio-
lence, over 38,YJ0 were firearm-related injuries—49 percent sui-
cide, 46 percent homicide, and 4 percent unintentional.
Every day in America, 14 children aged 19 and under are killed
in gun-related suicides and homicide. Among teenagers 15 to 19
years old, 1 in every 4 deaths is attributed to firearm injuries.
Since 1985, the risk of dying from a firearm injury has increased
by 77 percent for teenagers. They are the leading cause of death
for African-American teenagers in this country and the second
k leading cause of death for white ieenagers in this country. In fact,
' our white teenagers’ deaths are 8 times that of other countries, and
for our black teenagers it is 47 times that of any other industri-
alized country. In 1990, more U.S. teenagers died from firearm-re-
lated violence than all natural diseases combined. Fifty-seven per-
cent of all African-American teenage males who died in 1990 were
killed by guns. .
The direct cost of treating firearm injuries alone io our health
care system is $1.4 billion a year. In a society with 250 million peo-
ple, we have 211 million guns; 72 million are handguns and over
1 million semiautomatic assault weapons. |
What especially concerns me is the easy access our children have
to firearms. CDC estimates that about 1.2 million elementary-age
latchkey children have access to guns in their homes each day, and
we have heard many times that these children are in their homes
prior to their parents being there.
A nationwide survey of high school students found that 1 in 20
students had carried a gun, usually a handgun, during the past
month. It is estimated that 135,000 children take guns to school
every day. I have often said it is easier for some of our children
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to obtain a gun than it is to find a good friend, a good teacher, a
good school, or even a good minister.

Risks associated with guns in the home are high. If you have a

n at home, you or a household member are three times more
Tikely to be killed or to kill someone in your home. You or a house-
holé¢ member are five times more likely to commit suicide. When
you add alcohol and a history of domestic violence to the mix, the
risk of homicide is 20 times greater. Firearm assault on family
members and other intimate acquaintances are 12 times more like-
ly to result in death than assault using other weapons.

The average child sees 8,000 murders and 100,000 acts of vio-
lence on television before entering elementary school. When our
children see violence without pain, what can we expect? Whether
we look at the violence adolescents inflict on each other or the vio-
lence they inflict upon themselves, adolescents who have experi-
enced violence at home are violent in the community. To put it an-
other way, adolescents are often the vector that takes violence into
our communities from their homes.

What can we do to solve this seemingly unsolvable problem? We
have got to take a multidisciplinary approach to ending violence,
the kind of approach that draws from criminal justice, education,
social service, the religious community, and health. Our experi-
ences over the past 20 years have taught us that the criminal jus-
tice cannot solve the problem alone.

We see this in prisons that are bursting at the seams, in our
neighborhoods in decay, in the continuing decline of the family, in
the ever-increasing number of children killing children, in 10- and
12-year old children in this Nation planning their funerals, in sen-
ior citizens afraid to leave their homes, an in 14-year-olds believ-
ing the only safe haven is death.

We must do several things. First, we must keep guns out of the
hands of our children. This means legislation to prohibit their pos-
session by minors. This means teaching parents and gunowners
how to store guns safely in their homes, particularly homes with
children. This means teaching parents to buy their children books,
not guns.

Next, we must ban the sale of semiautomatic assault weapons
that have no sther purpose but to kill. Next, we can reframe the
public debate on firearms from one of gun control to one of public
health; that is, preventing firearm injuries. The public health em-
phasis is on prevention and on a scientific basis for defining and
solving the problem. The public health model looks at causes; it
takes a comprehensive view. Most importantly, it seeks to empower
communities and it seeks to prevent violence before it occurs.

If we ever expect to put an end to violence and victimization in
America, we have to start where the violence starts, in our homes
and in our families. Violence is a learned behavior and not a fact
of life. We must focus on primary prevention. Primary prevention
strategies are nothing new to public health. Twenty years ago
when the toll of traffic crashes captured public attention, the first
thing we did was strengthen driver's education in our schools. We
said we must have safer drivers.

Next, we went to the automobile industry and we demanded
safer cars, seat belts, air bags, and other protective mechanisms.
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Then we went to the highway builders and we said we must have
safer highways. We have worked with the highway designers to
make them safer, and then we cracked down on unsafe, usually
drunken driving, Just as we reduced the number of deadly traffic
crashes, I raintain we can engage in a similar procedure to reduce
the deaths and injuries caused by violence.

Senators we must use all of the resources we have got to tackle
the problem that is killing our children. As was said earlier, we
must have a comprehensive health education program in our
schools that has an integral part of it conflict resolution as an im-
portant part of the curriculum. We must educate ourselves and
educate our parents so they can play a more active and construc-
tive role in their children’s lives.

We must have our teachers involved so that they can begin to
prevent violence when they see it occurring in their schools. The
business community must be involved by adopting schools, sending
in mentors, sponsoring internships, jobs and career paths for young
people. Doctors and nurses must be trained to recognize the signs
of domestic viclence and child abuse, and help the victims. The
clergy must speak out forcefully on violence and not continue to
preach to the choir by taking their messages into the street.

As I have said before and will say again, we must begin to have
an integration of the things that are happening throughout our
communities. Police must set an example and must enlist the help
of all of our citizens. Young people themselves must be an example.

We have got lots to do, and I feel that the legislation that you
are discussing sends a very clear message to all of our citizens that
you care enough to change the concern that we all have about this
problem, and you are committed by taking the time, using your tal-
ents as well as using your treasures, to try and make a difference
in the lives of bright young people.

You are aware of the problem, you have become advocates for
this problem, and we all must become advocates for this problem
so that we can develop an action plan to make our communities
safe again. We each have to reach out and use all of the resources
in our communities, and we must take risks and assume respon-
sibility. Finally, we must educate and empower all of our children
and all members involved in our communities so that we can re-
claim our neighborhoods. To do anything less is to sacrifice our
children and our future. Our young people must have hope for their
future. We must make this happen because they are our future.

As your Surgeon General, I believe it is time for America to get
over its love affair with guns. It is time to send the Terminator and
Dirty Harry packing, along with the Marlboro Man and Joe Camel.
The time is right, the time is n»w, and I thank you for holding this
hearing.

Senator SIMON. Thank you very much, Dr. Elders.

I note that we have been joined by our colleague from Utah. Be-
fore we ask questions, do you have any opening statement?

Senator HATCH. If I could, I would appreciate it.

Senator SIMON. Yes.
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OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. ORRIN G. HATCH, A U.S.
SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF UTAH

Senator HATCH. Thank you for extending me this honor.

Welcome, Madam Surgeon General. We are happy to have you
with us today.

Mr. Chairman, violent crirae is the scourge of the country. Thou-
sands of bloody murders per year are brutally committed against
innocent citizens in this country. Gang violence is epidemic. Indeed,
our Nation’s heartland is witnessing an unprecedented growth in
gang violence, a plague all too well known to cities like New York,
Chicago, and Los Angeles.

Cities like Salt Lake City, UT, have had to face gang problems
as well. According to the Salt Lake Area Gang Project, a
multijurisdictional task force created in 1989 to fight gang crime in
the Salt Lake area, there are at least 215 organized gangs in the
Salt Lake area, with over 1,700 members. Juvenile involvement in
Utah’s gangs is substantial, accounting for 34 percent of gang
membership. Members of these gangs are usually 15 to 22 years of
age.

However, the problem with S. 1882, the so-called Gun Violence
Prevention Act, is that it will do little to ameliorate violent crime
or even promote gun safety. Provisions such as the bureaucratic
national handgun licensing system imposed on the States to admin-
ister, and the prohibition on semiautomatic assault weapons will do
little to stem the tide against violent crime. Instead the adminis-
trative costs to Federal and State governments will divert funds
away from the real problem, and that is fighting crime and disarm-
ing criminals.

Criminals generally obtain firearms in the black market or from
other criminals, not from gunshops and licensed dealers, although
some do there, too, by lying. All S. 1882 will do is make it far more
costly for law-abiding citizens tc purchase firearms for lawful pur-
poses, such as hunting, target shooting and competition, collection
and, most important, for home and self defense.

As reported in the Sunday New York Times Magazine on March
20, 1994, in an article by the noted scholar and author James Q.
Wilson entitled “Just Take Away Their Guns: Forget Gun Control,”
legal restraints cn the lawful purchase of firearms will have little
effect on the illegal use of firearms.

There are some 200 riillion guns in private ownership, about one-third of them
handguns. Only 2 percent of the latter are employed to commit crimes * * * More-
over, only about one-sixth of the handguns used by serious criminals are purchased

from a gunshop or a pawn shop. Most of these handguns are stolen, borrowed, or
obtained through private purchases that wouldn't be a ected by gun laws.

Wilson goes on to argue that successful attempts to restric! the
sale ur pussession of guns and ammunition would diminish the
ability of the law-abiding to defend themselves.

un control advocates scoff at the importance of self-defense, but they are wrong
to do so. Based on a household survey, Gary Kleck, a criminologist at Florida State
University, has estimated that every year guns are used—that is, displayed or fired
for defensive purposes—more than a million times, not counting their use by police.
If his estimate is correct, this means that the number of people who defend them-
selves with a gun exceeds the number of arrests for violent crimes and burglaries.
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The way to deal effectively with violent crime is to support meas-
ures that effectively remove weapons from the hands of criminals,
not from the hands of law-zbiding citizens who responsibly use
their weapons. That is why I support the Biden-Hatch bill. That is
why I sponsored the measures in the crime bill that would increase
Fegeral penalties against gang members and disarm criminals by
throwing them in jail. That works. The House is not putting these
provisions in. These will decrease the fear created by the plague of
violent crime. Senate bill 1882, on the other hand, does little to
cure this 1plague. I believe it is time that we stopped touting this
ineffectual approach to crime control and pass a tough, common-
sense anticrime bill.

I said during the debate on the floor that if you pass Brady, what
the American peoEIe are going to do is they are going to say, well,
we are going to have 5 days, we had better go out and get our
guns. Consequently, since that time guns sales have been, of
course, skyrocketing.

Some have said, well, what we have got to do is allow people to
buy only one gun per month. Well, you know what the American
people are going to do. You tell them they can’t do something and
they are going to go out and buy one gun per month.

These are ridiculous approaches toward these problems and we
are not attacking it in the way we should, and that is we have got
to attack the criminals. We have got to take them away from them.
We have got to get tou%fh on crime. We have got to sentence these
people to very, very stiff sentences and we have got to carry them
out. We can’t justr]yet them out through a revolving door out on to
the street. If they are going to use guns, they are going to pay a
big price for it.

Having said that, I am interested in the hearing. I am interested
in what is going on and I am interested in the comments of our
Surgeon General and others because I think it is important that we
review all ideas on this matter.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your courtesy to me.

Senator SIMON. Thank you, Senator Hatch.

Senator Metzenbaum, I assume you agree with Senator Hatch'’s
statements entirely here.

Senator METZENBAUM. As usual.

Senator SIMON. Yes. [Laughter.]

Senator METZENBAUM. Dr. Elders, the American people are used
to seeing the Surgeon General out front on health issues such as
smoking and alcohol, but some might think it is strange that the
Surgeon General has taken an active role in the debate about guns.

Iiave been involved in the debate over guns for years, and dur-
ing much of that time doctors and public health officials were no-
ticeably absent. What has changed? Why has gun violence become
a public health problem?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, that is a very interesting question, but, you
know, it is not only now the Surgeon General that is out talking
about gun violence. The American Medical Association is really
holding major conferences and is very concerned about gun vio-
lence, and one of the reasons is we really now are becoming aware
of the problem, we are recognizing the problem, and we feel that
we in the medical society need to become involved in addressing
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this issue. It is in our communities. The average pediatrician sees
five to six acts of violence that he has take care of each year. So
we are seeing more of that and we realize that we have got to get
involved and be responsive.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you. You have been outspoken on
the need for a comprehensive approach to gun violence, especially
as it affects children. As I understand your view, many of the
things we must do as a society to curb violence involve nongovern-
mental efforts, such as efforts by parents and teachers.

In your view, what role does the Federal Government have in
trying to reduce gun violence to protect children, and what needs
to be done on a Federal level?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I think passing the Brady bill wili in some
ways help young people. You know, we need to keep the tools of
violence ot of the hands of our children. 1 feel that young people
should not really be able to own or have a gun. I feel that that is
something that they should not do.

I feel that you can be leaders and really offer in leadership in
saying that we need a comprehensive health education program in
our schools and have an important part of the curriculum dealing
with conflict resolution because many of our young people do not
come from homes where they see problems dealt with in any other
means other than in a violent way. I feel that you have taken lead-
ership in trying to reduce the violence that we see on our tele-
visions or ‘hat our children are exposed to, and I think that that
is an important role for the Federal Government to play.

Senator METZENBAUM. Attorney General Reno has said that “We
have to make sure it is at least as difficult to have a gun as it is
to get a driver’s license, and we have got to get the guns out of the
hands of our children.” She also has suggested that it would be a
good idea to require gun safety courses and testing before someone
could buy a gun, saying “I think we should at least demonstrate
before we own a gun that we know how to properly use it.” Do you
agree with the Attorney General’s remarks?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I agree with most of the Attorney General’s
remarks, and I certainly agree with those.

Senator METZENBAUM. What are the public health implications of
gun safety mechanisms? In the past, the Surgeon General has ex-
amined how manufacturers market products that pose a health
risk for consumers, demanding that consumers be told the truth
about the product, such as with cigarette warning labels.

Have you examined, or do you plan to examine how manufactur-
ers market guns and whether something needs to be done in that
area, and what effect do you think the marketing of guns has on
our children?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I think obviously the Surgeon General will
not have much to do with the marketing of guns. I feel that that
is really under the control of the criminal justice department, but
I would certainly be supportive of things that they would rec-
ommend that would increase gun safety in our homes and with our
children.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you very much, Dr. Elders.

Senator Brown?

1
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Senator BROWN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Elders, in your
opening remarks you talked about television violence and the large
numbers of incidents of violence that our young people see as they
grow up even before they enter school. ilow do we address this
1ssue? Do you think we ought to limit what is shown on television
in some way?

Dr. ELDERS. Well, you know, I think every time you try to say
that, somebody says that you are limiting people’s first amendment
rights, so obviously I guess that is very difficult to do. You have
held hearings, and Senator Simon has certainly been working hard
to try and limit what is shown on television, or at least get the in-
dustry to be responsible corporate citizens, and it is my under-
standing that they are beginning to work on that.

There was a bill to try and shut off TV’s such that children could
not view certain violent programs. You asked the TV industry to
have those put on so the parents would know which ones to show.
Of course, we found that there was only one television program out
of all of the television programs that they thought contained vio-
lence, so we feel that they didn’t really regulate themselves and I-
think that they are going to go back and try again, it is my under-
standing.

Senator BROWN. So at this point, the focus of your efforts is going
to be warnings or voluntary efforts to urge advertisers to not adver-
tise on violent programs?

Dr. ELDERS. Well, warnings to parents; we are going to try and
educate parents so they can real y make decisions. We are going
to give warnings to the advertisers. We are going to continue to
hold talks and work with the television industry, and I feel that
the industry can do a great job of reducing the kind of violence that
is shown during times that children are usually watching.

Senator BROWN. You SYOke earlier about making sure children do
not possess firearms. Colorado has passed a law that requires our
schools to dismiss any child that is found to have a deadly weapon
in their possession when they come to school. Would you share
your thoughts with us as to whether you think that is a good idea
or a bad idea?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, it is very painful to me to feel that children
are being dismissed for bringing a deadly weapon to school some-
times because the reason they bring—you know, our survey said
that the reason chiidren bring deadly weapons to school is because
they are really very afraid, they are very frightened of what is
going on in their schools.

We know that 160,000 children skip school or miss school every
day because they are frightened of what goes on. We know that
there are more than 2,000 children per hour attacked in our
schools across the country, and 49 teachers attacked per hour. So
we know that there is some reason for them to have some fear. I
think we need to look at it, evaluate it carefully, try and work with
the parents, work with the community, work with the school. I
mean, I feel that there may be reasons——

Senator BROWN. You would not favor dismissing them if they
bring deadly weapons to school?

Dr. ELDERS. You mean forever?
Senator BROWN. Well, no, just for that semester.
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Dr. ELDERS. For that semester?

Senator BROWN. Yes.

Dr. ELDERS. Well, you know, I would really have some problems
personally with that because we know that it is usually the chil-
dren that have the greatest amount of difficulty, so we move them
out of the school, and now we have put them out into the commu-
nity and they are far more likely to do even more harm out there
where they have zero supervision.

Senator BROWN. Earlier, we talked about weapons and children.
Do you have a statistics on the number of people who purchase
guns from licensed dealers that go out and commit crimes? Is that
where they get their guns?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I do not have that data. We may have it
at CDC. I do not know that. We will certainly try and get that for
you, but it is my understanding, I think, like Senator Hatch has
said, many of these guns are purchased on the black market. They
are borrowed from friends or they are bought from someone who
is not a licensed dealer.

Senator BROWN. You mentioned earlier comprehensive health
education as being an important factor here. As I am sure you have
seen, the remarks that were attributed to you in the Advocate
Magazine obviously have raised some interest. Are those issues and
beliefs the ones that you think should be included in a comprehen-
sive health education program”

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I fee. that a comprehensive health edu-
cation program must start very early. We are talking about self-es-
teem, teaching children how to make decisions, good diet, exercise,
sexuality education, drug education, nutrition education. These are
the things that our children need that are not being taught.

Senator BROWN. Are the comments you made in the Advocate
ones that you think should be included in the sexuality education?

Dr. ELDERS. I am sorry, Senator. What were they?

Senator BROWN. Well, the reference was that America needs to
know sex is wonderful and normal and a healthy part of being,
whether it is homosexual or heterosexual.

Dr. ELDERS. Yes, I made—that is correct. They did get it correct.

Senator BROWN. Thank you. I have no other questions.

Senator METZENBAUM. [ gather that was a significant point in
connection with gun control?

Senator BROWN. It was a point in reference to comprehensive
health education which the Surgeon General had brought up in re-
sponse, I believe, to your question.

Senator METZENBAUM. I think the Chair thinks that the question
was way off base, but I am sure the Surgeon General stands be-
hind her comments.

Senator BROWN. I have never thought that about your questions,
Mr. Chairman. {Laughter.]

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you.

Senator Hatch?

Senator HATcH. Well, I have.

Senator METZENBAUM. Wait a minute. Senator Simon is here.

Senator SIMON. First, if I may differ slightly from Senator Hatch
here when he says that getting hold of gun dealers—and I am
probably misquoting you here—isn’t that significant, ATF checked
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with people in prison, prison inmates, and asked them where they
purchased their guns, and 27 percent said they got them from re-
tail outlets. Now, when you add the people who don’t have the
stores, I think it is probable that if not a majority, close to a major-
ity of guns were purchased fror "egal dealers. If we get a hold of
those dealers, I think it can be ex .emely important.

On your statistics, one of the things that I would just like to re-
emphasize is that people who bring guns into their homes are more
likely to have those guns used on themselves than on strangers—
three times more likely to be used that way, and it is five times
more likely that a home that has a gun will have a suicide. Those
are statistics that are just overpowering. Then you mentioned 4
percent unintentional, accidental deaths. Four percent doesn’t
sound like a lot. That is 1,520 deaths on this country.

When we talk about statistics, Dr. Elders, sometimes this thing
becomes faceless. I don’t mean to put you on the spot here now, but
have you had any experience personally, talking with someone,
knowing someone, where this thing is more than just these power-
ful statistics? The statistics don’t have flesh and blood.

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, you may or may not know my brother, who
was a veterinarian, my brother who I think I testified had his—
you know, my dad took him on a mule for 13 miles to a doctor
when he had appendicitis, and it was lanced anc' he returned
home. Well, he subsequently became a veterinarian and he had
been in practice for less than 3 years and he was killed in his home
by handgun violence. You know, it was not someone in our family.
It was a burglary, but he was killed at home.

Sgnator SIMON. And so this thing is not just an abstraction for
you?

Dr. ELDERS. It is not just an abstraction for me, sir. It is a real
problem. We see too many, especially too many young black men,
being killed by violence. It is a real problem for me.

Senator SIMON. In the area of cigarettes, we have gradually
changed public use through education. In addition to legislation in
terms of who gets control, are there things that we ought to be
doing in the area of education on weapons, whether or not you
should have one in the home—you know, the kinds of statistics
that you have been using? Are we doing what we should be doing
in the way of education?

Dr. ELDERS. Well, I don't feel we are doing what we should be
doing in the way of education. I feei that we really need to be not
only educating our parents on how to be good parents and how to
deal with guns and gun storage or whatever—you know, this would
be a part of parent education. We need to be educating our children
on how to deal with problems other than through violent means.

We need to really work with our teachers. We have not educated
our teachers in many of our schools, or most of our schools, to be
exact, on really how to deal with violence in other than violent
means. So I feel that we need to educate not only the individual
gunowners in how to use iuns and how to deal with that, but we
need to educate all of our children. We need to educate our parents.
We need to educate our communities on how to deal with this
issue.
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Senator SIMON. Because of the fear of violence, gun sales have
escalated, and part of that education ought to be the dangers that
you acquire when you get that gun in the home.

Dr. ELDERS. And the responsibilities you assume.

Senator SIMON. Yes.

Senator Hatch?

Senator HaTcH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Elders, I know that you are a very sincere person, and I have
great respect for that. A lot of the violence in our society today is
coming from the drug culture, from the dissemination. and wide-
spread use of drugs. A lot of the money that, goes for weapons real-
ly is coming from the sale of drugs, and so I have a few questions
T would like to ask you about that relationship.

You first broached the subject of studying legalization of drugs
in December of last year, saying that you believed that legalization
could significantly reduce violent crime in our country. In January
of this year, the Washington Post reported that you felt your initial
favorable impression of legalization had been buttressed by your
reading of a number of studies. That was in the Washington Post.

Now, could you please tell the subcommittee what studies you
are talking about here because 1 don’t know of any that say drug
legalization could reduce crime? If there are, I would like to know.

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, you know, my office—and we have people
that are still working on it and they have not really—I have kind
of gone through some of them quickly and they have not truly
briefed me, so 1 would not like—I have already made one statement
saying that I felt that we needed to do a study, and I want you to
know that I hav> not educated me well enough yet. When I do that,
1 might be 100 percent wrong, but so far what 1 have learned—I
don’t feel like that, but I might. You know, you shouldn’t make de-
cisions on incomplete data.

Senator HATCH. Well, I think it is important to point out that
there is a difference between asking for a study and suggesting
that it might be a good thing to do. As you and your staff do re-
search on this, we would like to have whatever studies you uncover
that indicate that that may be the case.

In your comments about drug legalization, you indicated that
there were positive experiences in foreign countries with legaliza-
tion, in that crime rates were reduced without increases in drug
use. That was in the Washington Post on December 8.

Could you tell us which countries these were and what drugs
were legalized and how the crime rates were reduced?

Dr. ELDERS. Again, Senator, I want to make sure that—you
know, again, I may have gotten their initial studies. I think every
country that has done something in this area not only sent me
their bill, they sent me their data and all of that. But, sir, I have
been so busy since I have been here I haven’t had time to spend
time with that, and I think the administration made a decision so
I felt that I had time to teach myself.

Senator HATCH. I know of no studies in any countries ihat show
legalization reduces crime rates without increases in drug use. But
if you find some, I would like to see them. I think it is important.
Dr. ELDERS. Thank you.
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Senator HATCH. Are you cware of reports that the Dutch are
tightening up their relatively lenient drug policies because of sharp
increases in drug-related crime and violence in recent years? That
was reported in the Chicago Tribune on December 12. Are you
aware of that?

Dr. ELDERS. No, but again I do have a lot of data from the Dutch;
you know, their original studies from their scientists.

Senator HATCH. We would like you to submit that to us.

Are you aware of the British experience of attempting to register
and supply heroin addicts through physician-controlled distribution
in the 1960’s?

Senator SIMON. I don’t mean to cut off Senator Hatch in this line
of questioning, but to the extent we can focus on the gun
question—-—

Senator HATCH. Well, I am because I think these are preliminary
to getting to some of the gun questions.

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I have the data, you know, but I have not
read it all and when I get educated, you know that I don’t mind
speaking out about what I believe in.

Senator HATCH. You will submit that to the committee?

Dr. ELDERS. Well, I haven't reviewed it yet.

Senator HATCH. That is OK.

Dr. ELDERS. When I finish.

Senator HATCH. I cited James Q. Wilson’s article. He said that
the British effort resulted in a 30-fold increase in the heroin addict
population in Britain in 10 years. Now, if that is true, would that
give you pause with regard to legalizing——

Dr. ELDERS. Sir, I would really need to see the scientific data and
not the newspaper report.

Senator HATCH. I would, too.

Dr. ELDERS. Well, you know, that is what I would like to do.

Senator HATCH. Well, when you first raised the idea of legaliza-
tion as a possible drg policy option—see, I think that an awful lot
of violence in our society is centered in the use of drugs and the
spreading and dissemination of drugs, and when you first raised
the idea of consideration of legalization as a possible drug policy
option last December your comments were reportedly not embraced
by the White House. Since that time, you have reiterated your
opinion that you believe drug legalization could reduce our crime
rate and that the issue should be considered.

Now. I assume that you continue to advocate your position with
tbe administration. Have you found any sympathetic listeners
dewn ihere?

Dr. E.DERS. Senator, I am trying to educate me.

“eautor METZENBAUM. Senator, excuse me. We are getting into
an ¢ rea that is totally outside—

Senator HATCH. I don’t think it is.

Senatcr METZENBAUM. First, we had Senator Brown who wanted
to get into the gay and lesbian question. Now, we have got Senator
Hatch who wants to get into the whole question of drug legaliza-
tion. Now, we have a very, very prestigious list of witnesses——

Senator HATc11. Howard, I didn’t interrupt you, and this is very,
very important.
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Senator METZENBAUM. I know, but the fact is Senator Simon and
I are cochairing this and I do think that we have normal rules, and
that is we don’t ask questions beyond the purview of the issue be-
fore us.

Senator HATCH. Well, this is the first hearing I have ever been
in when anybody has raised that. Anybody can ask anything they
want, but especially questions leading up to the use of guns that

ertain to the primary reason why we have such a widespread pro-
iferation of violent crime and gun use in our society. So [ think
these questions are not only pertinent, but you can’t discuss the
issue without them and I think it is important.

You and I may differ on what we think is right here, but I think
it is important for us to know where you are as a leader in our soci-
ety as Surgeon General. So I just think it is important because I
believe your position is irony. You support studying the legalization
of drugs, and it is well understood, indeed generally agreed upon,
that the use of narcotics, not simply the black market trade in ille-
gal drugs, is a contributing factor to the increase in crime, and es-
pecially violent crime with the use of guns. Drug dependence and
addiction leads to violence and theft.

You support bills like S. 1882 which are confiscatory in nature
and would convert many types of hunting rifles and sporting rifles
into contraband. Now, you know, the question that comes up is how
could one hypothetically support legalization of drugs on one
hand—I am not saying you do, but you have called for studies of
it—

Dr. ELDERS. Thank you, Senator.

Senator HATCH [continuing). And the criminalization of firearms
on the other? Now, if you can tell us, how does S. 1882 lead to re-
duced gun violence and gun injury? Won't S. 1882 lead to growth
in the black market for guns, where a lot of them are being picked
up, and isn’t it the basis for the argument of those who wish to le-
galize drugs that such prohibition is ineffective?

We have proven that time after time in this country, and with
that in mind, let me ask you this question: Isn't it true that vir-
tually the only people affected by this bill would be lawful gun pur-
chasers?

Dr. ELDERS. Well, Senator, that is certainly not my impression
from reading the bill.

Senator HATCH. All right. Well, that is all I have. Thank you.

Senator SIMON. Any further questions of Dr. Elders?

Senator BROWN. I did have a followup.

Senator SIMON. Yes; Senator Brown?

Senator BROWN. I wanted to inquire with regard to the sugges-
tion that we outlaw sales of guns, and I think the current bill deals
with both sales and possession. If that restriction should be ex-
tended to other deadly weapons, knives and other weapons that
could lilnﬂict death, do you think that would have a positive impact
as well?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, I don’t know the answer to your question,

Senator BROWN. One of the things that I had been concerned
with as I went through the bill was the restriction on possession
at age 16—well really below age 21. Obviously, our young people
go into the military well below that age, and while I know there
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is an exemption for people who are supervised by someone 21 or
older, at times squad commanders are not above the age of 21.

Do you think there should be an exemption from the ban of fire-
arm possession in the bill for people who have experience, who are
perhaps 18?

Dr. ELDERS. Senator, it never occurred to me that the bill in-
cluded a concern of the military. You know, I felt that that was
regulated by our military.

Senator BROWN. Thank you.

Senator SIMON. If I can quote, in partial response to Senator
Brown, from your statement, “Firearm assauits on family members
and other intimate acquaintances are 12 times more likely to result
in death than are assaults using other weapons.” If you give me a
choice of somebody coming after me with a knife or a baseball bat
or a gun, I don’t have a hard time making the choice. There is just
no question, guns are infinitely more deadly.

Dr. Elders, I just want to thank you for standing up. When you
enter this arena of gun control, you are entering an arena of con-
troversy and it would be easy to duck. You haven't ducked, and I
appreciate your standing up.

Dr. ELDERS. Thank you, Senator.

Senator SIMON. Thank you very much.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you, Dr. Elders.

(The prepared statement of Dr. Elders follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF M. JOYGELYN ELDERS, M.D.

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Senator Metzenbaum and other members of the
subcommittee,

I'am honored to be with you this morning to discuss why the epidemic of gun vio-
lence has become a public healt® issue. We ordinarily think of violence as a crime,
something to be dealt with undzr ¢ne criminal justice system. But if we are serious
about addressing the issue of violenca in our society, we must start thinking of it
as a public health problem because if kills and injures so many people, especially
our young people and our children.

THE PROBLEM
The following statistics, they bear repeating—gun violence permeates our lives:
¢ In 1991, the most recent year for which we have information, there were ap-
proximately 26,000 homicides and 31,000 suicides in this country.

¢ The number of deaths caused by violence, then, is 1 every 9 minutes and 162
per day.
~ This number is greater than deaths caused by AIDS, over 30,000 per year
or 1 every 16 minutes (90 per day).

- And it is greater than deaths caused by drunk driving, nearly 18,000 persons
per year or 1 every 30 minutes (49 per day).

~ By the time I finish this statement, . .other person will have died from vio-

lence. By the time we head to our hoi.cs tonight, another 36 will have died.

¢ The average child sees 8,000 murders and 100,000 acts of violence on television
before finishing elementary school.

Gunlviolence is an important contributing factor to this explosion of violence in
general:

¢ During 1991, over 38,000 people died from firearm-related injuries—49 percent
were suicides, 46 percent were homicides, and 4 percent were unintentional.

¢ Every day in America, 14 children ages 19 and under are killed in gun-related
suicides, homicides, and unintentiona ly when a gun goes off,

23



19

Among teenagers 15 to 19 years old, one of every four deaths is attributable
to a firearm injury.

Since 1985, the risk of dying from a firearm injury has increased by 77 percent
for teenagers 15 to 19 years of age.

¢ Firearms are the leading cause of death for African American teenagers in this
country and the 2nd leading cause (after motor vehicle crashes) among white
teenagers. Look at the chart I brought that compares homicides among our
young people with those in other industrialized countries. Almost the entire in-
crease 1s attributable to firearms.

Between 1980 and 1991, tha suicide rate increased by 27 percent in the 10 to
19 year old age group; 77 percent of this increase is attributable to an increase
. in firearm suicide.

The leading cause of death for both black and white teenage boys in America
is gunshot wounds.

¢ Gunshot wounds to youngsters ages 16 and under nearly doubled in major
N . urban areas between 1987 and 1990.

¢ For young people 10 to 34 years of age, firearms are the second leading cause
of death, and one out of five deaths of U.S. teens is due to guns. In 1990, more
U.S. teenagers died from firearm-related irjuries than from all natural diseases
combined.

¢ Over half (57 percent) of all African American teenage males who died in 1990
were killed with guns. This is up from 48 percent of in 1988.

o The direct cost of treating firearm injuries alone to our health care system is
$1.4 billion a year.

¢ Handguns account for 72 million of the 211 million guns in the U.S.—about one
in three, but they account for at least two-thirds of all firearm-related deaths.

What especially concerns me is the easy access our children have to firearms:

¢ CDC estimates that about 1.2 million elementary-aged, latch-key children have
access to guns in their homes each day.

¢ A nation-wide survey of high school students found that 1 in 20 students had
carried a gun, usually a handgun, during a one-month period in 1990.

As I have said before, it is often easier for some of our children to obtain a gun
than it is to find a good friend, a good teacher, a good school or even a good min-
ister.

We have also learried about that there are risks associated with guns in the home.
If you have a gun at home:

¢ You or a household member are 3 times more likely to be killed or to kill some-
one in your home.

¢ You or a household member are 5 timnes more likely to commit suicide.

When you add alcohol and s history of domestic violence to the mix, the risk of
homicide is twenty times greater!

¢ Firearm assaults on family members and other intimate acquaintances are 12
times more lil:ely to result in death than are assaults using other weapons.

SOLUTIONS
. What strategics does public health offer to combat this epidemic?

1) First, violence as a public health issue requires a public heaith approach. As
a public health professicnal, I feel we must emphasize prevention and use a
scientific basis for defining and solving the problem.

Second, using similar techniques as those applied to traffic fatalities, we must
use an array of interventions to reduce violence. We can educate, we can
enact laws and enforce re%ulations, we cun change the environment, we can
restore hope in the future for our children, we can take back our streets.

Third, violence in the family often results in violence in the community. Chil-
dren who witness violence at home are often the ones who resort to violence
to solve conflicts in the streets.

2

3

FRIC <4

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



20

4) And finally, prevention begins *sith education in our schools, with violence
prevention a part of comprehensive health education in grades K through 12.

The statistics I just cited are powerful proof that gun violence is a public health
crisis of the first order. Let me now turn to the reasons why solving this public
health crisis demands a public health approach.

THE PUBLIC HEALTH APPROACH

Public health’s emphasis is on Frevention and on a scientific basis for defining
and solving the problem. The public health model looks at causes. It takes a com-
prehensive view. Most importantly, it seeks to empower communities. And, it works
toerevent violence before it occurs.
Intil recently, most of our nation’s response to violence has been to apprehend, *

arrest, adjudicate, and incarcerate violent offenders through the criminal justice sys-
tem. This response 1s important, but, by itself, it will not stop the problem.

Although we must learn much more about how to prevent violence, what we do
know clearly shows that violent behaviors, and the injuries and deaths that result,
can be prevented. The police, judges and others in the criminal justice system agree. .
We should not wait until viofence happens to look for solutions. We must stop the
violence before it starts. This means paying more attention to our children, to what
they learn and to what kind of people they will become.

lPublic health also provides a scientific basis for defining the problem and finding
solutions.

SOLUTIONS

Recently, I have had several opportunities to speak about family violence and I
have learned something very sim Ez, but very profound: if we ever expect to put an
end to violence and victimization in America, we have to start where the violence
starts—in our homes, in our families. )

Because violence is so much a learned behavior and not a fact of life, we must
focus on primary prevention. We actually need to begin at birth or before, and then
provide education and training-—and opportunity—throughout a young person’s life.

Primary prevention strategies are nothing new for public health. enty-some
years ago, when the toll of traffic crashes captured public attention, the first thing
we did was strengthen drivers’ education classes and make them a requirement.
Then we worked with the automobile manufacturers to make cars safer, adding seat
belts and child safety seats; we worked with the highway designers to make high-
ways safer. And then we cracked down on unsafe, usually drunken, driving.

ust as we reduced the number of deadly traffic crasﬁes, I maintain, we can en-
gage in a similar process to reduce the deaths and injuries caused by violence. We
can identify and evaluate a wide array of strategies and interventions to prevent
firearm injuries, focusing on changing the ways we resolve conflict. We can also as-
sure guns are used or stored safely.

Betore anything else can happen, we must keep the tools of violence out of the
hands of our children. The Brady law was a wonderful and courageous first step,
but we must do more. Let me add my voice to that of the President’s in calling for
a ban on semiautomatic assault weapons that serve no other purpose but to kill.

After this, then, the first long-range step in preventing violence, the one I care
most passionately about, is education. We must devote our tools of commitment to
education for the prevention of violence.

1) We must educate our parents, beginning with prenatal classes.
Having nurses visit homes of expectant parents to talk about child rearing,
the risks of child abuse and how to prevent it is a proven way to prevent vio-
lence and abuse in the home.

We must offer and support early childhood education classes like Head Start
for all children.

This Administration is en record supporting full funding for Head Start.

We must provide comprehensive health education in our schools, from kinder-
garten through high school, and that health education must include violence
prevention. I am convinced that schools offer us the best and casiest way to
reach as many children as possible.

We need more classes in conflict resolution designed to help children de-
velop empathy with others, learn ways to control impulses, develop problem-
solving skills, and manage anger.

Because at the root of violence is poverty and hopelessness, the final measure
of prevention is HOPE. Hope means developing programs to train young peo-
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ple and make jobs available for them. 1 could not agree more with Attorney
General Janet Reno that iiie best social worker is a good job.

I am concerned that children today are not 1ea.min% the skills they need
to be employable and productive in today’s work force. ] am worried that one
study has found that one-fourth of all young African American males ages 20—
99 are incarcerated, on probation or on parole, while only one-fifth are en-
rolled in higher education.

CONCLUSION

Just like traffic accidents and tobacco, the problem of firearm violence does not
lend itself to a single solution. We must take a multi-disciplinary approach to end-
ing violence—the kind of approach that draws from criminal justice, education, so-
cial services, and health. Our experiences over the past 20 years have taught us that
the criminal justice system alone cannot solve the problem of violence. Agding more
{aolice and building more prisons to lock up violent offenders for the balance of their
ives will help, but these policies alone cannot solve our problems. We must be tough
and smart.

The only lasting solution to violence is a comprehensive solution—one that focuses
on support for families and on building strong neighberhoods—while, at the same
time, promoting an underlying bases of safety, self-worth, and economic security for
all Americans.

Youth can be taught skills to help them deal with violence. They can be helped
to develop strategies needed to solve differences without violence. Young people can
be taught about the situations or actions that are likely to result in violence or vio-
lent injuries, such as associating with violent peers, using alcohol or drugs, and pos-
sessing a firearm or other weapon.

Young people can be provided with mentors, who can serve as role models. Teen-
age parents, abused children, or wayward teenagers can be provided with training,
support, and recreation. Tougher gun laws—like a ban on assault weapons and re-
t:iorms in how we license federal gun dealers—can help us reduce gun violence and

eaths.

In commercials airing nationwide, President Clinton calls on all of us to work to
restore hope for our young pecple in this country. Our young people must have hope
for their future, We must make this happen because they are our future.

In the end, we all can CARE.

The “C” in CARE is for Concern and Commitment. We must care enough to

change our Concern to Commitment, sharing our time, our talents, and our treas-
ure,
The “A” is for Awareness and Advocacy. We must increase our own Awareness,
and the awareness of every citizen, of the magnitude and cost of this epidemic—
and we must Advocate for change, and develop Action plans at every level to attack
this problem.

The “R” is for Reaching out and Resources. We must Reach out to those in our
community who may be at risk; we must take Responsibility, and we must use our
Resources.

And, finally, the “E” is for Education and Empowerment. We must Educate our
children and each other about violence and how to prevent it—we must Empower
ourselves and our communities to reclaim our neighborhoods. To do anything less
ie to sacrifice our children, our future. Qur r\;oung people must have hope for their
future. We must make this happen because they are our future.

As your Surgeon General, 1 gelieve it is time for America to get over its love affair
with gun violence, It's time to send the Terminator and Dirty Harry packing, along
with the Marlbore Man and Joe Camel. The time is right, the time is now.

Senator METZENBAUM. Our next witness has been a giant in this
country in speaking up for children’s rights. Her voice was heard
and has been heard over a period of time when others were silent,
and she has been truly the most significant spokesperson in the
country for children’s rights. I know I speak for all members of this
subcommittee when I indicate how pleased we are to welcome Mar-
ian Wright Edelman, president of the Children’s Defense Fund.

Dr. Joseph Wright—I am sorry, 1 didn’t realize you were coming
together.

Ms. EDELMAN. It is nice to have two Wrights here at once. That
is wonderful.

-
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Senator METZENBAUM. Dr. Wright is representing the American
Academy of Pediatric  and is assistant medical director of the Chil-
dren’s National, Medical Center in Washington. We are happy to
welcome you, Dr. Wright.

Senator SIMON. You are not related I assume?

Ms. EDELMAN. I don’t know. We haven't talked; not that I am
aware of.

PANEL CONSISTING OF MARIAN WRIGHT EDELMAN, PRESI-
DENT, CHILDREN'S DEFENSE FUND, WASHINGTON, DC; AND
JOSEPH L. WRIGHT, ALSISTANT MEDICAL DIRECTOR, EMER-
GENCY MEDICAL TRAUMA CENTER, CHILDREN'S NATIONAL
MEDICAL CENTER, WASHINGTON, DC, ON BEHALF OF THE
AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS

STATEMENT OF MARIAN WRIGHT EDELMAN

Ms. EDELMAN: Mr. Chairman, I am Jjust delighted to be here to
thank you for your leadership and Senator Metzenbaum's leader-
ship in trying to do something about guns and violence in our cul-
ture. On the other hand, I am very sad to be here because in all
of my 20 years of advocating for children, [ have never anticipated
a day when I would be here talking about guns and children, and
I think it 1s shameful that we have permitted guns to become a fac-
tor in our children’s lives.

Violence has become routine in so many of our children’s lives be-
cause we adults have failed miserably in our most basic respon-
sibility of protecting our young. Between 1979 and 1991, almost
50,000 American children were killed by guns. That is roughly
equal to the number of American battle casualties in the Vietnam
war.

This toll, sadly, of child deaths is rising. In 1991 alone, 5,356
children and youths died from gunshot injuries. An American child
is now killed every 2 hours by violence, the equivalent of a class-
room full or a Sunday school full every 2 days. I just think that
is the most skameful thing I have ever heard and ‘we have got to
stop it.

Thousands more children are injured by guns. The Centers for
Disease Control estimate that there are five nonfatal gunshot inju-
ries for every fatal one. This adds up to over 26,000 children and
youths injured by gunfire in 1991 alone. Hundreds of thousands
more children are not killed or physically injured, but still are
srievously harmed by the pervasive violence around them. They
ose their parents; they lose their siblings, their classmates. They
are having to sleep in fear in bathtubs for cover. They are losing
so much of their innocence to this immoral and disgusting tidal
wave of violence that has seeped into every nook and cranny of our
society, but that absolutely isproportionately affects certain poor
ard minority and inner-city communities.

I am concerned because the ugly, malignant tumor of violence
that has torn many of our communities apart has spread to young-
er and younger children. Just the 560 American 10- to 14-year-old
children who died from guns in 1950 were twice the number of
handgun deaths of citizens of all ages in Sweden, Switzerland,
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Japan, Canada, Great Britain, and Australia combined in that
year.

Gun violence is now the third leading cause of death among ele-
mentary and middle school children alike. Twice as many of our
children under 10 were killed by firearms in 1991 as we lost in sol-
diers in the Persian Gulf and Somalia combined.

In this Nation’s undeclared civil war, as you have already point-
ed out in previous questions, the majority of murders are commit-
ted not by strangers but by family members or acquaintances, and
we must begin to educate the public about the fact that guns don’t
protect, they endanger.

An increasing number of our juveniles are not only becoming vic-
tims of violence, but perpetrators of violence. Despite a declining
juvenile population, juvenile arrests for murder rose by almost 93
percent between 1982 and 1991, and approximately 80 percent of
juvenile murders now involve firearms. I do hope that all reason-
able people, whether they are gunowners or not or whether they
are NRA members or not, could begin to reach some kind of con-
sensus that we must take guns out of the hands of people who kill
children and out of the hands of children. 1 would hope that this
country can do that.

I think escalating violence against and by children and youths is
no coincidence. It is the cumulative and convergent manifestation
of a range of serious and too-long-neglected problems, and we must
have a comprehensive approach to trying to deal with this plague
of violence in our society. Epidemic child and family poverty, in-
creasing economic inequality, racial intolerance, pervasive drug and
alcohol abuse, violence in our homes and popular culture, and
growing numbers of out-of-wedlock births and divorce reflect a
breakdown in families.

If we add to these crises hordes of lonely and neglected children
and youths left to fend for themselves by absentee parents in all
races and income groups, gangs of inner-city minority youth who
have been relegated to the cellar of American life without edu-
cation, jobs or hope, and easy access to deadlier and deadlier fire-
arms, 1 think you face the social and spiritual disintegration of
American society that confronts us today.

We have not valued millions of our children’s lives and so they
don’t value ours in a society in which they have no social or eco-
nomic stake. As we talk about the absolutely crucial importance of

kinds of measures that your bill proposes, 1

hat we talk about positive alternatives to

the streets for young people when we ask mothers and fathers and

young people of all races and classes what will make a difference

to prevent violence. In addition to gun control, they always say

after-school programs, weekend programs, summer programs, a
sense of hope, jobs, and so we nee({) to have a holistic approach.

Passage of the Brady bill was an important step, though, toward
a crucial and long-overdue gun control policy -in our national life.
In order to reduce the deadliness of violence, we must get guns off
our streets and out of our schools and out of our homes. Firearms
are virtually the only unregulated dangerous product in the United
States. Although our Nation regulates the safety of countless prod-
ucts, including children’s toy guns, teddy bears, blankets, toys and
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pajamas, it does not regulate the safety of a product that kills and
mnjures tens of thousands of chiidren and other citizens each year.

We must not continue to elevate the interests of one industry
that traffics in lethality above our children’s survival. How can we
speak to children about values, yet let millions of dollars be made
selling guns to them? The September 1991 issue of the National
Shooting Sports Foundation’s official newsletter contains an adver-
tisement with the following headline: “Scouting and 4-H Maga-
zines Bring Shooting Message to 5,000,000 Potential Customers.”

Another ad encouraging parents to buy guns for their children
queries, “How old is o] enough?” and concludes:

Age is not the major yardstick. Some youngsters are ready to start at 10, others
at 14, The only real measures are those of maturity and individual responsibility.
Does your ﬁ'_oungster follow directions well? Is he conscientious and reliagle? Would
you leave him alone in the house for two or three hours? Would you send him to
the grocery store with a list and a $20 bill? If the answer to these questions or simi-
lar ones are yes, then the answer can also be yes when your child asks for his first
gun,

I find it absolutely shameful that we are permitting the market-
ing of guns to young children, and I hope that we can begin to get
people who say we will not tolerate this.

e know that rational gun regulations would begin to reduce the
lethality of violence. Senate bill 1882 represents a significant step
toward a comprehensive and sane national gun policy. In addition
to a range of other measures in the bill, I strongly suvport the in-
creased restrictions and requirements on Federal firearms licens-
ing, as well as the ban on semiautomatic assault weapons and Sat-
urday specials, weapons purposefully designed to take human life.

I also believe that licensing and registration represer’ a positive
step in the battle against gun violence. While I question the lawful
purpose of handguns, which constitute approximately one-third of
our gun population and yet are used to commit about 80 percent
of all firearm murders, I certainly believe that imposing account-
ability on handgun ownership is a step in the right (?irection.

Many of the %)Li]ll’s other provisions which I support are so basic
that it is astounding that they require new legislation. For in-
stance, no rational argument exists to oppose the requirement that
guns be manufactureﬂo as to be inoperable by children under the
age of 7.

Firearms are manufactured, like all other consumer products, for
public consumption, and even a curso review of the full text of
the second amendment and Supreme gourt opinions demonstrate
that firearms have no special constitutional status that should dis-
tinguish them from other consumer products. How is it, then, that
we continue to allow a deadly product which injures so many to go
unregulated?

When lawn darts were responsible for the death of three children
in this Nation, they were instantly removed from the market. Why
do we allow guns to stream onto the market and even to be mar-
keted to adolescents and even younger children—according to that
ad, as young as 10?

Finally, there is one part of the bill that I believe should be
modified. I am concerned that the provision that makes it a Fed-
eral crime for a juvenile to possess a firearm would be unfortunate
in its consequences. I firmly believe that no child in this country

29




PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

25

should possess a firearm, cnd I support strong penalties for selling
guns to children. However, I do question whether Federal prosecu-
tion and punishment of children are an effective or appropriate so-
lution to this grave problem.

The Federal judiciary simply is not equif)ped to deal with status
offenders, and to do so in large numbers. I realize that versions of
this provision are also included in the House and Senate crime
bills, and we are also urging the conferees to take a close look at
those provisions for the same reasons.

I want to applaud what you are doing in introducing this bill. We
support it strongly and we will be working with you to see if we
can't bring some sanity and some safety to the children of America.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Edelman follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARIAN WRIGHT EDELMAN

Good morning, Mr. Chairman. | appreciate the opportunity to testify this morn-
ing. And I thank both you, Mr. Chairman, and you, Senator Metzenbaum, for your
leadership on these critical issues.

Violence has become a routine aspect of many of our children’s lives becanse we
adults have failed miserably in our most basic responsibility—protecting our chil-
dren. Between 1979 and 1991, almost 50,000 American children were killed by guns.
That is rou%hly equal to the number of American battle casualties in the Vietnam
war. The toll is rising: in 1991 alone—the most recent year for which we have com-
plete data—5,356 children and youths died from gunshot injuries. At least one
American child now is killed with a gun every two hours—the equivalent of a
classroomful of children every two days.

Thoussnds more children are injured by gunfire. Although we do not know the
exact numbers, the Centers for Disease Control estimate that there are five non-
fatal gunshot injuries for every fatal one. That works out to over 26,000 children
and youths injured by gunfire in 1991 alone.

Hundreds of thousands mo:c children are neither killed nor physically injured,
thank God, but still are grievously harmed every day by the pervasive violence
around them, by lesing parents or siblings or classmates, by having to sleep in bath-
tubs for cover, by losing much of their childhood and all of their innocence to this
immoral and disgusting tidal wave of violence that reaches all corners of our society
but particularly afflicts certain poor and minority snd inner-city communities.

_.n incident here in the District this past weekend underlines both the physical
and emotional threat our children are facing. According to the Washington Post
(March 21, 1994, pages D1, D3), this past Sunsay afternoon, three men began shoot-
ing at a group of men playing cards on a street corner, wounding two. The Post re-
ported that one of the assailants “appeared to open fire without regard for severat
young children scampering about or riding bicycles nearby. * * * ” One of those ch '-
dren was nine year old Lashawnda Henson. She describeg'seeing one of the gunmen
pull out his gun and start shooting. “He didn’t aim at me,” she said.

Lashawnda’s three year old sister, Keisha, also was at the scene, also on a bike.
As the gunman began to back away, still firing off shots, he bumped into Keisha
and knocked her down.

Sunday was a beautiful spring day here in the District, a day when children
should be outdoors playing without worry. Lashawnda and Keisha and their play-
mates were not physically injured by tkis incident. But, they were emotionally nurt.
Children are bein forceg’ to seize the pleasures of play—of being children—at great
risk. Unfortunately, today, Lashawnda and Keisha are not alone. Millions of our
children face the same frightening experiences and the same fears. Lashawnda and
Keisha and every child in our nation, including in our nation’s Capitol, must be able
to play without?('ear of being shot and without witnessing bloodshed on every corner.

he ugly, malignant tumor of violence devouring erican communities has
sgread to younger and younger children. Twice as many American children under
the age of 10 were killed bf’ firearms in 1991 as American soldiers were killed in
the Persian Gulf and Somalia combined. Just the 560 American 10- to 14-year-old
children who died from guns in 1990 were twice the number of handgun deaths of
citizens of all ages in all of Sweden, Switzerland, Japan, Canada, Great Britain, and
Australia coinbined that year.

In this nation’s undeclared civil war, the majority of murders are committed not
by strangers but by family members. neighbors, or acquaintances. Where the race
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of murderers is known, about 83 percent of the murderers of Whites are White and
about 94 percent of the murderers of Blacks are Black. The national plague of vio-
lence transcends racial boundaries and is far more likely to strike at home than on
the streets.

And, most murders involve guns. In 1992, nearly 70 percent of the homicides re-
ported by the F.B.I. involved firearms. Firearms account for virtually the entire in-
crease over the last several gears in the homicide rate for children and youths. For
example, from 1985 to 1990, the non-firearm homicide rate remained’ essentially
constant for 15- to 19-year-olds; during those same four years, the firearm homicide
rate for that age group increased by almost 150 percent.!

An increasing share of juveniles alsc is acquiring and usini firearms. Despite a
declining juvenile population, juvenile arrests for murder rose y almost 93 percent
between 1982 and 1991. By contrast, arrests for murder among individuals lg years »
of age and older grew by less than 11 percent. Approximately 80 percent of juvenile
murders now involve firearms.

Escalating violence against and by children and youths is no coincidence. It is the
cumulative and convergent manifestation of a range of serious and too-long ne-
glected problems: epidemic child and famil overty, increasing economic inequality,
racial intolerance, pervasive drug and alco o? abuse, violence in our homes and pop-
ular culture, and growing numbers of out-of-wedlock births and divorces. Add to
these crises hordes of lonely and neglected children and youths left to fend for them-
selves by absentee parents in all races and income oups, gangs of inner-city and
minority youths relegated to the cellar of American life without education, jobs, or
hope, andy easy access to deadlier and deadlier firearms, and you face the social and
spiritual disintegration of American society that confronts us today.

What are the family values in the richest nation on earth that let one in five, or
14.6 million, of our children live in poverty in 1992—five million more than in 1973?
How much concern do we have for the future when young families with children
of all races saw their median income plunge nearly one-third between 1973 and
19907 What does national security mean when an estimated three million children
witness parental violence every year, and a child is reported abused and neglected
every 13 seconds? How can we expect the 100,000 children who are homeless every
nigr},\t and have no place to call their own to respect the homes and property of oth-
ers?

We have not valued millions of our children’s lives and so they do not value ours
in a socie(t{y in which they have no social or economic stake. Countless youths are
imprisoned by lack of skills in inner-city neighborhvods where “the future” means
surviving the day and living to 18 is a triumph. Their neglect, abuse, and mar-
ginalization by parents, schools, communities, and our nation turned them first to
and against each other in gangs and then against a society that would rather im-
prison than educate them.

While we have declined to invest in our children over the last two decades, we
also have saturated their lives with images of glorified violence. I am not referring
just to violent entertainment programming either. With the local news vying to
cover the bloodiest crime in the most graphic manner, many adults, let alone chil-
dren, have the sense that violent crime is even more routine than it actually is.

Having imbued millions of youths with a sense of hopelessness and surrounded
them with a culture of violence, we then gave them easy access to guns. We adults
let gun manufacturers flood the market with guns of growing lethality; we even let
those guns be marketed to children. More than 200 million guns are in private cir-
culation in America. Millions of new guns, many of them with mass-market avail- a
ability, ente: our communities each year. In fact, these days, you can get a Saturdaly
night special for about the price of a text book. You ofter: can get a license to sell
guns with less hassle than it takes to get a driver's license and can buy, across the
counters of some of our largest chain stores, a gun as readily as a toaster—actually,
more readily, since the safety of toasters is re%'ulated. .

Passage of the Brady bill, for which I applaud lyou, was an important first step
towards a rational gun policy. However, there still is a long way to go. While we
work to effect critical long term changes to improve the lives of American children,
we also must work to reduce the current easy access to more and more techno-
logically advanced and increasingly cheaper non-sForting firearms. It is our only
hope for reducing the number of children who will be killed tomorrow, and next
week, and next year, our only means of ensuring that a black eye or a cut, rather
than multiple bullet wounds, will be the consequence of a spat.

'From 1985 to 1990, the firearm homicide rate for 15- to 19-year-olds increased from 5.8/
100,000 to 14.0/100,000. By contrast, the non-firearm homicide rate increased from 2.8/100,000

to 3.1/100,000.
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In order to reduce the lethality, the deadliness, of violence we must get guns off
our streets, add out of our schools, and out of our homes. Firearms are virtually the
only unregulated dangerous consumer product in the United States. Indeed, al-
though our nation regulates the safety of countless products including children’s
teddy bears, blankets, toys, and pajamas, it does not regulate the safety of a product
that kills and injures tens of thousands of children and other citizens each year.

We must not continue to elevate the interests of one industry that traffics in
lethality above our children’s survival, How can we speak to children about values
yet let millions of dollars be made selling guns to them? The September 1991 issue
of the National Shooting Sports Foundation’s official newsletter contains an adver-
tisement with the following headline: “Scouting & 4-H Magazines Bring Shooting
Message to 5,000,000 Potential Customers.” Another ad encouraging parents to buy
guns for their children queries, “How old is old enough?” and concludes:

Age is not the major yardstick. Some youngsters are ready to start at 10,
others at 14. The only real measures are those of maturity and individual
responsibility. Does your youngster follow directions well? Is he conscien-
tious and reliable? Would you leave him alone in the house for two or three
hours? Would you send him to the grocery store with a list and a $20 bill?
If the answer to these questions or similar ones are “yes” then the answer
can also be “yes” when your child asks for his first gun.

We know that rational gun regulations would begin to reduce the lethality of vio-
lence. S. 1882 represents a significant step towards a comprehensive and sane na-
tional gun policy. In addition to a range of other measures in the bill, I strongly
support the increased restrictions and requirements on federal firearms licenses, as
well as the ban on semiautomatic assault weapons and Saturday night specials,
weapons purposefully designed to take human life.

1 also believe that licensing and registration represent a positive step in the battle
against gun violence. While I question the lawful purpose of handguns, which con-
stitute approximately one-third of Americe’s gun population and yet are used to
commit about 80 percent of all firearm murders, I certainly believe that imposing
accountability on handgun ownership is a step in the right direction.

Masny of the bill's other provisions, which I support, are so basic that it is as-
tounding that they require new legislation. For instance, no rational argument ex-
ists to oppose the requirement that guns be manufactured so as to be inoperable
by children under the age of seven.

Firearms are manufactured, like all other consumer products, for public consump-
tion. As even a cursory review of the full text of the Second Amendment and Su-
preme Court opinions demonstrates, firearms have no special constitutional status
that should distinguish them from other consumer products. How is it, then, that
we allow a product responsible for the deaths and injuries of thousands of Ameri-
cans each year to go unregulated? When lawn darts were res onsible for the deaths
of three children in this nation, they were instantly remove from the market. Yet
we allow firearms to stream onto t{\e market and even to be marketed to adoles-
cents.

I urge you to consider a system of regulation that would hold guns at least to the
safety standards of other dangerous consumer products. We cannot continue to ig-
nore that tens of thousands of American children's lives are being destroyed by gun
violence, that hundreds of thousands of our children are growing up—those who are
lucky—hoping to survive until their 18th or 21st birthdays.

Finally, there is one part of the bill that should be modified. I am concerned about
the provision that makes it a federal crime for a juvenile to possess a firearm. Make
no mistake, I firmly believe that no child in this country sﬁould possess a firearm
and I support penalties for selling guns to children. However, I question whether
federal prosecution and punishment of children are an effective or appropriate solu-
tion to this grave problem. The federal judiciary simply is not equipped to deal with
status offenders, and to do so in large numbers. I realize that versions of this provi-
sion also are included in the House and Senate crime bills and we also are urging
the conferees to take a close look at those provisions for the same reason.

We personally and collectively must stru gle to reclaim our nation’s soul and to
give back to our children a sense of hope and security, a belief in American fairness,
and an ability to dream about, envision, and work towards a future that is attain-
able and real. We must fill our children with the joy and the promise of life, not
the lack of opportunity and the crippling fear that so many enccunter. The Ounce
of Prevention pieces, included in both the House and Senate crime bills are critically
important an(FI urge the conferees to include those provisions in the final bill. We
also must stop the gun violence so that, while they are young, children can experi-
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ence what has become the luxury of a childhood, and so that they may have the
opportunity to grow up to be healthy, productive adults,

Senator SIMON. We thank you, Ms. Edelman.
Dr. Wright?

STATEMENT OF DR. JOSEPH L. WRIGHT

Dr. WRIGHT. Good morning, Mr. Chairman and subcommittee
members. My name is Joseph Wright. I am assistant director of the
Emergency Medical Trauma Center at Children’s National Medical
Center here in Washington. I am also an assistant professor of pe-
diatrics at George Washington University School of Medicine and
Health Sciences.

I am here today re resenting the American Academy of Pediat-
rics, an association of over 47,000 pediatricians who are dedicated
to gromoting the health, safety amfwell-bein of infants, children,

adolescents. This testimony is also endorsed by over 1,500
members of the Ambulatory Pediatric Association representing pe-
diatric academicians and child health professionals.

I would like to thank you and the committee members for this
opportunity to appear before you today on behalf of the academy,
as well as the countless other health professionals working on the
front lines in our Nation’s emergency departments and trauma cen-
ters.

Public health nomenclature defines an epidemic as any condition,
biologic or social, the occurrence of which is clearly in excess of nor-
mal expectation. Make no mistake about it, Mr. Chairman, to reit-
erate what my fellow academy member, Dr. Elders, has already
stated, violence in America is a public health problem, a problem
of epidemic proportions raging out of control. The prime contributor
to the carnage in our homes, on our streets and in our communities
is firearm-related violence.

Mr. Chairman, over the past 10 years I have worked in emer-
gency departments of Brooklyn, NY; Newark, NJ ; and here “in
Washington, DC. I have witnessed firsthand the tremendous toll
exacted on our young people by this epidemic of violence.

No matter how many times we hear the numbers, they are still
staggering: over 200 million firearms in America, as you have al-
ready heard, including 1 million semiautomatic weapons which in-
clude Uzis, TEC-9’s, MAC-10’s, street sweepers, guns whose only
purpose is to maim and kill; an estimated 70 million handguns in
this country. That is almost one gun for every child in this country.

According to the Bureanu of Alcohoi, Tobacco and Firearms, a new
handgun is produced in this country every 20 seconds. During the
time that it will take to conduct this hearing, throughout America
14 people, including 2 children, will be shot dead.

While shocking, it is not totally surprising that 1 in 6 pediatri-
cians has reported treating a child wounded by a firearm. At Chil-
dren’s National Medical Center, we have experienced an 800-per-
cent increase in pediatric firearm injuries treated through our trau-
ma center since 1985.

The National Center for Health Statistics has documented more
deaths from firearms in the adolescent age group than from all nat-
ural causes combined. In a true epidemiologic turnaround indic-
ative of an escalating nationwide epidemic, that same agency just
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last month reported that gunshot wounds have surpassed motor ve-
hicle accidents as the leading mechanism of fatal injury in 6 States.

However, mortality statistics don’t merely tell the entire story;
they merely represent the tip of the iceberg. For every childhood
death as a result of violent injury, another 40 children are hospital-
ized and over 1,100 are treated in emergency departments. The
yearly direct cost of acute and trauma care for victims of firearms
injuries exceeds $1 billion, 80 percent of which is paid for by tax-
payer dollars. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention con-
servatively estimates that the lifetime costs of long-term care and
lost productivity are in the neighborhood of $15 billion annually.

Moreover, these statistics gon’t reflect the human tragegy of
young lost lives, unrealized potential, and family and community
devastation. Witnesses of violence are also deeply affected, and
children are particularly vulnerable. Children exposed to violence
may suffer from the same post-traumatic stress disorder first iden-
tified among Vietnam soldiers. Such exposure can result in flash-
backs, diminished ability to concentrate in school, sleep disturb-
ances, and a fatalistic orientation to the future which can lead to
high-risk-taking behavior.

ile it has long been recognized that the unique developmental
and maturational factors of adolescence often lead to high-risk be-
haviors amongst these children, the additional variable of posses-
sion of or access to a gun can turn a trivial situation into a lethal
encounter. In fact, as we have heard, studies have found that a
firearm in the home is associated with a fivefold increase in the
likelihood of a suicide occurring in that household and a nearly
threefold increase in the likelihood of a homicide occurring. These
odds are tremendously increased in households with a history of
domestic violence. Another study recently published by Dr. Arthur
Kellerman and Associates in the New England Journal found that
a firearm in the home is 43 times more likely to kill a family mem-
ber than to kill an intruder. :

When physicians encounter an epidemic, they look for a causal
agent and try to eradicate it, control it, or at least protect people
from it. In the case of violence in America, the causal agents are
numerous and complex, but in the case of firearm violence the le-
thal agent is clear. It is the gun, particularly the handgun.

Handguns constitute about one-fourth of guns kept in U.S.
homes, but account for about three-quarters of all firearms deaths
and injuries. Looking just at firearm deaths amongst American
teenagers, 73 percent of teenage homicides due to firearms involved
handguns, and of teenage suicides due to firearms, 70 percent in-
volved handguns.

To protect our country’s children from this firearms epidemic, the
American Academy of Pediatrics believes that handguns should be
eliminated from the environment in which children live and play.
We support a ban on handgun, deadly airguns and assault weap-
ons. As an interim step, we also support other measures to reduce
the availability of these firearms and to reduce the destructive
power of handgun ammunition.

The academy advises its member to counsel patients and their
parents about the dangers of having a gun in the home, es eciall
a handgun, and to advise removal of guns from the housegold. f
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families choose to keep a gun, we urge that it be stored securely.
In addition, we support efforts to reduce the glamorization of gun
use in the popular media, an issue on which the academy has
worked closely with Senator Simon.

In general, the academy supports the Gun Violence Prevention
Act of 1994, as introduced by Senator Metzenbaum and others. In
particular, the bill's gun licensing and registration provisions, in-
creased regulation of gun dealers, assault weapons ban, and other
provisions intended to reduce the availability of firearms should
?elp to protect our Nation’s children from the epidemic of gun vio-
ence.

To illustrate, please allow me to relate a classic historical exam-
ple used as a teaching case in schools of public health across the
country. In the 18th century, Dr. John Snow, the father of modern
epidemiology, mapped the homes of victims of a cholera epidemic
in London. He observed that the stricken citizenry lived in areas
served by a particular water pump. He was able to stop the epi-
demic by disabling the pump, giving health authorities the oppor-
tunity to track down and treat the underlying pollution problem be-
fore more people could get sick.

This proven public health research and intervention model must
be applied in the same manner to the handgun violence epidemic.
For those of us working in the trenches of our Nation’s emergency
medical system, we often find ourselves drowning in a sea of young
victims. This act can help to stem the tide so that we can produc-
tively focus our skills and our training on the restoration and pres-
ervation of young lives rather than the salvage of devastated ones.

No one would argue that guns themselves cause violent behavior,
but until the underlying social and economic problems can be ad-
dressed we can do something to limit the flow of guns and thereby
reduce the death and injury they incur. The Gun Violence Preven-
tion Act will help to stem the supply of weapons flowing into our
communities by banning certain assault weapons, by making it
more difficult for individuals to purchase guns on behalf of others,
by enhancing the regulation of firearms dealers, by limiting pur-
chases (tio one gun per month, and by requiring firearm thefts to be
reported.

In_addition, the legislation will help to keep guns out of the
hands of criminals and make it illegal to transfer guns to juveniles.
By requiring gun safety education as a condition of getting a li-
cense to own a gun, by making it illegal for adults to leave a loaded
handgun where a juvenile could gain access to it, and by requiring
manufacturers to include safety devices on firearms, the bill should
also help to prevent unintentional firearms injuries and deaths.

Now is the time for Congress to take action against the epidemic
of firearm death and injury amongst our Nation’s youth. Not only
will you have pediatricians behind you, but the public as well. A
recent survey conducted for the Joyce Foundation by Louis Harris
Research found that 77 percent of adults believe that young peo-
ple’s safety is endangere(f by the widespread presence of guns. One
in five parents reported that they have known or know a child who
has been wounded or killed by another child who had a gun. Not
incidentally, the survey also showed that by a margin of 52 percent
to 43 percent, Americans favor a Federal law banning the owner-
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slf'}ilp of all handguns, except by those given permission in a court
of law.

In my remaining few moments, I would like to leave you with an
anecdote that haunts me each and every day that I continue to en-
counter young victims of violence in my place of work. Just at the
end of the last school year, I cared for two young boys who had
been shot in a well-publicized incident at a public swimmin%k pool
here in the District of Columbia. Their injuries were not life-threat-
ening and after initial trauma stabilization, I took some time to
talk with the youngsters alone.

I was struck by the impassivity and mundane nature with which
they described their ordeal. It was as if being shot was as ordinary
as walking down the street. With great animation and bravado,
they told me about routinely hearing gunshots and about witness-
ing acts of violence in their neighborhood. However, more quietly,
they both admitted fearfulness about returning to the community
center where the incident had occurred. It was then that I realized
that for many of our youngsters the issue is net so much the fear
of death, but more so the fear of how to continue living.

Once again, I would like to thank you for allowing me this oppor-
tunity to share the views and concerns of the American Academ
of Pediatrics on this crucial issue. The academy applauds your ef-
forts to curtail gun violence in our society through the Gun Vio-
lence Prevention Act and hopes that Congress will consider even
bolder measures in the future. On behalf of the academy, let me
say that we stand ready to assist you in whatever ways possible.

Thank you.

Senator SIMON. We thank you, Dr. Wright.

Senator Metzenbaum?

Senator METZENBAUM. Those are two of the most magnijficent
statements I have heard since I have been around here. e are
grateful to both of you.

Ms. Edelman, the Children’s Defense Fund has focused on issues
such as education, day care, health care, and welfare. Yet, you re-
cently closed the Annual Conference of the Children’s Defense
Fund by calling for an end to gun violence in America. Has the
problem of gun violence for children become so bad that it is now
an equal or greater priority for the Children’s Defense Fund as
education or health care?

Ms. EDELMAN. Yes, sir; in fact, you know, it is our number one
occupation at the moment. Whenever in the last several years we

have been trying to organize communities or have meetings in the
black community or have meetings with parents to talk about im-
munizations or health care or teenage pregnancy and education,
the issue that they were most concerned about was whether a child
was going to get home from school safely and not be shot.

So the violence issue became such a threshold issue of survival
that we stopped to understand that we had to address what was
a growing emergency in our communities, and we have been
shocked by what we have found. There is a war going on in Amer-
ica and children are primary victims of this war, and we have got
to do something about it.

I mean, he has said it is an epidemic, but it is an emergency that
our children are absolutely terrified and are not aware o how they
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are going to be able to be protected in the middle of neighborhoods
where gunfire is routine. He told an anecdote, but I had an anec-
dote a few weeks ago when I was at a downtown Connecticut Ave-
nue law firm and there was this wonderful young man about the
age of one of my sons, 19, who was a security guard in the lobby,
handsome, well-dressed. I had a nice conversation with him and
when I went up in the elevator with my companion, he said that
young man who has finished high school, is working, had boasted
to him how proud he was that he thought he was going to make
it to 20. I wondered what we had done in America when young
men’s dreams turn to dust so early and his greatest goal in life was
just to live to be 20. We have got to do something to stop the killing
of children in America.

Senator METZENBAUM. I don’t think that the average American
appreciates the challenge and the problem and the fear of some in
the neighborhoods who have to worry about whether their sons or
daughters are coming home. It used to be you would think only of
s%rlls. Now, you think of daughters as well, and it is just unbeliev-
able.

Ms. EDELMAN. It is unbelievable.

Senator METZENBAUM. Yet, I find, and I am saying this to you
frankly, such a terrible, organized campaign to try to keep us from
moving legislation to try to bring it to a halt.

What are the best ways to keep guns out of the hands of chil-
dren, in your opinion?

Ms. EDELMAN. One is to stop guns from being accessible to them.
I mean, many children can walk down to a street corner and get
guns. You know, they are easier to get in many instances than
textbooks or toasters, and so we have got to make these lethal
weapons unavailable to children.

Second, we have got to talk to adults, many of whom, including
parents, think that they are trying to protect their kids, and we
have got to get guns not only out of the hands of children and
where children can get them, but we have got to gel them out of
our homes.

I think parents realize that when they have a gun in the house
they are much more likely to see that gun used against themselves
with suicides, against acquaintances or family members—and one
of the things we are going to start doing is to do a public edu.ation
campaign to say guns don’t protect, they endanger.

I know many parents I hear from now who are not only not
gunowners and don’t have them in their houses, but are very wor-
ried that their children are going to play in other houses where
guns are present. You often used to ask whether the parent was
in the home. Now, you are worrying ahout whether you are sending
your kid off to a neighborhood or to other homes where there may
\calvell be a gun, so we have got an enormous public education job to

0.

The third thing we have got to do is to see that children have
something to do that is positive, that they are engaged in positive
activities, that there are after-school and weekend activities. When-
ever you ask young veople, why did you do something, whether it
was engaging in dru,s or hurt somebody, the most common answer
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you get back is, I didn’t have anything better to do. I think that
is a terrible indictment of American society.

Young people who are hopeful, who feel good about themselves,
who feel that they are learning in school and the schools have high
expectations for them, who feel they are contributing to the com-
munity, who think there is a job out there—you know, they are
much less likely to engage in this because they have got something
to lose. So we have got to control guns, but we have also got to give
young people positive alternatives.

Finally, we have got in our culture to stop glorifying violence. We
- adults have taught young people and children that violence and
guns are the way to feel powerful, the way to feel like you are
somebody. You know, it is ubiquitous in our culture, as you have
all made so clear in your leadership. So, in addition, we adults are
going to have to begin to model different behavior. Children are
doing what we do because we adults use violence as a way of solv-
ing disputes. We glorify deadly weapons in our culture and in our
television programs and in our video games.

So we have got to say “enough,” and if we are going to begin to
get a hold of this plague that is killing so many children, we are
going to have to look at how we resolve conflicts, how we related
to each other, and we are going to have to look at adult conduct
in our homes, abusing each other and our children in our culture.
So this is a very complicated thing that is going to require a com-
prehensive approach, but the first thing, again, is to get rid of the
virus, if you will, and that is the gun.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you, Ms. Edelman.

Dr. Wright, what percentage of firearm deaths are unintentional,
if you know?

Dr. WRIGHT. Overall, 5 percent of firearm deaths are uninten-
tional. However, in the pediatric age group from 0 to age 19, fullly
10 percent of firearm injuries are unintentional and the fifth lead-
ing cause of unintentional injury, so this is not an insignificant
number.

Senator METZENBAUM. As you know, the Gun Violence Preven-
tion Act would require manufacturers to add certain safety devices
to guns, such as child-proof safety devices, load indicators for hand-
gurs, and magazine safeties that prevent guns from firing after the
magazine has been removed, where you leave one bullet in the gun.

Do you think these measures will be effective or helpful in pre-
ventinévunintentional injuries?

Dr. WRIGHT. Yes, I do believe that they will be effective and help-
ful toward preventing unintentional injuries. Children, by nature,
developmentally are curious and prone to high-risk-taking behav-
jor, and these measures will help to negate some of those behaviors
when guns are in the household and accessible to children.

Senator METZENBAUM. Now, you noted that firearm deaths and
injuries cost over $14 billion per year in direct and indirect costs.
Are you in a position to sort of explain how that comes about or
how you calculated that number?

Dr. WRIGHT. That was a figure published by the Centers for Dis-
ease Control and Prevention relating to injuries in 1985. It reiates
to not only direct costs, but long-term costs of lost productivity and
the costs of rehabilitation and long-term care.
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I would say that since that time the costs have escalated, cer-
tainly, since 1985 and that figure is probably—I stated during the
testimony it was a conservative estimate—is probably more on the
order of $16 to $20 billion annualiy.

Senator METZENBAUM. You touch on this in your testimony, but
I wonder if you could elaborate on what it is like being a pediatric
surgeon dealing with gun injuries in emergency rooms across the
country today. Have your experiences in recent years changed over
time f;'om what they were when you first became a practicing phy-
sician?

Dr. WRIGHT. Absolutely. If I can address the second part of your
question first, when I first came to Washington to Children’s Hos-
pital in 1983, I managed perhaps a handful of gunshot wounds dur-
ing the course of a year. I returned to Washington some 10 years
later and, as I mentioned, the increase was some 800-fold. In 1991,
we treated 132 children with firearm injuries through our trauma
((:lenter, and the burden on our trauma system has been tremen-

ous.

The leading mechanism of injury for children is still the blunt in-
jury, motor vehicle accidents and the like, but the burden placed
on our resources has truly taxed our ability to care for all types of
injured children largely because of the increased burden of firearm
injuries.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you very much. You both have
been superb witnesses and very, very helpful and supportive.
Thank you.

Senator SIMON. I want to join in thanking both of you. Marian
Wright Edelman, I have always been impressed by, and back about
3 years ago, Senator Metzenbaum, when people talked about who
should be a candidate for President of the United States, among
other things I said we ought to be looking at people who aren’t run-
ning, who aren’t thinking about it. I mentioned three or four possi-
bilities and one of them was Marian Wright Edelman. That is how .
highly I think of her.

Dr. Wright, your American Academy was interested in this whole
question of television violence. I got into it accidentally. I found the
group that was out there leading the fight was your academy, and
I want to thank you and the others of your academy for that lead-
ership.

First, before I ask a question, I want to simply repeat one line
from your testimony, Ms. Edelman. “Just the 560 American 10- to
14-year-old children who died from guns in 1990 were twice the
number of handgun deaths of citizens of all ages in all of Sweden,
Switzerland, Japan, Canada, Great Britain and Australia combined
that year.” That is astounding, it really is.

You mentioned how we regulate other things. Mother Jones Mag-
azine had a 2-page spread on teddy bears and how we regulate
teddy bears. Here is a TEC-9, which is now the favorite weapon
of gangs and drug kingpins, and so forth, and this TEC-9 is just
totally unregulated. You know, something is slightly wrong in our
society. I am going to enter that in the record here.

[The information referred to follows:]
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“wins not when we're skillful misers, hut when we're skillful
investors "

* Crackdowns on dissension Leaders from the Florida. Ore.
zon, and lows #ffiliate groups were hauled before a special NRA

“ethics™ conuniitee last vear becatise they questioned the pans

line on priorites and the organization's mounting deficus
Pl Daniels, a lifetime NRA member and president of the
Florida Sport Shoating Association, was suspended
for two years for printing a letter 1n his groups
newsletter that raised questions about the
deficus

* New signs of rebellion David
Edmondson. who reured in Aptil 1993
L as executive director of the NRAW
Texas affiliate. 15 an outspoken
crue of the current leaderships
financial management He 1«
actively organizing a union of
state affilates 10 gain more lever
Y age over headquarters tdmondwan
says that. so far, about eight «iate
groups are muerested 0 the idra "ley
obvious that thev wani the <iate aff Lares
10 keep theit moutht shut he save Thee
have a builtin means of dissenunanng info
mation through their newspapers”

SOME O THL INTLRNAL SIRIFE FLAGUING THE NKA st st
from the comroversial rale plaved by baard member Neal
Knox. whose particular brand of zealotiy was recents docu
mented by the Wall Strert Jaumal Knox likes 1o sav things hke
the wav to solve the crists 11 Somaha w 2 hand out AK 474 1o
the Sumali macses or. the modest 1968 Gun € ontrul Act saimed
4l banning the import of Saturdav-night specialst was based on
alaw originating 1n Nazi Germany

But Knans hard-line stvle mas be out of touch with nweh of
the NRA« rank- and-hile membersiup whieh radionalis encom
patses humers gamesmen. and gun collectors Manv of therr
wauld daubiless vore with the majoris of Americans whe
according 1o tlic recent Harris Poll. ate now willing 1e contem
plae some gun-control measures, whereas to kaox am £un
wenitol 1 lantamonn o lull surrender He and atlier NRA 1 ue
behevers ate adherents o an absolutist nner preration of the See
ond Ainendmient that even lormer Supreme Court Cinel Jusu ¢
Warren Burger a pun awner and a conservative has denounced
avalraud on fac legal scholars have repeatedis pinicd ot
that the amendmem contams ne substanmal bartiers 1. lederal
ate. ot leaal gun control lawe See wdelar oppasite page 1

Pt the SR e polur abrernian changing all oo cadicalis
Foedvoades she e succesdulls hlovked evien misdest
U St kat and intumdan
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LiLfe without guns.

THE SECOND’S MISSING HALF (e

A well regulated Militia, being necessary to the denounced the NRA' edited version  \ERRTDIIST RS guns
security of a free State, the right of the people to of the amendment as a “fravd.” . mday. .
keep and bear Arms, shall not be infringed. The legal precedents sre clear. Almost i

—Second Amendment, US. Constitution any state or local gun-control action 13 fine;
the Secand Amendment does not apply On the federa

Emblazoned across the front of the NRA headquarters In Jewel, only laws intarfering with 1ate militias are prohibited.
‘Washington, 0.C .15 half of this smendment—ehe second There's really no legal problam with gun control at all. As
Hal. It's & testament €0 how well the NRA does its ob that s legendary sports figure once Fowted out.in & different
most Amencans Frobably don't know aboct the firt half, context, “You covld loak it up ' On tha other hand, most
with ity €lunky and iInconvenient dependent clause. But that's Amencans (54 percent) don't want to, since they now agree
how the Founding Fathers wrote it. The NRA's reasons for with the seatement, “Although the Constitution provides
focuting on ity backtide are (airly obrlous, but what do the the nght to bear arms, American tociety has thu\_ged to the
courts 18y about the Second Amendment? poins that It Is t0o dangerous for dus right to continue a3

According to jon S. Vernick and Stephen P. Teret of johns onginsily written.” At this paant. the NAA might want to
Hopkins Universiy inury Pravention Center, the Suprame <conslder putting the front end of that amendmaent back vp
Court has examined two broad issues Involving the amend- st headquarters. tt could be worse.

rrant’s reach The first i whether the amendment controls
federal law Only Oc whether It afto tan be extended
0 the stace and local levels. The second s whether it W . i A . L S e
pratects individual nghts to own firearms, or only col- R STie. FAMILY VAU_"ES- .
Jective, “mtitia” Aghts . .} - A1992brochurw posi

. . . tonlng the "new* NEA
©On the firtt question, the Caurt ruled definltively in N . s fan for a1l the fumiy
. X ¥, fratures Exedtiyve Vier
“means no More than (the Nght to keep and bear o N\ Preudent Wayne )
arm) shall not be infringed by Congress.” This 1876 rul- Y " LiPierre andmascot
ing established that states and localities are not prevent- [ - B - Edawe Eagle ‘“"““'“’“’ .
«dfrom their own g trol | d they ' [ - brplarful chidren. ©
*tnude, free seminry are
offered to womenwho' -
- . . -awi Grearmy“for velf-
concept nf a state's Nghts, a3 1t were, ta control gurs, and . < .7 7§ protécuop.tand reads :

Unned States v Crutkshonk that the amendment

remain free to do 10 to this day

In 1086, in Prasser v. llincis, the Court reaffirrned the

this position has never been modified. Therefore. it re- X . . emaréurgedtovote
maing the Court’s 1ast word on the subject. Lower courts . b \ for pro-gun "l“'“‘"f-
have timie and again held to this precedent.

Regarding the vecund broad question of ndividuat verius
state-nutitia rights. the Court held in ity 1139 Unnted Stotes
v Muller deciston that individuals have in effect no right to A .
keep and bear arms under the amendment, but only & col- . Womien & Gunt,
lective right having “10nie reasonable nl;uunmlp to the .7 only yusmagazme

M 1 1 s rd-u-d by and for
s i T puflished
by the Second
. Amendment Foingtas
‘The Supreme Court most recently revisited this question tion in Belevue, . ©
in 1980, when it reconfirmed that “thete tegidlstive rastric. . Washington and tells

tlons o the use of firrarms do nat trench ujon sy constitu: - the gtaffride how 1o
.. packithe beat, al

courts have conuistently applied the Milier deisionin
upholding varous gun control laws over the yesrs.

4 " it P

tonally pi liberties " One sig part of that case .. about new produsts,
is that then Chief justice Burger and current Chael justice and the'Tatest in fegal
Rehnquist both supported that interpretation. Surger has N seH-defense ssuen,

N T . . .o . CE - o
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without guns.

R D
L I ABILIT Y

_ For aver 3 doten years, Stephen  Taret has bean rosearch:

o Ing and thintdng about gun violence In America. In his

posrtion s director of the Johns Hopkins Unirerity Injury

Feevention Ceonter, Teret has become Interested in the

question of whether weapons manufacturers can be hetd
lable for the damage their products cause people.
One promusing area would be to hold gunmakers
atcountasle for making their guns as safe as possible
“There are things that could be done with exuting tech-
nology to make handguns safer.” says Teret, “and reduce

dramatically certa:n types of tragic
shootings-—such a1 the chitd who
plays with a parent’s gun, a teenager
who commits suicide. or an owner
shot with his awn gun by an 1atruder.

“The way to do this I¢ to pervonal.
{z¢ the gun to the owner. The low.
tech way 13 to provide a combination
lock cn the gun. The owner 11 the
only person who knows the combs-
nation, 10 when 1t 13 locked” no ane
ehe can shoot it

*The high tech way wwvolves
Fivmyuanold Anttiomy Bolin Implanung an electrical component

“was tpe victim of x rang Bl o receptor in the gun that o aco

d”:‘d‘":;h‘,"kwﬁ:l::a“m vated only by & transmicter that the
owner keeps in a bracelet or nng

“Gune can easily be chlid-proofed in thess or other
ways," adds Teret. "In fact. Smith & Wesson used to sell a
‘child-prouf model. Now, however, they are pushing their

LadySmith handgun on young women, bir they are nat
child-proofed sven though common sense 1ays a lot of
these young women are going to be around children $o
the question «, will the company be hable when tometh:ng
tervible happens?

“‘Who has moral blame? The shooter 01 the manulac-
turer, or bath' What abcut the board of direntors of the
company making the guns® They are discharqing a poltu.
_ - ant Into the ttream of commerce They make decisions

- that have life-and-drath imphcatiom for other people. but
they niake them o the basis of profit and loss, because of

the lack of cegulation by the government.™

SURGEON GENERAL'S ADVISORY
The NRA' position is irresponsibie. NRA mern.
bers think oniy of themielves.,
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 claims ‘that Clinton’s. -
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CYBERACTIVISHM

Mother fones wwites all readers who have £

ail aceess 10 Internet to
pattitipate 1 an electronic discustion uf gun violente and what can
be dune to stop It, beginning fanuary §, 1994 1t will be the fine ol
wl.al we hope will be regularty scheduled events condut ted by Mutih
e Jones Interactive, the electronir complement to Mother jonel
magarne

To take p2rt in the discustion, simply access alt matherjones on
Usenet, or subscribe to motherjones-tist {linked to the news group)
by serding € ma-l with “help” In the message t2 ltservera
Itopnes com

While you're on bne, you 1an read (ur reeead) artules Trutn liach

Waaes talb bk fo edetors amt weetery and o oo 2l

veriat with other ceaders You ¢an also find informuation on sub-

scriptions, writens' guidelines and editorul, art, and publshing

internships
Tu learn more about Mother joncs tuteraitove, seno E-mail tu
mojones-mfo@@ige.org. or lind us at une of the (ollowing tocatinns:
*+ Internet tervic
F TP, kp.mojones.com: Gophe
WAIS, searchable: wait.mojunes 1om, WWW, www majanes com
(also contains sonie images)
+ Other services
IGC networks, mutherjunes eonfereace The WELL, mogor

fme Dot e P

searchable gopher mojones.com,

s cune

foar

o

I
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L.A. chapter of .
uthful:;ffenders;
We dep_lo'rc alt of
.it. And when .
-something l.x.ic_i_ebus-'
"happcns, which ét i
does, in t.hg
morniné pap_er. or:
on thc-;acws. th':e'n_.
we-ﬁ_u.zr'ter' ;
sométh'ing,—._xr) )
;)bscene |oath_§ng
we dare not .
enunciaic:__
Animals.
Scum.
BY .
BIQHARD e
RODRIGUEZ

At left, ging member Chivn
teaches his daughter to hotd s gun
har mother lookt on, A rival gang

has tried to kit Chuvo several ime
once while he was carrying b 2ot

Photograpl;é by
* Joseph Rodriguez




JOSEPH RODRIGUEZ
has been recording the hves
of Latino gang menbers
and thewr Gmhes in East
L.A tar the past mightren
manths Hicwark won »
1§9) Muthes | ne lnterns
G a Fune

Ser page 184
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. T ' he child's defiance

is most interesting

to the city. The stanc.
the dress, the music of
the outsider exercise
erotic appeal.

A member of the Rock Maea gang
Shaws hit gang 1ign whil hewg
boaked far drug posse othe
FatL A sherfty statmn
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art of the turn-on
of these photos is
that we can stare
without fear of
being killed. None of
us should stare at
such faces in real life.

Aot o iew ann

[RULER

w ther

i~ bam ipue

no evan icad g stakee

Nlenaan Minooean e vl

N

spanah Hative And 3 Liee
[ TN S T AL NI, WS N T S TNRTOCIE R

ot

Al fght IRe chaolw scene
[N secunds aRer 3 gang member
war bl o 8 drive-by shootng 1
May 1991 The boy tying on the
dewalk 100k hive Buliets but

Lved Photographer Jue
Redripuer narromty avoided
being A ay welt
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to subhumanity. But
when this child falls, he
leaks blood. They are

not monsters, after all.

Cotaptee b 1

andnn an e

o derwt s n badie s ncighs st

An Evergreen Boys gang member gea
2 haweul while chilaren play Anocher
Cre-green branduhes & toy gun

e
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.an
interview
“with
;o‘/celyn
elders

by’
‘ken

- wom Gt b dhvnk blosaorg
!

BRHCTIONS s the vprdem-

W s she aalfe il pun nvhmv,

frank sndsoprmonated, she told us

wiht .\n'u-n\ ans peed e de s—mis
Q@ The \J'.u‘h_m.ll Conters i‘fv_ Dseast € onteol ‘m.xl Pre
- yertton tecentdy sad that vun rehaed duaths and injuries
mul\c gun vwlenee one of the major pubhe health hazards

40 the coumgy Do s

A Yesd do” Homiude, ul(rn u\\nhmr, puns st disvase:

lh:l( s the leddisg cause of Yeath for souny black men.and
" the secand-feading cause, ol death for gl puuph aged bi-
teen to ety lnur Th.umuln; i the leading hiealth ssue,
p1mcu}.1rlv whun ups are used combunation wuh

drugs and. a(cohol And the stanstics show that s most

_often lhe cdse. Guos kil more lchgus thau tht dther by,
klllcrs-—hoau diseaie. <ancer; and ALDS —combmnid.
- Q:What dois tha ldl"_-uu about Ameriea? -

sad e proamgic b |.|h cliteatien angd

Creadily avatbahle

A Tha tetls

fust o s, N ’

el s g L oo adwible anid wo

_'rh‘rn: Jee over A0 unthon

Lyt 10 our R — ll‘x.n_s' st the Tegal ones, the, :
Srrd we Rt aboul Tygts o seearids, another gunis
prud\h i And cvera fourecs minuivs, ~ome persan

AV dies from g infhoed koo, :

Q Your two plul;u*wuu Doctors Keop and Novelli, -
had yood snrcntons as smgmns sencral In Roups ise, be
wib sl\\mmd by Reagin who didngwant 10 .KH)U\\]LdL,L
AIDS Apd dne abways felt that .\u\dlus bieart w lS in ‘hl._
right place bt that shé never had (-u)q,c Bushs car. How -
do tou infend to Bse yout posiion?

CA e preny much ghedys used my posmun; as g bully .
pulpll What that means 1s strongly ml\uu.mn!, for the .
lhmgsl feel are reatly nmportant. Gun violetice, o me, is”
the huphest-prioraty; public-health 1ssue, and Fhave {0 make ©

sure Congress s aware of 11, the Amernican po.oph. arc

. aware of @, the president js awate of i, and “thiat wie alt

"SURGEON GENERALS WARNING

Guns are he azardous to your health..

10 HARILLGERnA ATANON
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Fvery public issue reaches aeritical powt,
For pun control, that moment is now

FRIENDS
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Senator SIMON. Ms. Edelman, you mentioned that one of the
things we ought to do is to get those guns out of homes, but there
is fear out there and as a result of fear a lot of people are buying
thos;?guns. What do you say to a parent who wants to protect that
child?

Ms. EDELMAN. Well, it is a hard issue because, you know, there
is a lot of fear and there is a lot of reason to fear, but I think that
we have just got to get a community conversation going, which is
why we want to begin to have parents think, because many parents
who have bought guns, or are thinking about guns, are doing so be-
cause they think that that is the best thing for their children.

So we have got to give them the facts to say, as much as you are
bringing this gun into your house in order to defend your children
against outside intruders, the greater likelihood is that that gun is
going to be used against someone that you know or in an accident
or in a suicide by a family member. So we have got to start that
conversation and have parents begin to think.

Second, I think that parents would agree that guns in the hands
of children is not sometking that we want to see go on in this soci-
ety. As we look at polls, I think more and more people are begin-
ning to understand that guns endanger rather than protect. So I
think we have got to get a real community conversation going and
have us deal with this hard issue. Once they know the facts that
you are 43 times more likely to have a gun in your home used
against a family member or an acquaintance or be used for suicide
or accident, I think they will begin to say that we have got to find
another way and that guns are not the solution; they are part of
the problem.

Senator SIMON. To simply say you are going to hide a gun—I can
remember hiding Christmas gifts and our children discovering the
Christmas gifts. Kids are very ingenious and they are going to be
finding guns if they are hidden in a home or if you try to keep
them out of the hands of children.

Ms. EDELMAN. Absolutely. Again, the data speaks for itself, but,
you know, there are 7,257 accidental killings from guns in homes,
and when I looked at suicides I was really quite amazed. Children
are terribly creative and imaginative, and all of us know how they
have ransacked every nook and cranny of our house. So, again, we
have just got to sort of say guns should not be kept in houses and
geé parents to begin to think about other ways of protecting their
kids.

Senator SiMON. Dr. Wright, in the next panel we are going to
have a physician from California who is a member of a group called
Doctors for Responsible Gun Ownership who is opposed to any gun
control laws. Do you think you represent the majority of physicians
or is his position representing the majority of physicians?

Dr. WRIGHT. Well, certainly those of us who are advocates for
child health and are consciously in the forefr .t for children’s
health would stand behind the position that the academy has pre-
sented with regard to reducing the, accessibility and availability of
firearms to children. I would just echo what Ms. Edelman has al.
ready said that there is sound, well-done research particularly by
Dr. Kellerman, whom you will hear from later. and his colleagues
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to back up and support all the data and the facts that we have tes-
tified to before you this morning.

Senator SIMON. Did the American Academy of Pediatrics—was
this a close vote? I don’t know how you make your decisions. Was
thigla? controversial matter or was this something you arrived at
easily?

Dr. WRIGHT. No, I don’t think it was a terribly controversial mat-
ter. I think that for those of us in the academy, again, we simply
stand by “do what is best for the children.” That is our bottom line
motto, so that this legislation is, in our view, something that will
reduce the accessibility and availability of firearms to kids and it
is the right thing to do.

Senator SIMON. Let me ask one question, finally, of both of you
and then I will yield to my colleague. My mail is probably typical
of other Members of the Senate and Members of the House. Even
though my position on gun issues is very clear, as the NRA re-
minds everyone every time I am up for ef'ection, the mail I get is
still very strongly against any kind of gun control legislation.

It is fine for you, Dr. Wright, and you, Ms. Edelman. to be h.re
and testify, but, real candidly, we are not getting letters from the
pediatricians, from the supporters of the Children’s Defense Fund,
saying we ought to have some kind of control over this proliferation
of weapons.

You mentioned, Dr. Wright, the polling numbers. The public as
a whole clearly supports getting a hold of this thing, but the public
as a whole is not letting their feelings be known, as our friends in
the NRA are, to Members of the Senate and the House.

How do we generate some response that can make a difference?
We are sometimes too responsive to that mail here in the U.S. Sen-
ate. Do either one of you want to tackle that?

Ms. EpELMAN. Well, 1 will be glad to tackle it. This is a new
issue for us, but I will tell you that I think that if we are going
to have the kind of stringent gun control measures that we need
in this country, we are going to have to build a mass movement
that demands it, and women and mothers and parents have to be
a key part of that.

You know, we need the equivalent of Mothers Against Drunk
Driving in the gun area, and we are out exploring now with a
range of community groups—and there are many groups around
the country of parents who have lost kids, who are struggling in
an isolated way, and so the issue is whether we can pull them to-
gether into a movement that will give you the kind of support that
you need. We are oing to be doing everything we can to do that.

Second, 1 think i% we get out there and begin to educate the pub-
lic about the dangers of guns and about the specific ways in which
we can tackle them, that will change, and we are doing two things
that will begin to be implemented shortly. We have been testing a
child watch program to really make people see and feel violence in
the way in which the pediatrician does in seeing these children
every day.

We have just field-tested in the District of Columbia and in St.
Louis taking community leaders, civic leaders, business leaders,
media leaders—and 1 would welcome to have the Congress go out

on one here in Washington; take them out and let them be briefed
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by the coroner about the number of children who are coming, and
let them go over to the rehabilitation center and see the children
sitting in wheel chairs who have been shot; let them hear the par-
ents talk about what it means to lose a child. So we are trying to
begin to personalize gun violence so that people can begin to under-
stand that there is a war going on and that their children are the
chief victims and that we must do something about it.

The third thing we are planning is a way of beginning to try to
build a mass public education base and get a strong conversation
going about the toll of violence. This October, we are trying to get
the religious community to become the moral locomotive, rather
than the moral caboose, on violence in American society, and begin
to look at the extent of violence in their communities, in the fami-
lies, in their congregations; to look at guns and children; to really
say what does your faith demand when you have 1.3 million Ameri-
cans who have died violently over the last 25 years.

So over the next months, Senator, I do hope that we can play a
key role, along with many other groups, and we are trying to begin
to work in coalition with other groups to get a commurity con-
versation going, to get us working very strongly and coherently to
provide a countervoice to those who try to sell violence in the form
of guns or in the guise of entertainment, so that you will begin to
have the kind of support that you need. I think that the American

people do want gun control, and we will try to begin to translate
that into active support.

Senator SIMON. Great.

Dr. Wright?

Dr. WRIGHT. I would just like to add that as health professions
and all professions, we also need to educate ourselves. There is a
groundswell of support, but there is still a lot of education that
needs to happen amongst the people who are in a position to speak
passionately and be advocates.

I was impressed at the American Association of Public Health
meetings in San Francisco last October at the proliferation of basic
research activities going on in this area and just the sheer number
of people that have become passionately interested and have hegun
to undertake projects in their workplaces and the places where
they live. As Ms. Edelman has said, we need to interweave the ex-
pertise and the talent of all these people who are working in their
communities and in their hospitals to bring together a massive
campaign that will bring forth a powerful voice to Congress.

Senator SIMON. If I may be a little more specific, what we need—
and we appreciate your presence here, but what we need is not a
resolution by the American Academy of Pediatrics.

Ms. EDELMAN. You need mail and calls.

Senator SIMON. We need phone calls. We need letters from the
pediatricians to the members,

Senator Brown?

Senator BROWN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, as we
talk about the tragic deaths from use of firearms, and I suspect
other means as well, it is sobering. One can contemplate all the

lives that are lost that might still be alive if we had done some-
thing differently.
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Ms. Edelman, let me take you back to something you talked
about. If this law goes into effect, it would be illegal to purchase
a gun, and to possess it would be a Federal crime, in effect. Should
young people, under 21, who we think of as juveniles, be arrested
and tried in Federal court as adults?

Ms. EDELMAN. Well, as I indicated in my testimony, while I cer-
tainly want to make sure that adults who are peddling and manu-
facturing and selling guns should be curbed and we should deal
with them very stringently, I do have difficulty in trying to make
it a Federal crime for young people who are status offenders. The
Federal courts, as you know, will be overwhelmed, so we have
asked that one look at that gain in terms of possession by juve-
niles.

I think that clearly there should remain discretion, as 1 gather
the changed provisions of the crime bill would allow, for judges to
deal with young people who are repeat offenders to turn children
over to adult systems. But I think at this time we are opposed to
having possession by young people be a Federal crime.

" Senator BROWN. If possession is dropped, or at least not an issue,
should young people who violate the law be tried in Federal courts
as adults?

Ms. EDELMAN. We think that children should be rehabilitated
wherever possible. We, on the other hand, understand that there
may well be instances where young people have done something
that is so egregious or may well be beyond rehabilitation, and that
judges should have the discretion to determine when they are going
to bind those children over to adult courts.

There is currently a study that the Federal Government has com-
missioned to look at the impact of waivers of juveniles to adult
courts, though I am deeply disturbed about the tendency to use
waivers for younger and younger children, particularly when we
have not put into place adequate prevention methods. So, again, I
think that we should wait and see what we have learned from the
experience of waivers of young people over to adult courts before
we decide that we are going to mandate this in a uniform way.

Senator BROWN. What about sentencing juveniles to Federal pris-
on? Is that something you would feel that judges should have dis-
cretion about as well?

Ms. EDELMAN. You know, justice should be individual, particu-
larly when it comes to children. We have imprisoned more and
more people over the last years and are spending billions of dollars
on that, and yet it does not seem to have had a major impact on
youth crime. So I think that I always want to put my focus on pre-
vention and want to look very carefully before one creates new Fed-
eral crimes for what have been status offenders in the past. 1
would again like to use that as a basis of discretion with the judge
when there are particularly egregious problems with young people.

Senator BROWN. Thank you. Dr. Wright, if indeed it is made ille-
gal for young people to buy or possess weapons, as this bill would
do, would you anticipate that young people would no longer buy or
possess firearms?

Dr. WRIGHT. No; in an absolute sense, I don't believe that it
would. but certainly this is one means of a deterrent for access is
what the academy supports and what I would hope to see in my
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work environment. As I talk tu youngsters, youngsters are often
very introspective and reflective immediately following a traumatic
incident, and many times in the course of treatment in our emer-
gency department I have the opportunity to talk to kids and find
out how they get their weapons or what the access is like. I do be-
lieve that any measure that would deter the access by any means
would help from my perspective, and certainly that is the view that
the academy supports as well.

Senator BROWN. Do you have a feel for how much this would re-
duce juvenile possession of firearms—I mean, would it cut the
number of weapons in half? What do you expect out of this law if
it goes on the books?

Dr. WRIGHT. Well, quantitatively we have no knowledge as to
how many weapons are currently coming from what sources on the
street as it occurs today, but cne thing that I would like to advo-
cate in trying to get that information is, again, talking to young-
sters, finding out what the sources are. It has to be a comprehen-
sive effort, this bill being just part of that comprehensive effort in
trying to get at the sources of weapons.

1 don’t believe that this is certainly the be-all and end-all, but
it is part of a comprehensive effort that inciudes grassroots re-
search, just getting down and talking to the kids, finding out what
the access is and where they are getting the guns from.

Senator BROWN. You see, we are dealing with young people who
commit crimes with weapons. Presumably, that is already illegal.
What we are now doing is saying it is also illegal for them to pos-
sess the weapon and to purchase the weapon.

The question really is if it is already illegal to do what they have
done, will making it twice illegal have a hig change in their behav-
ior? I don’t know the answer to that. My guess is it may relate to
how well you enforce this law. As you say, maybe it is a tool, but
I guess a question that comes to me is, is there something else we
ought to be looking at, not simply making a second crime for these
young people.

Senator Simon, I think, is interested in and has worked in an
area where I have sponsored a bill. The idea is to change our tax
laws so that there is some encouragement for teams and other
businesses to swap for weapons; not purchase weapons from young
people, but swap. We are thinking about basketball tickets and
baseball tickets, and maybe there are other things that can be do-
nated, but changing the tax laws so that we encourage juveniles to
give up their firearms voluntarily. At least to me, there is a real
question as to how much good making it twice illegal will do.

Dr. WRIGHT. If I can just take a step back to reiterate the impor-
tance of the public health model. That is a very critical piece to the
whole success of this bill in combination with other efforts. We
have to be able to document and employ control measures to see
exactly what it is that we are doing.

I agree that at this point I don’t know what the quantitative ef-
fect would be, but certainly as part of a comprehensive effort, one
that we have to monitor and measure, it is really important that
it be included in a large public health effort, not just viewed in
terms of one bill that may have some measurable effect, but in
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terms of a comprehensive eftort involving many professionals from
many disciplines.

Ms. EDELMAN. Senator Brown, we are in the middle of doing
focus groups with young people, asking them a whole lot of ques-
tions about what might make a difference. In light of your ques-
tions—we have not already completed the ones in Minnesota—we
will add this, or at least begin to try to get their reactions on what
would make a difference. We just finished focus groups last week
in the District of Columbia with young people, but I will try to see
if it isn't too late to add this. We will be trying constantly to-see
what will make a difference and what might deter you or not deter
you, and we will share whatever information that may be useful on
this issue.

Senator BROWN. I would appreciate it. I particularly appreciated
your comments with regard to looking for positive activities for our
young people. I do share that view, and I can well see why Senator
Simon has other jobs for you in mind. We both have a very positive
view of your contribution here.

Ms. EDELMAN. Thank you.

Senator SIMON. We thank you both. Let me just comment be-
rause Ms. Edelman mentioned the question of mandatory mini-
mums. 1 have discussed with Senator Biden holding a hearing on
that subject. We tend to think we really are tough on crime with
mandatory minimums. We now have 510 people per 100,000 in our
prisons. South Africa is second with 311, Venezuela has 137; Can-
ada, 109. As we have incarcerated more and more people, our crime
rate has gone up and not down, and I think we really have to look
at substantial answers, not answers that have great public appeal,
necessarily.

Ms. EDELMAN. I agree.

Senator SIMON. We appreciate both of you for your testimony and
you leadership.

Ms. EDELMAN. Thank you for your leadership.

Senator SIMON. Our final panel is Dr. Arthur Kellerman, director
of the Center for Injury Control, Emory University School of Public
Health and Medicine; Dr. Stephen Teret, head of the Division of
Public Health, Department of Health Policy and Management,
Johns Hopkins School of Hygiene and Public Health; Richard
Aborn, president of the Center to Prevent Handgun Violence; Dr.
Tim Wheeler from Fontana, CA, who is with a group called Doctors
for Responsible Gun Ownership; Dr. Edgar Suter, also from Cali-
fornia: and Suzanna Gratia, if we can get one more chair there. We
will just add one additional chair to the panel.

We may have to take a 10-minute recess for a roll call over on
the floor. Why don’t we do it right now before we get the panel
started? We apologize. We will be back with you in 10 minutes.

[Recess.]

Senator SIMON. The hearing will be resumed. We will observe the
5.minute rule, if we may, and we will enter your testimony in the
vecord if it is longer than that. We will start with you, Dr.

Kelierman.
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PANEL CONSISTING OF ARTHUR L. KELLERMAN, DIRECTOR,
CENTER FOR INJURY CONTROL, EMORY UNIVERSITY
SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH, ATLANTA, GA; STEPHEN B.
TERET, PROFESSOR OF HEALTH POLICY, JOHNS HOPKINS
SCHOOL OF HYGIENE AND PUBLIC HEALTH, BALTIMORE,
MD; RICHARD ABORN, PRESIDENT, CENTER TO PREVENT
HANDGUN VIOLENCE AND HANDGUN CONTROL, INC., WASH-
INGTON, DC; TIMOTHY WHEELER, CHAIR, DOCTORS FOR RE-
SPONSIBLE GUN OWNERSHIP, FONTANA, CA; EDGAR A.
SUTER, NATIONAL CHAIR, DOCTORS FOR INTEGRITY IN RE-
SEARCH AND PUBLIC POLICY, SAN RAMON, CA; AND
SUZANNA GRATIA, COPPERAS COVE, TX

STATEMENT OF DR. ARTHUR L. KELLERMAN

Dr. KELLERMAN. Senator Simon, between 1991 and 1993 I rep-
resented the fields of emergency medicine and public health as a
member of the National Research Council’s Panel on the Under-
standing and Control of Violent Behavior. In the course of our
work, the panel reviewed the complex array of social, behavioral,
developmental, and environmental factors that contribute to vio.
lence.

Our view of the role of firearms in interpersonal violence was
summarized in the following statement:

Available research does not demonstrate that that greater gun availability is
linked to greater numbers of violent events or injuries. However, what is clear is
that gun-inflicted injuries have more lethal consequences than injuries inflicted by
otker weapons. This su%gests that making guns less available in high-risk situations
might reduce the number of homicides. Educational, technological and regulatory
strategies can be advised with the objective of changing how handguns are used and
stored, changing their allocation from higher-risk to lower-risk segments of the pop-
ulation, reducing their lethalitgl, or reducing their numbers. For any of these policies
to reduce homicides, two conditions must be met. The policr must reduce violent
uses of at least some types of guns and they must not be replaced with more lethal

weapons.

The Gun Violence Prevention Act of 1994 could go a long way to-
ward addressing the panel’s recommendations. However, [ am cer-
tain that this legislation will be fiercely opposed by those who be-
lieve that unrestricted ownership of handguns is part of the solu-
tion to violent crime rather than part of the problem.

Gun manufacturers have an economic interest in selling all the
weapons they can and they have made self-protection the corner-
stone of their marketing strategy for handguns. It has been effec-
tive. Handgun owners are far more likely than owners of rifles or
shotguns to cite self-protection as their single most important rea-
son for keeping a gun in the home. However, interest in handguns
for self-protection is not limited to law-abiding adults.

Sheley and Wright recently surveyed a selected sample of more
than 800 violent juvenile offenders and a comparison group of 758
inner-city high school students. When they asked members of both
groups who have carried a gun why they acquired their last fire-
arm, protection was identified more often than any other reason.
Unfortunately, the gun that is kept loaded and readily available for
protection can also be reached by a curious child, an angry spouse,
or a depressed teenager.

Consider the following facts: The chief medical examiner of King
County, WA, and I studied all gunshot deaths that occurred in that
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county over a 6-year period. More than half occurred in the home
where the gun involved was kept. Nine cases involved the killing
of an intruder or an assailant in self-defense. During this same
time period, guns in the home were involved in 12 unintentional
gunshot deaths, 41 criminal homicides, and 333 firearm suicides.

Bobbie Lee examined all gunshot injuries, nonfatal as well as
fatal, that occurred in homes in Galveston, TX, over a 3-year period
of time. Only two firearm injuries were related to residential rob-
bery or burglary. In one case, the resident was shot and killed by
the burglar. In the other, a burglar was wounded by a homeowner.
During this same time period, guns were involved in the death or
injury of more than 100 homeowners, family members, friends, or
acquaintances.

An analysis of 12 years of FBI homicide statistics for the entire
United States revealed that women were shot and killed by their
husbands or an intimate acquaintance twice as often as women
were killed by strangers using guns, knives, or ary other weapon.
When a woman killed with a gun, the victim v.as five times more
likely to be her husband, an intimate acquaintance, or a member
of her family than to be a stranger or a person of undetermined
relationship.

A CDC study of family violence in Atlanta, GA, revealed that
family and intimate assaults that involve guns are 12 times more
likely to end in the death of the victim than assaults that do not
involve guns. Finally, colleagues at three major universities and I
recently teamed up with local law enforcement agencies to conduct
two large-scale case control studies to determine whether keeping
a gun in the home increases or decreases a family’s risk of violence.
All suicides and all homicides that took place in the home of the
victim were studied, regardless of the method.

We found that several behavioral risk factors are linked to an in-
creased risk of violent death in the home. However, even after tak-
ing the effect of these risk factors into consideration and matching
case and control households by victim age, sex, race, and neighbor-
hood, we found that homes with guns were 4.8 times more likely
to be the scene of a suicide and 2.7 times more likely to be the
scene of a homicide than comparable homes without guns.

Senator SIMON. If you could conclude?

Dr. KELLERMAN. Many people overestimate the benefits and un-
derestimate the risks of having a gun in the home. All it takes is
the occasional anecdote of an armed citizen resisting an intruder
to send them out to get a gun to keep in their night stand. It is
the same incentive that has encouraged people io buy tickets in the
lottery, but the rules of this game are different and the voters and
citizens in this country, people considering purchase of gun and
Members of Congress should consider if a lottery in my home State
of Georgia gave one winner a week the jackpot but picked out four
families for execulion, I don’t think they would sell many tickets
to that lottery. We need to ask ourselves the same question when
we consider buying a gun for protection.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Kellerman follows:|
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ARTHUR L. KELLERMANN, M.D., M.P.H.
PUBLIC HEALTH PERSPECTIVES ON FIREARM VIOLENCE

I am an academic emergency physician and Director of the Emory Center for In-
jury Control. Between 1991 and 1993, [ represented the fields of Emer ency Medi-
cine and Public Health as a member of the National Research Counci%s Panel on
the Understanding and Control of Violent Behavior. In the course of our work, the
panel reviewed the complex array of social, behavioral, developmental and environ-
mental factors that contribute to violence.! Our view of the role of firearms in inter-
personal violence was summarized in the following statement:

Available research does not demonstrate that greater gun availability is
linked to greater numbers of violent events or injuries. However, what is
clear is that iun-inﬂicted injuries have more lethaf consequences than inju-
ries inflicted by other weapons. This suggests that making guns less avail-
abla in high risk situations (e.g., in the hands of unsupervised juveniles and
others barred from legal gun markets, in homes with histories of family vio-
lence, in “fighting bars”) might reduce the number of homicides.

Educetional, technological and regulatory strategies can be devised with
the chjectives of changing how handguns are used and stored, changing
their allocation from higher-risk to lower-risk segments of the population,
reducing their lethality, or reducing their numbers. For any of these policies
to re’nce homicides, two conditions must be met: the policy must reduce
violent uses of at least some types of guns and they must not be replaced
with more lethal weapons.

Understanding and Preventing Violence, page 18.

The Gun Violence Prevention Act of 1994 could go a long way toward addressing
the panel's recommendations. However, | am certain that this legislation will be
fiercely opposed by those who believe that unrestricted ownership of handguns is
part of the solution to violent crime rather than part of the problem. Gun manufac-
turers have an economic interest in selling all the weapons they can, and they have
made “self-protection” the cornerstone of their marketing strateg}\; for handguns.

Handgun owners are far more likely than owners of rifles or s otguns to cite “self

rotection” as their single most important reason for keeping a gun in the home.

owever, interest in guns for protection is not limited to law-abiding adults, Sheley
cad Wright recently surveyed more than 800 violent juvenile offenders and & com-
garison group of 758 inner city high school students. en they asked members of

oth groups who had carried a gun why they acquired their last weapon, “protec-
tion” was identified more often than any other reason.2

Unfortunately, the gun that is kept loaded and readily available for protection: can
also be reached by a curious child, an angry spouse or a depressed teenager. Con-
sider the following facts:

* The Chief Medical Examiner of King County WA and [ identified all of the gun-
shot deaths that occurred in that county over & six year period. More than half
occurred in the home where the gun involved was kept. Nine cases involved the
killing of an intruder or an assailant in self defense. During this same tim.- ne-
riod, guns in the home were involved in 12 unintentional gunshot deaths 41
criminal homicides and 333 firearm suicides.3

Bobbie Lee of the University of Texas examined all gunshot injuries (nonfatal
as well as fatal) that occurred in homes in Galveston, Texas, over a three year
period of time. During this time frame, only two firearm injuries were related
to residential robbery or burglary. In one case, the resident was shot and killed
by the burglar. In the other, algurglar was wounded by a homeowner. During
this same time period, guns were involved in the death or injury of more than
100 homeowners, family members, friends and acquaintances.4

An analysis of 12 years of FBI homicide statistics for the entire United States
revealed that women were shot and killed by their husband or intimate ac-

}Panel on the Understanding and Control of Violent Behavior. Reiss A, Roth J eds. Under-
standing and Preventing Violence. Washington, D.C., National Academy Press, 1993.

2Sheley JF, Wright JD. Gun acquisition and possession in selected juvenile samples. Research
in Brief. Office of Juvenile Justice and Drlinquency Prevention, National Institute of Justice,
U.S. Department of Justice. December, 1993. pp. 1-11.

?Kellermann AL, Reay DT. Protection or Peril? An analysis of firearm related deaths in the
home. N Engl J Med 1986;314:1557-60.

4 Lee RK, Waxweiler RJ, Dobbins JG, Paschetag T. Incidence rates of firearm injuries in Gal-
veston, Texas, 1979-1981. Am J Epidemiol 1991,134-511-521.
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quaintance twice as often as women were killed by strangers using guns, knives
or any other means. When a woman killed with a gun, the victim was five times
more likely to be her husband, an intimate acquaintance of a member of her
family than to be a stranger or a person of undetermined relationship.5

¢ A CDC study of family violence in Atlanta, Georgia, revealed that family and
intimate assaults that involve guns are 12 times more likely to end in the death
of the victim than assaults that do not involve guns.®

Colleagues at three major Universities and I teamed up with local law enforce-
ment agencies to conduct two large scale, population based, case-control studies
to determine whether keeping a gun in the home increases or decreases a fami-
ly’s risk of violent death. This is the same research technique that was used
to explore the relationship between cigarette smoking snd lung cancer. All sui-
cides and all homicides that took place in the home of the victim were studied,
regardless of the method used. We found that several behavioral risk factors are
linked to an increased risk of violent death in the home. However, even after
taking thece factors into consideration and matching case and control house-
holds by victim aye, sex, race, and neighborhood, we found that homes with

ns were 4.8 times more likely to be the scene of a suicide, and 2.7 times more
ikely to be the scene of a homicide than comparable homes without guns.?.8

Unfortunately, many people overestimate the benefits and underestimate the
risks associated with ieeping a gun in the home. The fact that an armed citizen
occasionally stops a crime is all the encouragement many people need to keep a
loaded pistol in their night stand. It's the same logic that sells millions of lottery
tickets each week. Unfortunately, the rules of this game are different. If my state
lottery gave one winner a week the jackpot but randomly selected three people for
execution, I don't think they'd sell many tickets.

Violence in America is a complex problem. There are no simple solutions. While
we work to identify and incarcerate predatory crimivals and address the conditions
that promote violence, we must also take additional steps to limit ‘he devastating
impact of handguns and assault weapons. We can_improve public safety without
compromising the interests of legitimate sportsmen. We can’t afford to do less.

BIOSKETCH
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Senator SIMON. Thank you.
Dr. Teret?

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN B. TERET

Mr. TERET. Senator Simon, much of what I had intended to say
has already been said very eloquently by those who have testified
before me, so with your permission, I would like to depart from my
written testimony and be quite brief.

Senator SIMON. Your written testimony will be entered in the
record and we will be happy to have your oral testimony.

Mr. TERET. Thank you very much, Senator Simon. You men-
tioned earlier that we deal with statistics, especially those of us
who live in the world of public health, but you mentioned that the
statistics really are based upon real stories, and I would like to un-
derscore that in the area of statistics regarding firearm injuries,
those statistics all tell a story. The building blocks of those statis-
tics are bullet-torn bodies of dividuals.

Unfortunately, I am personally familiar with one of those stories
that involved a 22-month-old baby named David, the baby of some
friends of mine. Both the mother and father of this child worked
during the day, so they sought day care for him in the home of an
individual. That woman who kept David, as was her custom, took
him up to her bedroom one day at noon time for his nap in a crib
that she kept in the bedroom for that purpose.

When she left the bedroom, Senator, her 4-year-old son entered
the bedroom, went to the night table, opening the drawer and took
out the loaded nandgun that was kept there under the mistaken
Kremise that it would confer protection on the people in the house-

old. The 4-year-old walked over to the crib where 22-month-old

Davis was, raised the gun, pulled the trigger and put a bullet
through David’s head. That is a statistics that I can find in the
U.S. statistics records, but the statistic doesn’t tell us anything
about the obscenity of that kind of tragedy, the tragedy tha: ex-
isted not only for David and his family, but for the boy who pulled
the trigger and his family.

What we have to look at is why are those tragedies happening
over and over again and, more importantly, how can they be pre-
vented, and I would like to offer a suggestion to the subcommittee
about prevention of those tragedies, which is that we could redirect
our attention away from the person who is pulling the trigger and
direct it toward the person who is making the trigger.

For decades, we paid little to no attention at gun manufacturers.
The corporations tﬁat manufacture guns have been able to manu-
facture as many guns as they like, to design them in any way that
they want, and to market them in any way that they want because
we as a society have failed people like David. We have failed to reg-
ulate the manufacturers, and instead we have misrelied on our in-
ability to regulate the person who is nolding the gun once millions
of guns come into the hands of indivicals.

e could do a number of things by regulating the manufacturers.
Number one is we could prevent certain types of guns from being
made, such as the bill that is before this subcommittee, S. 1882,
does with regard to Saturday specials and assault weapons.
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Second, is we can regulate the design of the guns, as this bill
also does. For many years, guns were made by a gun manufacturer
that were child-proof and they were advertised as child-proof. The
gun manufacturer made these guns from the late 1880’s to the late
1930’s and then stopped making those guns child-proof. The guns
that that manufacturer makes now, which it sells particularly to
women, don’t have that child-proof quality to them. Why don't
they? Because nobody makes the manufacturer do anything about
the design of guns.

Last, what we could do is we could regulate the way manufactur-
ers market guns. I have brought an ad that appeared in the Ladies
Home Journal a couple of summers ago from Colt Firearms, and
you will see, Senator, that it shows a mother tucking her child into
bed at night and it says tliat self-protection is more than her right,
it is her responsibility. The finer print of the ad that you might not
be able to see from where you are, Senator, tells that mother that
she could fulfill that responsibility for self-protection by the acqui-
sition of a Colt semiautomatic weapon. That is deceptive advertis-
ing.

In my mind, if you take the data that Dr. Kellerman has already
testified about that he and his colleagues and other scientific re-
searchers have developed that shows that, on balance, a gun is
more perilous than protective in a home, it makes that ad decep-
tive. If that ad were not for a gun, if it were for a medication, for
instance, the ad would be withdrawn immediately and punitive
measures would be taken against the manufacturer. But, again, for
reasons that are difficult to understand, we have given a carte
blanche to gun manufacturers and failed to regulate them.

We can stop our failure of responsibility to people like David, to
hundreds and thousands of other people, to 38,000 people who are
killed by guns each year now, by turning our policy attention away
from that person who is pulling the trigger and directing it teward
he who is making the trigger and be far more effective.

Thank you, Senator.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Teret follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF STEPHEN P. TERET

My name is Stephen Teret and I am Professor of Health Policy at the Johns Hop-
kins School of Hygiene and Public Health. I hold joint faculty appointments in the
Johns Hopkins School of Medicine, Departments of! Pediatrics and Emergency Medi-
cine, and 1 am Adjunct Professor of Health Law at the Georgetown University Law
Center. For the past fifteen years, my work has been in the prevention of injuries,
with particular emphasis on the prevention of firearm-related injuries. From 1988
until 1994 | served as the Director of the Johns Hopkins Injury Prevention Center.
[ have published numerous articles in scientific and health policy journals on the
prevention of firearm injuries.

I am here today to testify regarding America’s epidemic of gun violence. and to
discuss the policy options that are available to our society for reducing the number
of gun-related deaths. I appiaud the Subcommittee for its innovative approach and
willingness to Jook at guns as dangerous products that must be regulated, just as
we regalate other products that are hazardous to our health.

Our country's policy on guns has, to date, focused largely on individuals and their
use of guns. When a gun comes into the hands of an in ividual, we proscribe certain
actions he or she may take with the gun. But our ability to govern those actions
has proven ineffectual. Given our inability to control the use of puns, and given the
escalating death toll that now exists due to that inability, we must now turn to reg-
ulating guns rather than the brhaviors of those possessing guns. Controlling the ve-
hicles and vectors that deliver injury and disease has a long tradition in the science
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of public health. We controlled mosquitoes to reduce the incidence of malaria; we
must control guns to reduce the incidence of gunshot wounds, which arve the number
one cause of death for some groups within our population,

A focus on the sale of handguns is warranted. Our present laws permit handguns
to be sold legally to persons who ought not to be in the possession of instruments
of such lethality. Individuals convicted of violent misdemeanors (many of whom may
have been offered the plea bargain of a misdemeanor, after having been charged
with a felony, only because of courtroom overcrowding or a prosecutor’s high case
load), can legally purchase a handgun in most states. Persons against whom an
order of protection has been issued, because a court was convinced that the possibil-
it{{ of domestic violence was present, can legally purchase handguns. And handguns
often are possessed by children because our laws do not specifically prohibit such
gossession. Some people, because of their age or their history of violence, should be

arred from possessing any gun. Our present law treats this issue inade uately.

Possession of certain guns should ge banned for everyone, because of their high
propensity for use in mayhem. When bills banniné the manufacture, sale, and pos-
session of certain guns have been introduced in ongress or in state legislatures,
a cry arises that &\; particular weapon has a sporting cr recreational use. Argu-
ments then ensue about the validity of that assertion, and the extent to which the
gun is used for sport. The tacit assumption of those arguments is that one would
not want to interfere with the interests of sportsmen. Igtxxt if the gun is also used
for murder, why should not our commitment and duty to preserve life override the
interests of the sportsmen?

For decades, the debate over guns has focused on the users of guns, and has inad-
equately examined the manufacturers of guns. Regulating he who makes the trigger
is as important as trying to regulate he who pulls the trigger. Regulating the manu-
facturer will be more effective than trying to regulate the millions of people into
whose hands the manufacturer is now placing guns. But we have failed to exercise
this regulatory opportunity and responsibility to protect the public’s health. At
present, gun manufacturers are given great freedom to decide how many guns to
make, how to design those guns, and how to market the guns.

But decisions made by %:m manufacturers, based largely on corporate profit-
ability, are in essence health policy decisions for others. Death b gunfire accounts
for more teenage deaths than all natural diseases combined, ang’ n manufactur.
ers’ decisions are therefore truly life and death decisions for our cﬁilidren. Why are
these decisions basically ignored by the federal government?

In the field of environmental health, scientists speak of the need to regulate point
source pollution—the smokestack belching filth into the atmosphere, or the sewer-
age pipe discharging raw sewage into a stream. Millions of handguns each year are
discharged into the stream of commerce, and the point sources for this pollution are
the loading platforms of gun factories. But little attention is focused on the corpora-
tions and individuals who operate these factories and create these lethal instru-
ments. The production of handguns must be governed.

Handguns can be made so tﬁgt they are childproof, but manufacturers have cho-
sen not to do so. Unfortunately, this is true even for handguns that are now being
marketed to women, where there is a likelihood that the handgun will be in the
same home as a child. The manufacturers are not protecting children by the use
of existing technologg' because they do not have to—handguns and their manufactur-
ers are not regulated.

Handguns can be made so that they are “personalized,” i.e., they can be operated
only by the authorized possessor. This can be accomplished through the use of low
technology (e.g., a combination lock on the handgun) or high technolo%y, such as a
ring worn by the owner that must be touched to the handgun in order for the hand-
gun to shoot. If handguns were so equipped, they would be inoperable by the young
child who finds the gun, the depressed teenager who is contemplating suicide, or
the thief who has taken the handgun in a resigential burglary. This lifesaving tech-
nologﬁ is not employed by handgun makers because they do not have to—handguns
and their manufacturers are not regulated.

Presently, handgun manufacturers advertise their products with the promise that
a handgun in the home will provide protection. The best scientific data contradict
this assertion, but no charges of deceptive advertising have been brought aiainst
the manufacturers. Their marketing sometimes pictures children shooting hand-
guns, and this too is unregulated.

Our failure to address the manufacture, design, and marketing of guns has led
to a proliferation of handguns and an epidemic of gun deaths. Many of these deaths
are preventable. Reasonable regulation of the manufacture, design, and marketing
of handguns, such as that contained in legislation to be considered by this Sub-
committee, will successfully address this pv .ic health crisis.

P?l



Senator SimoON. Thank you.
Mr. Aborn?

STATEMENT OF RICHARD ABORN

Mr. ABORN. Senator, I will try and stay within my allotted 5
minutes. As the president of the Center to Prevent Handgun Vio-
lence and the president of Handgun Control, I want to thank you
for this opportunity to address one of our greatest and most tragic
public health and safety problems, gun violence.

Imagine, if you will, a childhood disease that every day takes the
lives of 13 American children between the ages of 10 and 19. I say
imagine because there is no such single childhood disease that
takes that kind of toll, but imagine that there were such a disease
and imagine that the cure for such a disease did not involve any
new medical technology, did not require extensive laboratory test-
ing and, in fact, did not depend on any kind of medical break-
through whatsoever. Would we take action against this deadly epi-
demic? Absolutely, of course, we would, and we would do it with
dispatch because we are a society that cares about our children.

The disease that I have just described to you does, in fact, exist.
Gun violence, as you have heard repeatedly this morning, is not a
disease in a technical sense, but it is surely an epidemic. It kills
a total of 15 children a day, and while there is no single cure, we
can and we must take action against this deadly horror. One in
four deaths in young people between the ages of 15 and 19 and 20
anc 24.years of age occur because of gunfire, more than any other
cause.

We at the Center to Prevent Handgun Violence are, in fact, tak-
ing action. In cooperation with the American Academy of Pediat-
rics, from whom you heard earlier this morning, and Dr. C. Everett
Koop, we are working with health professionals to alert parents to
the dangers posed to children by keeping a gun in the home.

In eight major cities, we are working with parents and teachers
in a school-based curriculum that adopts traditional conflict resolu-
tion techniques and applies them to gun violence and incorporates
them into a curriculum called Straight Talk About Risks. It warns
children about the dangers of guns, while also teaching them these
vital conflict avoidance skills.

But educatior alone is not enough. We must also keep guns out
of the hands of children. That is why Handgun Control commends
you for considering this comprehensive gun control legislation, the
very kind that is before this committee.

Speak of gun violence today and most Americans think of the ter-
rible toll wrought by firearm homicides, but as great as that toll
is, it is surpassed by even the larger number of Americans who lose
their lives every year due to suicides and accidents with firearms.
In 1990, 15,507 Americans died from firearm homicides, while
20,301 Americans died as a result of suicides or accidents from fire-
arms. It is not enough, therefore, in reducing gun violence to keep
guns out of the hands of the criminals. We must also keep guns
out of the hands of those whose youthfulness and immaturity make
them more prone to gun accidents and suicides.

The Center to Prevent Handgun Violence has been a leader for
many years now in the fight against gun accidents and suicides,
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and that fight begins at home. Gun-owning parents who have
young children in the home have a responsibility to make sure that
their children do not gain access to the family gun.

Six years ago, a member of our board by the name of Judy Soto,
who was a pediatric social worker, drove her 10-year-old son to
school. That afternoon after school let out, her son went out with
his best friend to another playmate’s house. While there, they
found three loaded guns. What happened happens very often across
this country. One of the guns was accidentally fired, killing Judy
Soto’s 10-year-old child.

Judy did not throw her hands up in grief ana say there was
nothing that we can do. She, in fact, turned her grief into construc-
tive action and passed a law, the first ever, that requires parents
to keep guns away from their kids. That law was passed in Florida
and, in fact, the incidence of kids being shot now accidentally in
Florida is on the decline. Florida was just the beginnirg of that.
Ten other States have now joined Floricfa in passing such child ac-
cident prevention laws and a number of other States are now ac-
tively considering such laws.

But adults too are at risk, and you have heard repeatedly about
that. Rhode Isiand has passed a mandatory handgun safety law.
California has just passed one, also, which takes effect on April 1st.
We urge the Congress to mandate such a mandatory safety train-
ing course nationally.

You have heard from a previous witness that the Attorney Gen-
eral has said time and again, and she is correct, that it should be
at least as hard to get a license to possess a gun as it is to drive
an automobile. Two months ago, those words took on additional
meaning when CDC reported that if recent trends in motor vehicle
crash and firearm mortality were to continue, firearms would dis-
place motor vehicle crashes as the leading cause of injury death in
the United States by the mid-1990’s.

Senator SIMON. If you could conclude your statement?

Mr. ABORN. We have advocated, as you know, the mandatory li-
censing and training of all gunowners. We also seek to send a mes-
sage to dealers by asking that the Cungress pass a law which
would give citizens who are injured as a result of the negligence
of gun dealers the right to sue those gun dealers in Federal court.
Such a law would help send a very clear message to dealers that
they must act in strict compliance with the Gun Control Act of
1968. We think doing sv would be one of a number of very nec-
essary measures to make sure that dealers comply with the myriad
of laws they now must face.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Aborn follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF RI“HARD ABORN ON BEHALF OF HANDGUN CONTROL, INC,

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Subcommittees, as the President of the Center to
Prevent Handgun Violence and the President of Iandgun Control. Inc., I want to
thank you fur this opportunity to snddress one of our greatest and most tragic public
health and safety problems: gun violence.

Imagine, if you will, a childhood disease that everyday takes the lives of 13 Amer-
ican children between the ages of 10 and 19. 1 say “iinagine," because there is no
single childhood discase that takes that kind of toll. But imagine that there was
such a disease. And imagine that the cure for such a disease did not involve any
new medical technology, did not require extensive luboratory testing and, in fac.
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did not depend on any kind of a medical breakthrough whatsoever. Would we take
action against this deadly epidemic?

Of course we would. We are a society that cares about our young people.

The disease that [ have just described to you does not exist.,Gun violence is not
a disease, not in any technical sense. But it is an epidemic. It kills a total of 15
children a day. And while there is no single cure, we can, and we must, take action
against the gun violence which causes one in every four deaths of young people be-
tween 15-19 and 20-24 years of age and which is responsible for more geaths than
all natural causes in those age groups.

And we, at the Center to Prevent Handgun Violence, are taking action. In co-
operation with the American Academy of Pediatrics and Dr. C. Everett Koop, we are
working with health professionals to alert parents to the danger posed to children
by keeping a gun in the home. In eight major cities, we are working with parents
. and teachers in a school-based curriculum, entitled “Straight Talk About Risks,”

that warns children about the dangers of guns, while also teaching them vital con-
flict avoidance skills.
But education alone is not enough. We must also keep guns out of the hands of
children. That's why, as President of Handgun Control, Inc., I commend you for con-
N - sidering comprehensive gun control legislation of the kind that is presently before
this Committee.

Speak of gun violence today and most Americans think of terrible toll wrought
by firearm homicides. But as great as that toll is, it is surpassed by the even larger
number of Americans who lose their lives every year due to firearm suicides and
accidents. In 1990, 16,507 Americans died from firearm homicidés while 20,301
Americans died as the result of firearm suicides or accidents. .

It is not enough, therefore, in reducing gun violence to keep guns out of the hards
of criminals. We must keep guns out o the hands of those whose youthfulness and
immaturity make them more prone to gun accidents and suicides.

The Center to Prevent Handgun Violence has been a leader for many years now
in the fight against gun accidents and suicides. And that fight begins at home. Gun-
owning parents, who have young children in the home, have a responsibility to
make sure that their children do not gain access to the family gun.

Six years ago, Judy Soto, a pediatric social worker in Hollywood, Florida, drove
her 10-year old son, Omar, to school and kissed him goodbye. It was the last time
you would ever see her son alive. That afternoon after school let out, her son went
out with his best friend to another playmate’s home, where there were three loaded
guns in the house. What happened minutes later is all too common. One of the guns
was accidentally fired, killing Judy Soto's ten year old child.

Fortunately for us, Judy channeled her grief into constructive action. The next
year, she helped lead the fight in Florida for a law that requires parents with young
children under the age of 16 to lock up their guns. Following the enactment of that
first-ever child accident prevention law in 1989, thousands of parents in Florida
have locked up theirﬁuns, And, as a result, the number of children dying from acci-
dental shootings in Florida has dropped substantially in recent years. .gnd Florida
was just the beginning. Ten other states have now joined Florida in passing child
?ccident prevention laws and a number of other states are actively considering such

aws.

But it is not just children who are accidentally shot with firearms. Adults, too,
are at risk. That's why we need to do a much better job of teaching all gun owners
about the fundamentals of gun safety. For more than a decade, Rhode Island has
had a law requiring handgun purchasers, as a condition of receiving a license to buy
a handgun, to pass a six-hour firearms safety course. California pa sed a similar
gun safety law that takes effect on April 1.

Attorney Genera! Janet Reno has said time and time again that “It should be at
least as hard to get a license to possess a gun as it is drive an automobile.” Two
months ago. those words took on added meaning, when the Centers for Disease Con-
trol and Prevention reported that, “If * * * recent trends in motor vehicle crash and
firearm mortality were to continue, firearms would displace motor vehicle crashes
as the leading cause of injury death in the United States by the mid-1990's.”

The licensing and training of gun owners is a good beginning, but it is not a com-
plete a 1swer. Just as we have required automotive manufacturers to improve the
safety of cars, so too should we require gun manufacturers to improve the safety
of guns.

Many children and adults believe that the removal of a magazine from a pistol
removes all bullets from a gun and that's a mistake. And all too deadly mistake.
A bullet remains in the chamber, a bullet that can just as effectively kill an individ-
ual as a fully loaded pistol. Surely American gun manufacturers are capable of de-
signing pistols that are incapable of firing a single bullet once the magazine has
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been removed. And I have to believe that American gun manufacturers are capable
of making sure that every gun produced in this country has a reliable load indicator.

I commend this Subcommittee for considering comprehensive legislation. Gun vio- .
lence is a major public health and safety problem. And the fight against gun vio-
lence requires a national plan of action, one that addresses gun accidents and sui-
cides, as well as, homicides.

I deeply appreciate the time and attention that this Subcommittee is giving to
this issue and I welcome any questions you might have.

Senator SIMON. Dr. Wheeler?

STATEMENT OF DR. TIMOTHY WHEELER

Dr. WHEELER. Senator Simon, my name is Dr. Tim Wheeler, and
I thank you for the opportunity present my views to the sub-
committee today.

I specialize in the field of medicine known as otolaryngology and
head and neck surgery in Fontana, CA, and I am also the president
of Doctors for Responsible Gun Ownership, which is a physician-
based grass-roots organization that we formed for the purpose of
assuring balance and credible research in the debate on firearms
ownership as a public health issue.

Our organization’s mandate is not an easy one to accomplish be-
cause, frankly, there is a lot of bias and a lot of emotion surround-
ing the debate in the medical community about firearms violence.
The view of firearm violence that we see mostly in the medical lit-
erature today is pretty simple, and that is that guns are by their
very nature a fundamental part or cause of violence and that citi-
zens’ access to them should therefore be strictly limited, .or even
forbidden.

The proponents of that view have held cut the complex issue of
firearms as a public health problem, an infectious disease. This
metaphor calls for eradicating guns to end gun violence much the
same as one would eradicate the virus that causes smallpox. Now,
this approach involves chopping off the legal issues surrounding
gun ownership and chopping off the idea of a right of firearm own-
ership for self-defense and leaves only the remains of the issue,
which fit into a medical model.

This has played well with doctors who abhor guns, to begin with,
but advocates of guns for citizens’ self-defense don’t get very far
with these medicaﬂesearchers who often tend to lump them along
with criminals. The hard data which support lawful gun ownership
are ignored by these doctors, often with the stated justification that
the data are not peer-reviewed by physicians.

An example: The U.S. Bureau of Justice Statistics has reported
injury rates in several categories of robbery and assault victims.
They categorize these victims according to the manner in which
they resisted. These researchers from the U.S. Government found
out that those victims who used a gun to resist these violent at-
tacks suffered injuries only in 17 percent of the cases. Other meth-
ods of resisting resulted in injuries in as much as 51 percent of the
cases.

In other research, Dr. Gary Kleck down at Florida State Univer-
sity has shown that as many as 800,000 to 2.4 million times a year
Americans use firearms for defense. At the University of Massa-
chusetts, two professors of sociology, Drs. Wright and Rossi, sur-
veyed a group of imprisoned felons on their views on the armed po-
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tential victim. Most of these prisoners demonstrated and indicated
in their answers that they were very respectful of the armed poten-
tial victim. In fact, 57 percent of them agreed with this statement,
that most criminals are more worried about meeting an armed citi-
zen than they are about running into the police.

My question is this: Why have we not seen these studies ac
knowledged in the medical literature on guns and violence? Why
have these researchers ignored vital data which show the life-pre-
serving and injury-preventing benefits of guns?

Another example from the Centers for Disease Control and Pre-
vention came from Dr. Mark Rosenberg, who actually suggested in
an interview that the possibility of manufacturing a gun trigger
with sensors that recognize and respond to only one hand, the hand
of the user, would be a good idea for controlling gun violence. He
suggested implanting the owner’s hand with a chip. Now, it is hard
for me to understand how a public health official could suggest that
any American would submit to this kind of intrusion.

in the State of California, we have tried elements of Senate bill
1882. We have enacted into law an assault weapon ban, we have
enacted into law a 15-day wait on firearm purchases, and we have
an elaborate and arcane system of restrictions on the sale of guns.
None of these laws have ever been shown to reduce firearm vio-
lence in California.

This year, we have a different approach in California. We are
learning. We passed a law called three strikes and you are out.
This is directed at felons and not at citizens. 1 would ask the Mem-
bars of the Senate, Senator Simon, to learn from the mistakes of
us in California and to pass legislation that would imprison crimi-
nals but would not disempower decent citizens, and let us give up
the notion that somehow passing one more gun ban will stop vio-
lent crime.

Thank you.

Senator SIMON. Thank you, and we will enter your full statement
in the record.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Wheeler follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF T1IMOTHY WHEELER, M.D., o~ BEHALF OF DOCTORS FOR
RESPONSIBLE GUN CWNERSHIP

Senator Metzenbaum, Senator Hatch and Members of the Committee, my name
is Timothy Wheeler, MD. I want to thank this Subcommittee and its Members for
allowing me the opportunity to express my views before you today.

1 specialize in the field of medicine known as otolaryngology in Fontana, Califor-
nia. | am also the Chair of Doctors for Responsible Gun Ownership, 2 physician
based grassroots urganization that was formed for the purpose of assuring balance
and credible research in the debate on firearms owners ip as a public hea th issue.

Our organization’s mandate is not an easy one to accomplish, because, frankly,
there is a great deal of bias and politicization of the issues surrounding the debate
within the medical community on private firearms ownership. This lack of objectiv-
ity that I speak of is reflected in much of the medical literature addressirg issues
of firearm violence.

The contemporary view of firearm violence in the medical literature is a simple
one: %ms are by their very nature a fundamental part of our nation's crime grob-
lem. Citizens’ access to them should therefore be strictly limited, or even forbidden.

The proporents of that view have held out the complex issue of firearm crime as
a public health problem, an infectious disease. The metaphor calls for eradicating
guns to end gun violence, much the same as one would eradicate the virus that
causes smallpox.
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This procrustean approach, chopping off the legal constitutional issues of gun
ownership and fitting the remains ixto a medical model, has played well with those
doctors who abhor guns. Advocates of guns for citizen self-(fefense do not get far
with these medical researchers, who tend to lump them together with criminals.

And the hard data supporting lawful gun ownership are ignored by these doctors,
often with the stated justification that Lﬁgdata are not peer-reviewed by physicians.

The U.S. Bureau of Justice Statistics has reported injury rates in saveral cat-
egories of robbery and assault victims. Those victims who resisted their attackers
by unarmed force suffered injuries in fifty-one percent (51 percent) of the cases,
Forty percent (40 percent) of victims using a knit}; for defense were injured. Thirty-
five percent (35 percent) of those who fled or resisted nonviolently were injured, and
twenty-five percent (25 percent) of the victims who submitted passively to the as-
sault were still injured. '

But of those victims who used a gun to resist their attackers seventeen percent
{17 percent) were injured. Of all the possibie ways of dealing with a predatory at-
tack, resistance with a gun was the best for reventing injury of the victim.

In other research Dr. Gary Kleck of Florida State University’s School of Criminol-
ogy and Criminal Justice has comprehensively studied armed citizen self-defense. In
his peer-acclaimed book Point Blank Kleck has shown that Americans use firearms
to defend themselves 606,000 to 960,000 times in the course of a year. The author's
subsequent direct survey of a randomly selected, nationwide population sample has
resulted in a upward revision of those figures to between 800,000 and 2.4 million
defensive gun usesfper year.

Two professors of sociology at the University of Massachusetts, James Wright and
Peter Rossi, surveyed imprisoned felons on their views on the armed potential vic-
tim. Fifty-six percent (56 percent) of the criminals a{reed with the statement “z
criminal i1s not going to mess around with a victim he knows is armed with a gun.”
Another item read “a smart criminal always tries to find out if his potential victim
is armed.” Eighty-one percent (81 percent) agreed with that. Yet ancther item read
“most criminals are more worried about meeting an armed victim than they are
about running into the police.” Fifty-seven percent (57 percent) of the criminals
agreed with that statement. Thus, experienced predators recognized the risk to
themselves from the armed citizen.

But why have we not seen these studies acknowledged in the medical literature
on guns and violence? Why have these researchers and the editorial staffs who pub-
lish their work seemingly ignored vital data showing the life-preserving, injury pre-
venting benefits of guns?

Perhaps the answer is illuminated by the editor of the New England Journal of
Mediicine in his response to being informed that fewer than 3 percent of gun crimes
involved the use of “assault weapons.” The author stated “I am unmoved by the ar-
gument that these weapons (automatic and semiautomatic weapons) account for
onl; a small fraction of deaths.” In supporting & ban on the sale of those firearms
this leader of academic medicine rejected facts in favor of emotion, science in favor
of sentiment.

This bias is certainly reflected, unjustifiably in both the Centers for Disease Con-
trol's (CDC) research and its policies. Leading the charge is Mark Rosenberg, M.D.,
%41_15(’313 of the National Center for Injury Prevention and Control, a division of the

JC.

Dr. Rosenberg and the National Center for Injury Prevention and Control are not
shy about expressing their negative views on firearms. In s recent issue of Rolling
Stone, Dr. Rosenberg suggested that to regulate the lethality of guns, technological
advances may play a role. He cited the, “possibility of manufacturing a gun trigger
with sensors that recognize and respond to only one hand. (The owners hand would
probably have to be implanted with a chip).”

It's hard for us to conceive of how any public health official can realistically sug-
gest that any American would permit their privacy interests to be violated to the
point of having a government micro-chip implanted in their body.

Certainly, however, this thinking is merely the natural extension of the policy
that was suggested in the CDC's May 1993 Injury Control in the 1990's: A National
Plan for Action which states:

New legislative and regulatory efforts to be considered are to prohibit the
manufacture, importation, and sale of handguns except in special cir-
cum-tances; establish a national waiting period for all purchases of fire-
arms, coupled with a mandatory criminal record background check; estab-
lish nationwide restrictive licensing of handgun owners whereby a handgun
license would be granted only when a clear, legitimate need for possessing
a handgun is demonstrated (e.g. for professional use!: and enact an excise
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tax on firearms and ammunition at a rate sufficient to cover the public cost
of firearms injuries.

The documert shows that it was printed by the Association for the Advancement
of Automotive Medicine (AAAM) as a part of the “conference materials for the Sec-
ond World Conference on Injury Control.” The endorsements page of the document
at page vi of the report lists among its supporters Handgun Contrsl, Inc.

When asked about tnis matter, Health and Human Services' Secretary Donna
Shalala stated that the report’s recommendations are subject to the report’s dis-
claimer that the recommendations “are those of the contributors and do not nec-
essaril regresent the policy of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention or
any other federal agency.” gerhaps that is true in a technical sense, but then why
would the U.S. taxpayer pay $100,000 to develop the entire report’s recommenda-
tions, and nearly $749,000 to have the U.S. participants present them at the Second
World Conference on Injury Prevention and Contro ?

To me the answer is clear. Through whatever artifice it takes, anti-gun research-
ers ﬁre motivated more by their feelings about guns than by a real desire for the
truth.

Any reasonable assessment of the risks of firearm ownership must include the
known benefits. And those benefits are measured in terms of the deaths averted and
injuries avoided by lawful defensive uses of firearms. Limiting responsible gun cwn-
ership will not control criminal gun violence. You can be sure tgat criminals will
get guns.

No waiting period and no other laws that severely prohibit felons from ever touch-
ing a firearm will stop them. Even one of our more noted criminologists, Professor
James Q. Wilson from UCLA, stated not too long ago that “the Brady bill, which
I support, may affect the probability that one or two lunatics will get guns and go
off on a killing spree, but the chances that the Brady bill or any feasible gun control
measure will really take guns out of the hands of serious criminals, I think, is quite
farfetched.”

Last summer a felon serving time in a Ma land state prison wrote the Washing-
ton Post, and said among other things, that the first thing a released violent crimi-
nal will do “is get a gun,” no matter what laws are on the books. If he is right—
and he ought to know—then measures like Washington's “3 Strikes and You're
Out,” Arizona's law to end parole and early release programs, and doubling prison
time for violent offenders in Texas make a good deal of sense. These approaches cer-
tainly make more sense than going down the same failed path of passing more laws
that only affect the law abiding.

Do we really want to face the real problems causing violence in our society? Amer-
ica is asking that question, and so am 1. America gas had plenty of gun control,
but very little violence control. It is a lot tougher to deal with the person behind
the gun than the gun itself. Guns are not the root cause of violent behavior.

If this gun ban passes, or any variant of it, you can be sure that a victo will
be declared by the bill's supporters in the fight against violent crime, even t ough
the bill does not provide one cent to improve state and local law enforcement efforts,
or really cut crime. The felons at the Maryland State Penitentiary will receive the
news of the bill's passage from television. When they do, a knowing smile will ap-
pear on their faces. It will be business as usual. In fact, business will be better than
usual, because the law abiding citizen will be disarmed.

I urge you instead to empower America's law abiding citizens, and reject the no-

tion that gun bans will effectively deal with our nation's public health problems.
Senator SIMON. Dr. Suter?

STATEMENT OF DR. EDGAR A. SUTER

Dr. SUTER. Every year, as many as 2.5 million good Americans
use guns to protect themselves and their families—as many as 75
lives protected by a gun for every life lost to a gun, as many as 5
lives protected per minute. The tangible human benefits of guns in
the hands of good citizens are the lives saved, the injuries pre-
vented, the medical costs saved, and the property protected. It
should not be surprising that about 1 percent of America’s guns are
used annually to protect good pecple, or that guns are the safest
and most effective means of protection, or that guns’ benefits are
75 times their costs.

-
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Decades of research published in the criminological, sociological,
and legal literature ang the work of Presidential and National In-
stitute of Justice commissions have all exposed the false promises
of gun control. Some professional societies and some of the medical
literature unfortunately have uncritically embraced politically cor-
rect fallacies. At least one journal, the New England Journal of
Medicine, has strayed into politics so far afield of good science that
it has been disavowed by its own State medical society.

We have been deceived by catchy ratios, headline-grabbing
factoids, and outright false statements from medical politicians.
Today, we heard one witness claim that there were 7,000 uninten-
tional gun deaths amongst innocent children. That is a 60-fold ex-
aggeration of the 120 such accidental deaths that cccur each year.
.. Former Surgeon Keop, the editor of the Journal of the American
Medical Association, and others have claimed 1 million Americans -
die from guns every year, a 35-fold exaggeration. In another 35-fold
exaggeration, 3 CDC employees, inclusing Dr. Rosenberg, claim
that “The odds that potentially suicidal adolescents will kill them-
selves is 75-fold when a gun is kept in the home.” The truth: Since
that study, no study has shown an increased risk of firearm suicide
for normal teens.

The barely measurable increase in risk for mentally ill teens
from the study quoted by Rosenberg was actually showing one-thir-
ty-fifth the risk claimed by Rosenberg and bolstered only the non-
controversial policy of denying guns to the mentally ill, the gross
exaggerations of Dr. Rosengerg notwithstanding.

The Journal of the American Medical Association published an
AMA position paper on military look-alike guns, the buzz word
named “assault weapons.” That position paper was based on a sin-
gle flawed study of gun traces. Since gun traces are not representa-
tive and not an accurate sample of crime guns, the Congressional
Research Service, the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and F irearms,
and the FBI have all explained gun trace data cannot be used for
statistical purposes and therefore cannot be used for developing
sound public volicy.

In fact, over two dozen studies ignored by the AMA showed that
these assault weapons represent a barely measurable fraction of
crime guns. In the worst areas of drugs and violent crime, so-called
assault weapons represent from zero to 3 percent of crime guns.
The best current evidence suggests that, overall, these false sym-
bols of violence represent about one-eighth of 1 percent of American t
crime guns and nothing like the nightmare suggested by the im-
agery of gun prohibitionists.

We have heard it touted that owning a gun shou'  be at least
as tough as owning a car. The proponents of the aut nobile model N
of gun ownership, however, apply their analogy sele. avely and in-
completely. Medicine’s prohibitionists ignore tﬁt no license or reg-
istration is needed to own and operate any kind of auto on private
property. No proof of need is required for automobile registration
or driver licensure, and once licensed and registered, autos may be
used anywhere in the United States and State drivers’ licenses are
given full faith and credit by other States.

Although the toll of auto tragedies is many times that of guns,
no arsenal permit equivalent is asked of auto collectors or auto
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sports enthusiasts, nor has 2nyone suggested that automobile man-
ufacturers be sued when autos are, as they frequently are, misused

by criminals in drive-by shootings, bank robberies, car bombs, and
aYl manner of crime and terrorism.

Who needs a car capable of three times the naticnal speed limit?
But cars have good uses, is the usual response, and so too do guns

have good uses—the protection of 2.5 million good Americans every
year.

We have heard the deceptive claim that a gun in the home is 43
times as likely to kill the homeowner. This is a political effort from
a researcher with an admitted bias, a disdain of guns, to falsely
suggest that guns are dangerous when used for self-protection.
Since only about 1,000 of the protective uses of guns results in the
death of the predator, any study such as Dr. Kellerman’s 43-times
fallacy that counts the number of criminals killed as the onlg meas-

ures of guns’ benefits will expectedly underestimate guns’ benefits
1,000-fold.

No objective researcher would suggest—

Senator SIMON. If you could conclude your remarxs?

Dr. SUTER. No objective researcher would suggest that the num-
ber of criminals killed by police is an honest measure, much less
the only measure, of the effectiveness of law enforcement. Yet, this
is exactly the method used by Dr. Kellerman to fabricate the 43-
times failacy. Victim disarmament is not a policy that saves lives.
I also find it very interesting to note that not one member of the
committee recognized that since 1968, it has already been illegal by
Federal law to sell guns to children.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Suter follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF EDGAR A. SUTER, M.D.

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee: My name is Edgar A. Suter, MD.
[ specialize in family practice and aviation medicine in San Ramon, California. | am
also the National Chair of Doctors for Integrity in Research and Public Policy, a doc-
tors' organization dedicated to bringing balance and integrity to private and public
research on firearms ownership and use. | appreciate the opportunity to speak to
you today, as a member of the medical community and as a concerned citizen, about
a subject matter that has been blurred and distorted by emotionally charged rhet-
oric and questionable research.

That subject is, of course, private firearms ownership and use. The medical com-
munity has become increasingly involved in the firearms ownership debate, and
many of the voices that have been heard within this community have encouraged
legislators and the public to support strict regulations, and even bans, on firearms
ownership. These factions of the medical community have proffered supgosed evi-
dence of outrageously high health care costs to society that are attributable to pri-
vate firearms ownership, and have attempted to discount any of the benefits to law-
ful firearms ownership by citing biased and methodologically flawed research. They
would have you believe that the answer to lower health care costs ard a safer soci-
ety is more restrictions and bans on gun ownership. Our national organization of
medical school professors, researchers, and clinicians believes that exactly the oppo-
site is true.

Every year as many as 2.4 million good Americans use guns to protect themselves
and their families, as many as 75 lives protected by a gun for every life lost to a
gun, as many as 5 lives protected per minute. The tangible human benefits of guns
i the hands of good citizens are the lives saved, the injuries prevented, the medical
costs saved, and the property protected.

Is it surprising that about 1 percent of America’s guns are used annually to pro-
tect good people? * * * that guns are the safest and most effective means of protec-
tion? * * * or that guns' benefits are 75 times their costs?

If these facts are surprising it is because a monolithic wall of censorship sround
certain high-profile journals has kept such data from publication while encouraging
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the publication of fundamentally flawed science. The peer review process should en-
sure the publication of competent scicatific studies without intertrence from politi-
cal censorship. The medical literature on guns and violence has failed on both
counts—not only has peer review failed to identify biased and sometimes incom-
petent research from politicized “scientists” who benefit from millions of taxpayers’
dollars, but medical peer review has censored all data and research unless it sup-
ports an imagery of tlge gun 1s the icon of violence.

It is medicine's dirty little secret, the real “public health emergency,” that there
is a shocking amount of bias that infects the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), the
Journal of the American Medical Association (JAMA), the New England Journal of
Medicine (NEJM), and certain other medical journals and professional societies.
That bias obscures rather than clarifies the interaction between weapons and vio-
lence in our Nation today. In obscuring that interaction we are sidetracked from im.
plementing effectual solutions—delayed in healing the wounds of violence.

Congress is being successfully beguiled by perhaps well-intentioned physicians
who are, for personal rather than scientific reasons, simply opposed to private fire-
arms ownership. Their stated objective is to create a culture ofpintolerance for lawful
gun ownership in this country. Several have been receiving public funds for years.
They spend millions of tax-payer dollars with no objective oversight whatsoever to
ensure the accuracy and utility of their research. By toeing the line of CDC's stated
political objective—making the private ownership of guns not only illegal, but “so-
cially unacceptable”—these researchers have ingratiated themselves with their os-
tensible overseers at the CDC. At the same time, CDC officials spend public money
attending gun prohibition conferences, such as Dr. Rosenberg's recent appearance
at the Handgun Epidemic Lowering Plan (HELP) Conference in Chicago October
16~19, 1993. This conference was described by its organizer as a political meeting
and not a scientific assembly.

These purveyors of this “science” ignore the overwhelming evidence of the protec-
tive benefits of guns while they promote the deadly policies of gun control. Thoulgh
my remarks today address guns and violence—and the 75 lives saved by guns for
every life lost 1o a gun—let us not imagine that breast cancer research, AIDS, and
other controversial topics are untouched by politicized science.

The U.8. Bureau of Justice Sta’istics has shown that guns are the safest and most
effective means of protection for oneself or ones family. Defense with a gun results
in fewer injuries to the defend=r than resisting with less powerful means and in
fewer injuries than not resisting at all. The fast that guns are the safest and most
effective means of protection is particularly important to women, children, the elder-
ly. and the physically challenged—those most vulnerable to vicious predators.

Decades of research published in the criminological, sociological, and legal lit-
erature and the work of Presidential and National Institute of Justice (NIJ) Com-
missions have all exposed the false promises of gun control. Some professional soci-
eties and some of the medical literature, unfortunately. have uncritically embraced
these politically cc.rect fallacies. At least one journal, the New England Journal of
Medicine, has sirared into politics so far afield of good science that it has been dis-
avowed by its own siate medical society. These are also the same Journals that, be.
cause of their palpable visceral antipathy towards guns, blind themselves to the
overwhelming predominance of data demonstrating the good uses of firearms and
guns’ net bene(?ts to society.

We have been deceived by catchy ratios, headline grabbing “factoids,” and outright
false statements from medical politicians. Former Surgeon General Koop, the editor
of JAMA, and others have claimed that 1 million Americans die annually from
guns—a 35-fold exaggeration'

In another 35-fold exaggeration, three CDC employees, including Dr. Rosenberg,
claimed that “the odds that potentially suicidal adolescents will kill themselves is
75-fold when a gun is kept in the home.” The truth? Since that study, no study has
shown an increased risk for firearms suicide for normal teens. The barely measur-
able increase in suicide risk for mentally ill teens, about 1/35th the rick claimed by
Rosenberg, bolstered the non-controversial policy of denying guns to the mentally
ill, the gross exaggerations of Dr. Rosenberg and his colleagues notwithstanding.

The JAMA pu ?ished an American Medical Association (AMA ) position paper on
military “look alike” guns, the buzzword named “assault weapons.” That position
paper was based on a single flawed study of gun traces. Since gun TRACE data are
not representative and are not an accurate sample of crime guns, the Congressional
Research Service (CRS), the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco an(j” Firearms (BATF), and
the Federal Burecau of Investigation (FBD) have explained that gun TRACE data
cannot be used for statistical purposes, and therefore cannot be used for developing
sound public palicy
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In fact, over two dozen studies ignured by the AMA show that these “assault
weapons” represent a barely measurable fraction of crime guns. In the worst areas
of drug and violent crime, so-called “assault weapons” represent from zero to 3 per-
cent of crime guns. Best current evidence suggests that. overall, these false symbols
of violence represent about one-eighth of 1 percent of American crime guns; nothing
like the nightmare suggested by the imagery of gun prohibitionists.

The editor of the NEJM has stated in print that he needs no data because he
finds these guns abhorrent. He describes all guns' berefits as “intangible” though
there the 2.5 million good Americans protected by guns annually would disagree
with him, including the good citizens and shopkeepers who used these “black guns”
to protect themselves, their families, and their livelihoods from gang and mob vio-
lence in the Los Angeles Riots, Hurricane Hugo, and Hurricane Andrew. As this
committee has heard today. good citizens use these guns for protection of themselves
and their children.

It is this kind of "science’ that allows the AMA to cite a single flawed study in
the face of over two dozen contradicting studies. We are pummeled incessantly by
flawed studies and sensationalized imagery. Each rare “assault weapon” tragedy is
newsworthy for months precisely because such incidents are rare.

As this Committee is well aware, the CDC is charged by Congress with identify-
ing solutions to violent and accidental deaths and injuries, including those involving
firearms. Regrettably, as I have stated, the CDC has consistently abused its man-
Jate, using public monies to fund research intended from the outset to confirm a
predetermined opinion, a political agenda, against decades of research demonstrat-
ing the net benefit of guns in our society and the failure of gun control. This evi-
denced not only in its research, but also in its communications strategy with the
public. Let's take for example the anti-gun “spin’ the CDC gives promoting a very
selective application of comparing mostly tntentional gun injuries with different
types of accidental deaths.

arly this year, the CDC released a study asserting that the 21 percent decline

in motor vehicle deaths between 1968-1991 was the result of government interven-
tion in the form of “public information programs. promotion of behavioral change.
changes in legislation and regulations. and advances in engineering and tech-
nology.” and that firearms-related deaths, which increased 60 percent during the
same period. could be curtailed with a similar approach.

The study failed to articulate, however, that virtually all motor vehicle-related
deaths are accidental, while only a small number of firearms-related deaths are. The
causes and, therefore, prevention strategies are necessarily different for accidental
and intentional injuries. The CDC's method is comparable to lumping intraoperative
deaths. stabbing deaths, and death by hara kirir to contrive some inference about
knives. If one honestly compares “apples to ap les,” the CDC's approach to public
health and safety is left wanting—between 196 1991 the decline in motor vehicle-
related deaths fell short, compared to all other major types of accidental death.
While the motor vehicle-related accidental fatality per capita rate declined 37 per-
cent between 1968—1991, non-motor vehicle public deaths declined 38 percent, home
accidents declined 41 percent, work accidents 49 percent, and firearm-related acci-
dents 50 percent.

In fact. in the absence of the kind of massive governmental intervention that the
CDC proposes, annual fatal firearms-related accident rates have declined steadily
throughout the 20th century. Since the all-time recorded high in 1904, the fatal fire-
arms accident rate has steadily dropped 85 percent. Since 1930, while the gopu-
lation has doubled and the number of privately owned fiiearms has quadrupled, the
annual number of fatal firearms accidents has declined 56 percent. ?n other words,
the imagery of “a proliferation of guns on our streets” holds no scientific truth.

We have heard it touted that owning a gun should be at least as tough as owning
a car. The proponents of the “automoﬁile model of gun ownership,” however, apply
their analogy selectively and incompletely. Medicine's prohibitionists ignore that no
license or registration is needed to “own and operate” a1y kind of auto on nrivate
property. No proof of “need” is required for automobile registration or drivers’ licen-
cure. Once licensed and registered, autos may be used anywhere in the U.S. and
every state’s licenses are given “full faith and credit” by other states.

Although the toll of auto tragedies is m~ny tilles that of guns, no “arsenal per-
mit" equivalent i asked of auto collectors or auto sports enthusiaste Nor has any-
one suggested that automebile inanufacturers be sued when autos are, as they fre-
quently are, misused by criminals in drive-by shootings, bank robberies, car bombs,
and all manner of crime and terrorism. No one has sugyested banning autos because
they mught be used illegally or are capable of exceeding the 55 mph speed limit,
oven though we know “speed kills.” Who needs a car capable of three tiines the na-
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tional speed hmit? “But cars have good uses” is the usus’ response. So too do guns
have good uses, the protection of 2.5 million good Americans every year.

We have heard the decertive claim that a gun in the home is “43 times as likely
to kill the homeowner," This is political effort from a researcher with an admitted
bias, a disdain of guns, to suggest that guns are dangerous when used for self-pro-
tection Since only about 1-in-a-thousand (0.1 percent) of the protective uses of guns
results in the death of the predator, any study—such as Dr. ellermann’s “43 times"
fallac—~that counts the number of criminals killed as the oni measure of guns ben-
efits will expectedly underestimate guns' benefits a thousand fold.

No objective researcher would suggest that the number of criminals killed by po-
lice is an honest measure, much less the only measure of the effectiveness of iaw
enforcement, yet this is exactly the method used by Dr. Kellermann to fabricate the
43 times" fallacy. If one took note of the 1990 Harvard Medical Practice Study sam-
ple suggesting that medical negligence kills 150,000 Americans per year indicating
that ductors’ negligence kills five times as many people as guns. One might then
conclude that doctors, despite extensive training, licensing, and scrutiny are a dead-
ly public menace. Why don’t we reach that conclusion? Because, in balance, doctors
save many more lives than they take. Just as with guns, where 2.5 million lives
«ce protected annually, and 75 f,ives are protected by a gun for every life lost to a
gun.

Dr Kellermann has recently, and expectedly, revised his estimate downwards. His
“43 times” fallacy has been downgraded to the “2.7 times” fallacy. His method and
data are stiil fallucious because they overlook the honest measure of guns' benefits-—
the lives saved, the injuries prevented, the medical cnsts saved, and the property
protected Simply stated, the benefits of guns are 75 tiines the costs of guns.

Dr. Kellermann used a method comparable to noting diabetics are more likely to
have insulin and, from this, concluding that insulin causes diabetes, Dr. Kellermann
1~ fund of noting that his method was used to associate lung cancer and smoking,
but no has one suggested that lung cancer caused smoking. %/Iedicine's prohibition-
I=ts ignore that, in the few exceptional circumstances where guns are associated
with violence, one must consider that, as the preponderance of data shows, that
rather than guns causing violence, violence causes justifiably frightened people to
obtain guns. Consider the skyrocketing gun sales afier the L.A. riots. The unparal-
leled rates of gun sales continue even as the mass media begins to admit that claims
of an “epidemic of violence” are false.

Is it coincidence that medicine's politicians have exaggerated the human and eco-
nomic costs of gun violence, looking to tap honest, tax-paying gun owners for a new
source of revenue, just as inner-city hospitals have been hit with bud etary con-
~traints? The real cost of medical care for gun violence is approximately %1 5 billion
per year—less than lfpercent of America's 3800 billion total heulth care costs. ™.
exaggerate the costs of gun violence, gun prohibitionists are fond of including esti-
mates of lost lifetime earuings—assuming that gang bangers and rapists wor'd be
as socially productive as teachers, factory workers, and other good Americans.

In fact, it has been estimated chat active criminals cos soctety untold human suf-
fering and an average of $400,000 per year, It has also Len noted that about three-
fourt%]s of gun death victims are involved with drug trafficking or use. It is therefare
more realistic to believe that the gun deaths of those predators actually represents
a net savings to society in both human and economic terms. This is nowhere near
the assorted and false claims of $20, $40, or $80 billion in costs.

As to the humnan costs of guns, mass media has made it fashionable to claim an
“eprdemic of violence.” Crime is a very serious problem, but analysis of homicide
data shows a stable to slightly declining trend for every segment of American soci-
ety except for an outbreak of violence virtually limited to inner-city teens and young
adults involved in drug trafficking. Federal law already makes teen gun purchases
tllegal and Washington, D.C.'s gun ban goes much further, yet Washington, D.C.'s
African-American male teens have a homicide rate twenty times the U.S. average.
If "guns cause violence,” why does Virginia, the alleged “easy purchase” source of
Washington, D.C's guns have a murder rate one-third less than the national aver-
age, and one-ninth of Washington, D.C.’s rate?

If “guns cause violence,” why do groups with higher rates of gun ownership have
the lower rates of murder? y did Florida's homicide rate fall 40 percent when
pood citizens were allowed to carry concealed weapnns?

Notwithstanding Handgun Control, Inc.'s (HCD) imagery about “blood running in
the streets,” the ohservec reality is that crime fell because vicious predators feared
a0 encounter with an armed citizen, a fear far greater than the fear of apprehension
by Policc or the fear of our timid criminal justice system. It is no mystery why Flor-
da’s tourists were targeted by predators—the predators knew that tourists, unlike
Florida's good citizens, were unarmed. HCI maios many proposals “if it saves only
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one life * * *” Since gun ownership and the carriage of concealed weapons by sane,
law-abiding adults saves many lives, HCI and this committee should support such
policies, if saving lives is really the interest.

If gun control works, why do areas with the r.ust severe restrictions have the
worst violence, and the areas with the most permissive gun policies have the least
violence? Murder rates are as much as 80 times higher in areas with the most dra-
conian gun bans.

Even in the bastions of liberalism the voices of politically incorrect, but scientif-
ically iustified, dissenters are being heard. In the current Atlantic Monthly, law pro-
fessor Daniel Polsby poses a key question about the false romises of gun control:
if gun control saves one life but costs many lives, what then? Criminals already
overlook laws against murder and drug trafficking. Criminals already igrove 20,000
American gun laws, including nationeﬁ laws. What mystical incantation will cause
criminals to respect the next gun law?

As repeated, National Institute of Justice (NIJ) studies have shown, criminals not
ong have ready access to cheap stolen guns-—including guns stolen by Washington,
D.C. police officers then peddled on the black market—without any waiting period,
background check, licensing, or re istration. With criminals’ great motivation to ob-
tain guns for their “line of work,” the black market in guns will not wither under
gun prohibition. it will dprosper.

It is time that the deadly costs of gun control were examined. By making good
Americans defenseless prey, gun prohibition will hardly create the civilized utopia
claimed by some Members of Congress and others. If the “true believers” of gun pro-
hibition wish to remain heedless of data; if they continue to promote gun taxation
and bans hoping against hope to produce an unproducible gun scarcity in a nation
with an estirnated 200 to 240 million guns, only 0.1 percent of which are misused;
if they wish to eschew the safest and most effective means of protection for them-
seives, they are welcome to do so. However, such unwise, unworkable, unconstitu-
tional, and deadly proposals must not become public policy.

Every item of Senate Bills 1878 and 1882, even to the name “Gun Violence Protec-
tion Act of 1994,” is a crime control sham. A more honest title would be “The Crimi-
nal Occug‘ational Protection and Victims Persecution Act of 1994.” Ban some guns
because they are too small, some because they are too big, and, as for the ones that
are “just right,” make them too expensive to own by all but the wealthy. By increas-
ing the monet and bureaucratic costs of gun ownership, this travesty will dis-
proportionately disarm good Americans. The Brady law has been in effect not even
one month. Perhaps the prohibitionists a afraid that, if we ive time for the effect
of the law to be known, the crime control fraud of gun control will be revealed more
clearly than it already is.

Every person has the inherent right to self-protection and, by inference, the right
to the safest and most effective means to that protection. By cenfiscatory levels of
taxation and regulation, a disproportionate number of good Americans will be left
defenseless against predators and, as experience has shown in many jurisdictions,
there will be many good Americans who will not comply. By the stroke of & pen they
will be transformed into criminals simp.y because they needed to protect themselves
and their children and could not afford the costs you impose upon them. Addition-
ally, we should nut forget that the basis of the Second Amendment is not some theo-
retical construct. Schindler’s List reminded us of the Holocaust and, at the same
time, reminded us how helpless good people can be when they are disarmed. It re-
minded us that should government decide to do away with civil liberties, a disarmed
citizenry is then only one breath awar\; from oppression.

We cail upon Congress to review the competent and honest research and to insti-
cute oversight to ensure the competence and integ.ity of future research funded
with public money. We call upon Congress to censure CDC eraployees who pursue
a political agenda on public money. Taxpayers must no longer foot the bill for the
politicized research conducted by the CDC or some of its extra mural investigators.

The facts are clear—as many as 75 lives are protected by guns for every life lost
to a gun. Victim disarmament is not a policy that saves lives, because, in the hands
of good citizens, guns save lives, prevent injuries, reduce medical costs, and protect
progerty. Guns have benefits with which we can LIVE!!!

Senator SIMON. Thank you, Dr. Suter.
Dr. Gratia?

STATEMENT OF DR. SUZANNA GRATIA

Dr. GRATIA. Mr. Chairman, I know your heart and evexibody else
in this room, their hearts are in the right place on this. I know that
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most people in here already have an opinion, but if you could for
the next few minutes, I would Jjust like you to open your mind and
try to look at this from a new perspective and maybe even consider
or put your wife or your daughter in my place.

I didn’t grow up in a house with guns. I personally abhor hunt-
ing. I did grow up in a house where my father was an expert on
the founding of our country, and knowing what I know it amazes
me that this is even up for discussion. When I was 21, I was given
a gun for self-protection by a friend and taken out and trained on
how to use it, and I carried that gun with me.

A couple of years ago, my parents and I were in a restaurant in
Texas, where T am from. We had Just finished eating—the place
was packed—when all of a sudden this guy drives his truck
through the window. Of course, my first thought is, like everybody
else, it is an accident. I started to get up to go help, and then we
heard gunshots.

Immediately, my father and I got on the floor, my mother down
behind us. We put the table up in front of us, and the shooting con-
tinues and you are thinking, robbery? What could it be? The shoot-
ing continues. It took a good 45 seconds, I would say, for me to fig-
ure out that this man was simply going to walk around and shoot
as many people as he possibly could. Now, he was not spraying bul-
lets. He gad complete control over the circumstances. He walked
from person to person, aimed and pulled the trigger; next person,
aim, pull the trigger.

When I figurad it out, I thought I got this guy. I reached for my
purse and then realized that a couple of montﬁ;l earlier I had made
the stupidest decision of my life. I had taken my gun out of my
purse and left it in my car 100 yards away, fntally useless. because
I was concerned about losing my license to p. ictice chiropractic. In
the Gtate of Texas, it is a felony offense to carry concealed 4ny-
where where wine or beer or any alcohol is served, and I was wor-
ried about losing my license.

Making a long story short, my father saw what he thought was
an opportunity to go at the man, which he did, and the man turned
and shot my father in the chest and he fell. It made the killer go
off to my left, and for whatever reason he continued around the
room beyond me. Someone at the back of the restaurant broke out
a window and I saw an opportunity to escape.

I turned around, I grabbed my mother by the shirt collar and I
said, come on, come on, we got to run, we got to get out of here.
My feet grew wings and I ran 40 yards as fast as I could out the
window. When I got outside, I realized that my mother had not fol-
lowed me out, and a short while later I learned from one of the po-
lice officers that she had stayed. She had crawled out into the open
where my father was and cradled him until the gunman got back
around to her. He pointed his gun at her. She looked up at nim,
put her head down, and he pulled the trigger.

Both my parents were lost that day. I am not mad at the guy
that did it because everybody knows you can't legislate against a
rabid dog. That is a sick animal. You can’t be mad at that. What
I am mad at is my legislators. I am mad at them legislating me
out of the right and the ability for me to protect myself and my
family. A gun is not a guarantee. Of course, my gun couldd have
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jammed. Of course, I might have missed. I can tell you I have hit
far smaller targets at much greater distances, but it is possible.
But it would have changed the odds, wouldn’t it?

In conclusion, I want to make it very clear that I would much
rather be sitting in jail with a felony offense on my head and have
my parents alive. It is not going *o happen to me again.

That concludes my testimony, but with your permission and if
there are no objections, I would like to submit for the hearing
record a stack of articles of people who have successfully defended
their children with firearms. :

Thank you.

Senator SIMON. They will be entered in the record.

[The articles referred to follow:]




Lo 2h Lavery was home with her
caugeer ot thewr Richford. Vi, home
when hey heard the sounds of 4
eced entry. As her daughier phoned
peahices Lavery loaded 4 shotgun and
went o aavesteate. Finding a0 man
rehing through a broken buckdoor
window_ Lavery tired 14 single blaat.
The man 1led. but o wounded suspect
wis Quickly apprehended. (The Mex-
seager. St ATbaas, Vi, WO/

A Salineno. Tex.. woman was
alone wath her two young daughters
when a man attempred (0 gain eniry
10 the home during the early mormng
hours. Failing 1o enier the front door.
the burglar begun w crawl through &
windgw when the wuman lfired 2
shotgun, mortaily wounding him.
(The Valley Mormag Str. Harlingen.
Tex. 47100)

After theur son ceceived several
death threas. an Everedt, Wash, cou-
pic wranged for an armed neighbor
to be at their home when the boy ar-
rived home from school. When the
mon—a - spect in several sexual as-
saults o ¢hildren—broke in the
home. the neighbor struggied with
ard shot him. The inguder fled. but
was later apprehended by nolice.
(The Herald, Everesr, Wash, 12/19/41)

Hearing the vnmustzhable sounds
of a dcor being kicked in at his
Hope Mills, N C.. home carly one
moming, Hal Tdwards grabbed his
2un and went (0 nvestigaie. Ed-
wards frund the wntruder in s
sleeping du:ghier's bedroom. and
stici being lired upon. shot e
wiminal twice 1 the chest. killing
pm (The News & Ohserver. Ra-
teigh. N.C. U23/93)

Her famrily waken hostage by her
dsughier's  ex-boytrend. Buarbara
Hoit of Keams. Utah, und her hus-
band were threatened with death.
then forced into the bathroom of thewr
home., When the man. armed with a
ritle. went into the kitchen with her
daughter. Holt Mipped inio the bed-
“oom 3nd got her .22 pisiol Tl wus
hiding 1n the comer and when le
cume out of the kichen. | just pulled
the trigger.” Hnlt said. Her «ingle
shut it the man in the head and
stopped the atwk. (The Tribune. Salt
Lake City, Utah. 1072191)

Napping in her rural Mission,
Tex., home with her two children.
Vanessa Cooper heard a ear pull up,
and. looking out the window. saw an
unfamiliar car in the driveway. Fear-
ng for the salety of her children,
Cooper picked up 2 pistol and went
ig investigate. She found a man in the
living room. and when he ignared her
questions on why he was there and
lunged 3t her. Cooper fired. killing
the inuuder. (The Valley Morming
Star. Harlingen, Tex., 3/13/92)

Swecping the walk in front of his

Norristown. Pa. reswurnt. Long
Som heard his 10-yeur-aid daughter
screaming. Som pulied 2 piatol. tor

which he hay a permu. and fn lo
where she hud been luading taxes m
the car. 10 find 2 maa (ryinyg w Ay
her sway. Deciding Som was wrous
alter the businessman fired weveral
Jhuis in the aie, the attacker dropped
e girl and ran away. (The Times
Fieratd. Norristown, P, 12/16/51)

Charlic Mikos of Eensalem. Pa..
had just gone (0 bed when he was
roused by s daughter’s screams
and the sounds of a struggle. Run-
ming downswws. he found 3 man
holding what later tumed outto be a
stun gun to her heag. Grabbing his
pistol. Mhikos trained it on the man.
convinced him (o cease hiv aswault
and held hum for polics. (The Bucks
Counry \ourier Times, Levutown,

Pa.. 111697
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Threatening robber shot by woman

{AVONIA. Ca. (AP) — A gunman
ardered a woman o come aut of 3 mo
ted bachroom or see het child kifled.
§0 she openad the door and shx him
wn the head. 3uthonues said Satur-
dsy

The man. who was c¢nticaily in-
pared. was one of two armed robders
who broke 1o the room Friday night
hours alief robbing another family at
an intersiate $8 moted, Fraankiin
County Shenff Joe Faster 33ud.

- Carol Pitterson of Enterprise.
Ala., was pot wjured during ite
ﬁ:ooun but her husdand, Jarmvs

oward Patterson, sullered a frac.
fyred skuil during a sculfle when the
me* dDroke i,

Th. second gunman go Sway.

Patiorson jumped one of the men
when tocy broke in and. while he
sculfled wath them, Mrs. Patierson

rabbed one of thesr guns and ran <o
the baihroom, Faster said.

One robber went to the door and
1old her to come aut or he would kil
her sleeping child. Mrs. Paiterson
*came ot but she came out shoalihg
and she goc one of them.” Foster
said,

The ocher rabber escaped, but Fos-
ter said aythorities “'think we know
who he 5 *

The Pstterson’s I-year-old daugh-
ter, Lriana Patierson, siept soundly
even though half a dozen gunshas
were lired, Foster said.

“They emptied (heir other gun
back at her, but shed.du’t get hun at
all." Foster satd of Mrs Pacrterson.
“One of them ran out (he door and
ran back in and snapped hs gun at
her busband, but u was slrescy

empty ©

The man shot by Mrs. Patiersta
was tanen 0 Ti.madge Memorial
Huspriat mr Augsta. whe e e wés n
critical condition after head surgery.
the sherill sa1d. Authonnies said they
were unabie to wdentify him end
would ftingerprint him

The Paitersons were [raveling (o

REST COPY AVAILAR!! &

Washington and had 21opped 1o spend
the night a1 the Lavonia mutet.

Foster s21d the rocoers 'efi a brief
case .0 e Paitersons room contain:
ing jeweiry, watches and 2asn [aken
1n a robbery of another laauly 3t a
matei v Banks County Several mem
bers of the lamuly were ireated at &
hispiial {or Deuises.
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PISTOL PAGKIN

AUNTIE

FOILS

GIRL’S KIDNAP

Fost Wire Services

DENVER — A modern-day
Aon'es Qakiey single-hapdedly
saved her nlece from an alleged
kidnaper by ambuahing him on &
‘mouatain road and holding him
forcove.

The dramastic gud happy :nd-
ing unfolded outatde Denver on
Monday when the 34-year-ld
wommas, carrying & loaded pistol,
sto the ct's van,

“I waan't golag to shoot him or
anything. I was az scared s be
wei " said the sun?, who was
identified by police only as
“Marcls”

Marla wor 30 terrified that
when cops finally came to arrest
the guspect, she told them she
didnt know baw to uncock the
pistol -

Pollcs told ber to pently place
the gua on the ground.

The \ncident began when Mar-
la’s ¢yesar-<ald alece, Audrey,
was playing with & cousin oo &
sidewalk A man gradbed her,
dragged her (nto & van end Qed.

The victim's mother snd an-
other aumt dashed ty Maris's
house and t0l4 der about the kid-

naping.

“l Bad Just got out of the
shower, and i went and got my
gun and ] got my bullets.” Masls

told The Deaver Post.
She figured the thug who

"grahbed her miecs wauld try to

get out of lown decause of the
ocommotion st the scene of the
abduction. On & hunch. she
headed to nesrdy Lookout Moun-

It pald off. :

While Audrey’s mother was
calling relatives. Marla and an-
other sister spotted a van match-

the |kidnaper's. Maria
jumped into her ear and tailed
the van.

Scon, the: driver pulled over
and waved her by.

“But 1 got out of the car with
the gun in my pocket, and I
walked up to the car,” gaid
Marls.

“When I u'xAudrty:uXh glﬁ‘t
gfay anything. I just e
mwzm:mxed t and told

to get out and told him to get
In front of the van and e down.”

1 just held him there until the
police came.” Maria ssid “When
the police came, I {un walked
ovntomguud ugged (Lhe
girh).*

Cope grabdded Domald Dele
Lewia, 77, on kidnaping and sex-
val-assgult charpes. Lawis, who
Was on parole for sexually abus-
ing bndzl-ysuvold. was held with-

out

~o

The only thing beiween her cheis
dren and e man bresking iato her
Woce was 3 shotpun, and g Flou,
Moch. waman 0ok Lol sdvantage of
the fact that he wae gnned. As the
wtruder broke through the doot ihe
woman hid her (wo chitdren under o
wble, knelt i Irbat it amd when he
entered the ruom, ficed several blasts
liom the pum)d gun. The waunded
prisan parvlee led. hut pohice appre-
hended him by (ollowing a tral of
biood  (Fhe Sournul. Fhint, Muh
1082

A3 his father fought for his iife
with 3 man accused of Murdenng
w0 men earlier, | 5-yzar-~ld Mickey
Sanford poked & fifle through the
window ot the tamily’s rural mobile
home and hilled the cominal with a
single shot. authorities 1 Sumgall,
Miss.. said.  Tammy Sanfory.
Mickey's mother. aiso armed herself
and shot her husband's assaiant.
William Santord suffered a wound
from the slam man's handgun in (he
strugyle The dead man had been the
object of 3 week-long manhunt ater
he allcgedly kidnapped (wo school
girls and then kiiled two men whlc
stealing a truck acar Seminary. Miss
tThe Cletrtan Ledyer Jaohson. Mo,
M
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Senator SIMON. We thank you for your testimony. Did the person
who came in with—was it a pickup truck, into tﬁe restaurant, or
drove into the restaurant—did he have a criminal record?

Dr. GRATIA. No, sir, he did not. He had a—well, he had a mis-
demeanor charge of marijuana possession from years earlier. There
was really nothing that anybody could have held him on. It was
simply somebody whose brains turned to worms. He ended up kill-
ing 22 people that day. It was truly a war zone. 1 have never been
around violence in my life. I grew up in a very upper middle-class
neighborhood, and it opened my eyes.

I weuld like to point this out because it is hard tc bring this
home to people unless you have seen it. To me, putting up metal
detectors in places amazes me. If I were a gunman who decided I
wanted to kiﬁ a lot of people, am I going to go to an NRA conven-
tion, or am 1 going to walk right through one of these metal detec-
tors out here, blow away the two security guards in a second flat,
and then start waltzing around in here killing people with relative
irnmunity, knowing nchody in here has got a gun?

As far as the number of bullets, people say, well, what about
that? You know, he had a semiautomatic gun. I have got news for
you. It doesn’t matter if you have 1 obullet or 100 bullets in there.
it takes one second for him to drop the clip out and pop one in,
and I have seen people do that with revolvers as well. That is not
an issue. Trust me, I have been there, and thank you for your time.

Senator StMoxN. Thank you.

Dr. Kellerman, Dr. Suter says as many as 75 lives are protectec
by a gun for every life lost to a gun. Does your study suggest that
ihs an accurate figure? I gather the two of you are not in agreement

ere?

Dr. KELLERMAN. Well, that figure has been quoted quite a bit in
the past few months. I am a little surprised, given Dr. Suter’s self-
declared commitment to integrity in research findings, that he
hadn’t played around with a pocket calculator for about 5 minutes
and looked at whether those numbers make sense or not.

The 2.4 million figure is derived trom a survey conducted by Pro-
fessor Gary Kleck. I could be wrong, but I don’t believe it has yet
been published in a peer-reviewed journal or otherwise, but Profes-
sor Kleck has given a number of interviews, one in the Orange
County Register that was reprinted in the American Rifleman and
the American Hunter that at least provides one with an oppor-
tunity to look at what the figures say.

Qut of that 2.4-million figure, however creatively arrived upon,
he says in 8 percent of those uses individual injured or killed the
attacker. If you multiply 2.4 million times 8 percent, you come up
with about 192,000 injuries from gunshots a year in self-defense.
That is basically equal to the sum total of individuals treated in
our Nation's emergency departments with gunshot wounds per
year, self-inflected, assault-related, or unintentional. I guess they
were all really shot in self-defense, according to Professor Kleck's
figures. Nonetheless, that is what you arrive at.

If you assume that five of those injuries resulted in one fatality,
a ratio that is fairly consistent based on mortality and injury data
and one that is backed up by local law enforcement statistics, it
would suggest that some 38,000 bad guys a year are killed in self-
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defense, again, using Professcr Kleck’s figure. That figure equals
the total number of unintentional deaths, suicides, and homicides
a year.

I can only reach one of three conclusions. First, everybody that
dies from a bullet every year is actually killed in self-defense. Sec-
ond, if that is not true, then there are some 35,000 dead bad guys
under the bushes cf law-abiding citizens every year that nobody
has found and taken to a medical examiner yet. Or, third, the fig-
ures are off the wall. I think that Professor Suter, or Dr. Suter, as
the case may be, could have arrived at the same assessment if he
had bothered to run the numbers.

Senator SIMON. I will ask Dr. Wheeler and Dr. Suter kind of a
basic question. Why do you own guns?

Dr. SUTER. We haven't said we do.

Senator SIMON. Pardon?

Dr. SUTER. I said we haven’t said we do.

Senator SIMON. I am sorry. I have a little bit of—

Dr. SUTER. We haven'’t said we do own guns.

Senator SIMON. I am sorry. Dr. Wheeler, I guess you indicated
you own guns?

Dr. WHEELER. Yes, sir. Senator, I grew up on a farm in southern
Illinois, God’s country.

Senator SIMON. You have great roots, Dr. Wheeler. [Laughter.]

Dr. WHEELER. It was on that farm that I first learned about
guns. At about the age of 12 or 13, my father taught me how to
shoot a .22 rifle, and I want to emphasize here that in southern
Illinois at that time drugs, gangs, violence—these were not a part
of it. In teaching me how to shoot a .22 rifle, my father tavght me
several vitally important things. He taught me, first of all, safety.
Second, he taught me how to avoid hurting innocent human life.
He taught me responsibility.

In getting this start in learning about guns in my life, I believe
I was - ven the best- safety mechanism on my guns that I could
ever have. I believe that if we teach children how to properly use
guns, make them understand the safety requirements and give
them a respect for innocent human life, we will be able to give
them the best safety mechanism they could ever have.

Senator SIMON. But what about Dr. Teret’s suggestion for . cquir-
ing child-proofing of guns that may be in a home?

Dr. WHEELER. I think that it is an excellent concept, and there
is no doubt that any firearm owner has an affirmative responsibil-
ity to protect those under the umbrella of his protection, those in
his family, those who are too young to understand the dangers and
the risks. The teaching that I received in how to handle firearms
included that.

The teaching of one of the organizations I now belong to, the Na-
tional Rifle Association, is for young children encountering a gun
that they should learn the basics even at that early age—stop,
don’t touch, leave the area and tell an adult. So I agree fundamen-
tally with Dr. Teret’s idea.

Senator SIMON. Dr. Teret, you suggested regulating manufactur-
ers. What about the importativn of weapons? Is this something that
we should address? Maybe, Mr. Aborn, you want to comment on
that, too.
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Mr. TERET. We have done something odd in this country. In 1968
when the Gun Control Act was passed, we made it illegal to import
certain weapons, Saturday night specials, and they were defined
with dc .ail so you would know what was a Saturday night special.
We didn't make it illegal to produce them domestically. So, in es-
sence, Hrotectionist legislation was passed in 1968, and manufac-
turers flourished in the United States that could produce Saturday
night specials without any competition from imported guns, from
foreign manufacturers.

I believe that the rules that apply to foreign manufacturers
should be the same rules that apply to domestic manufacturers. If
a gun is dangerous, it is dangerous no matter whether it was made
abroad or whether it was made here.

If I may, Senator Simon, just address the prior question where
Dr. Wheeler says that we are in agreement, I would like to say
that we are in sharp disagreement. When you asked Dr. Wheeler
about making manufacturers make guns that are child-proof, his
answer was that parents have a responsibility to protect their chil-
dren. They do have that responsibility, but unfortunately they
often fail at that responsibility, and the fate of a child who is born
to an irresponsible parent ought not to be a death sentence.

We don’t rely upon individuals in the field of public health and
safety to always protect themselves. We fluoridate water sugply on
a community basis instead of telling each individual to put uoride
in his own water. We mandate regulations about motor vehicles in-
stead of telling everybody to go out and buy an air bag and try to
install it in your car. We have to do the same thing with guns,
which are a consumer product which are currently unregulated.

Senator SIMON. I am not sure that you two are actually in dis-
agreement. Dr. Wheeler, you are suggesting that you are in agree-
ment, for example, that a weapon that is manufactured ought to
be able to be child-proof. Is that correct?

Dr. WHEELER. ] believe we may have a difference of definitions
here, Senator. Firearms are by their very nature capable of being
used for the infliction of injury, whether accidental or intentional.
Already, firearms are subject to a great number of safety mecha-
nisms which have been built in even before the days when ruinous
product liability litigation was driving the process.

A great amount of research and development is these days put
into creating safeties. An example would be the Glock pistol which
has a three-tiered system of internal safeties. As a result of that,
this firearm has been adopted by many police departments in this
country as one of the very safest firearms to be used by them.

I do not believe, Senator Simon—in concordance with your ear-
lier remarks about the ingenuity of young children, I do not believe
that we can completely child-proof gins.

Senator SIMON. I agree with that.

Dr. WHEELER. But we can do the reverse. We can make children
conversant with guns.

Senator SIMON. Dr. Suter, do you want to add something?

Dr. SUTER. I would. Safety is not a device. Safety is a2 mind set.
There are so maay different manufacturers whose different fire-
arms design would require several different types of loading indica-
tors and safety devices that it would be far more difficult to edu-
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cate people to understanding the loading indicators than it is to
utilize instruction in safe gun avoidance or safe gun handling.

As Dr. Wheeler said, for children, stop, don’t touch, leave the
area, get an adult, teaching children gun avoidance. For adults, to
teach aduits, you don’t point a gun at a person unless you mean
to defend yourself. It is very important that while much of the im-
agery has been focused on accidental children’s deaths—and truly
each one of those is tragic—we are talking about 120 innocent chil-
dren per year killed by accidental gun deaths. Accidental gun
deaths have been falling throughout the 20th century and are now
hovering at their all-tilne low. We have to compare that cost to the
cost of lives lost if good people are disarmed.

Dr. Kellerman took issue with the 2.4 million protective uses of
guns. Interestingly enough, there are approximately a dozen stud-
ies on the protective uses of guns. Every one of those studies, in-
cluding the low-ball estimate, which is the only one I have ever
seen Dr. Kellerman quote in print, the National Crime Survey,
finds that the protective uses of guns far exceed gun deaths.

With the exception of that one low-ball estimate, all of the other
studies far exceed gun deaths and gun injuries by many, many
more times. The benefits of gun far outweigh their cost to society,
whether we are talking about the human toll or the economic toll.

Senator SIMON. The Susgeon General’s testimony was 1,520 acci-
dental deaths by firearms.

Mr. Aborn, Dr. Gratia has gone through a terrible experience,
and people read and heard about these experiences and there is
fear out there. What do you say to people who have fear who want
to protect themselves?

Mr. ABORN. I think the issue, if I can continue with this medical
theme that has been discussed this morning, is really one of in-
formed consent. I think one of the most important things that is
going to bappen under this legislation is that this whole issue
about the prudence of carrying guns for self-defense will be ex-

lored, and explored all across the country constantly. I suspect a
ot more researchers will be getting into this, and that is very valu-
able because our opponents have been saying for a Jung time that
people are, in fact, much safer by having a gun. The reality is, and
I think the data is beginning to indicate, that they are not and we
are beginning to get that message out.

But at the heart of this legislation is not an effort to keep law-
abiding citizens from getting guns. The heart of this legislation is
an effort to reduce the amount of guns flowing into the illegal mar-
ket and to keep criminals from getting guns. Somehow, the other
side likes to posit this issue as a choice between either having guns
or not having guns. That is not the issue. The issue is can we cut
down the number of illegal guns going tr the market and thereby
reduce the amount of vio?ence associated with crime.

Senator SIMON. Two more comments and then I am going to have
to adjourn the hearing. Dr. Gratia?

Dr. GRATIA. I thought you might find this of interest. Two weeks
ago, I was at a political meeting that had two died-in-the-wool gang
members as speakers, ] mean with the tatoos and the trappings,
the whole nine yards. One of the questions thrown at one of the
gang members was, how do you feel about gun control laws, and
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he laughed and he said, man, you can pass all the laws you want;
that doesn’t make them any tougher to get; all it does is drive the
price up and that means I have got to go rob somebody to get the
money to get one. I thought to myself, here is this street kid that
has got this concept down, and for some reason we miss that.

Senator SiMON. I might add in that connection that there was a
Roman Catholic chaplain at a State prison in California who had
an op ed piece in the Los Angeles Times. He has a class of 40
criminals, experts on crime, if you will. He asked them what should
be done to reduce crime. Their number one suggestion was get jobs
for people. Their number two suggestion was get rid of many of the
guns in our society.

Dr. Kellerman, you get the last word here and then we are going
to have to adjourn.

Dr. KELLERMAN. Senator Simon, I think you have seen today an
example of the complexities of this issue. The fact that physicians
and public health professionals have cont. buted information to
help the public and help Members of Congress frame what we can
do about gun violence in this country is a fundamental change in
our understanding. This has been a very politicized issue; it will
continue to be one.

I grew up in a small town in east Tennessee. My daddy taught
me to shoot. I taught riflery to kids in summer camp. Guns are not
a foreign concept to me, but as an emergency physician I have seen
the costs and the consequences of gun violence. As a public health
professional, I am committed, as are my colleagues, to providing
the public with the kind of information they need to make knowl-
edgeable decisions.

Tt is having an impact on the terms of this debate and it is, in
turn, engendering some fairly well-orchestrated and fairly passion-
ate efforts to project disinformation and to deceive the public and
to prevent them from making informed, responsible decisions about
what is best for them and their family.

You and your colleagues are faced with an enormously complex
issue. Violence has many factors and many causes. Firefighters will
tell you, and I was a medical director for a fire departmeat EMS
service for 8 years, it takes three things for a fire—oxygen, fuel,
and heat. If you can remove one, the fire will go out. In iko case
of violence, there are many factors that contribute to it and we
have to target all of them for attention, but we as a society and
as individuals would be remiss to ignore the role that guns play not
in causing that violence but in dramatically amplifying its con-
sequences.

Senator Simon. I thank all of you very much. Our hearing stands
adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12:48 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]




APPENDIX

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

AUDITIONAL QUESTIONS BY SENATOR HOWARD METZENBAUM FOR WITNESSE.
AT THE _LIEARING ON_THE_GUN_VIOLENCE_PREVENTION ACT ON 3/23/94

DPR._ARTHUR . KEILLERMAN

1. 1N THE OCTOBER 7, 1993, NEW ENGLAND JOURNAL OF MEDICINE, 10
PHYSICIANS AND MEDICAL RESEARCHERS, INCLUDING YOURSELF, STUDYING
OVER 400 HOMICIDES IN THE HOMES OF VICTIMS REPORTED: "DESPITE THE
WIDELY HELD BELIEF THAT GUHS ARE EFFECTJVE FOR PROTECTION, OUR
RESULTS SUGGEST THAT THEY ACTUALLY POSE A SUBSTANTIAL THREAT TO
MEMBERS OF THE HOUSEHOLD. . . . A GUN KEPT IN THE HOME IS FAR
MORE LIEELY 70 BE INVOLVED IN THE OEATH OF A MEMBER OF THE
; HOUSEHOLD THAN IT IS TO BE USED IN SELF-DEFENSE." CAN YOU TELL
. US MORE ABOUT THE CONCLUSIONS OF THIS STUDY AND THE RESULTS OF
L OTHER STUDRIES ON GUNS IN THE HOME?

2. ASIDE FROY HOMICIDPS, WHAT PERCENTAGE OF ACCIDENTS AND
SUICIDES CAN BE ATTRIBUTED TO GUNS [N THE HOME?

3. ONE OF YCUR STUDIES CONCLUDES THAT HOMES WITH GUNS ARE 3
PIMES MORE LIKELY TO BE THE SCERL OF A HOMICIDE THAN COMPARABLE
HOMES WITHOUT GUNS. YET THE NRA AND OTHERS CLAIM THAT A GUN 1S
75 TIMES MORE LIKELY TO BE USED TO SAVE A LIFE THAN TO TAKE A
LIFE AND THAT GUNS ARE USED FOR SELF-DEFENSE 2.4 MILLTON TIMES A
YEAR. HOW DO YOU EXPLAIN THOSE CLAIMS?

4. HOw CAMN ADDRESSING THE CRISIS OF GiIN VIOLENCE AS A PUBLIC
. HEALTH FROBLEM HELP IN SOLVING THE PROBLEMY

oL HOwW EFFECTIVE DO OYOU THINE TLAT THIS 1.EGISLATION WOULD BE IN
CORBING GUN VIOLEGCE:
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Dear Senator Metzenbaum
Thank you for your kind letter of March 28 | am sorty that you and you:
Republican collegues could not stay tor the entire heanng | understand that you were
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that a qun n the home was 18 times more likely to be mnvolved in the death of a member

of the household than to be used to kill an intruder

Bobbie Les of the University of Texas Schoel of Nursing in Houston
pxammer] ol qunshot inunes (nonfatal as well as fatah that occurred In residences in
Guoilvester Loxas over o throe year penod of tme  Only two fuearm injunes wete
reb 1te ¢ o rosidental 1ebbery or burglary  one case. the resident vias shot and wilted
by he burglar. In the other, a burglar was wounded by the homeowner During this
stme ume penod, guns were nvolved in the death or injury of more 100 homeowners,

tamuly members, friends and acguaintances.

Women may find keeping & gun in the home a particularly bad idea. D1 Jun
Meccy of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and | analyzed 12 years of FBI
homicide statistics for the entire United States and found that women are shot and killed
by their husband or intimate acquaintance twice as often as women are killed by
strangers using guns, kimives or any other means. When a woman killed with a gun, the
viclim was five times more likely to be her husband. an intmate acquaintance ot a

member ot her family than to be a stranger or a person of uncaterminer relationship

The report that you quoted from the New Englanc Journal of Medicine 1s based on
the first large scale, “case-control” study of homicide in the home I relation to gun
ownerstup  Hesearchers at three major Universities teamed up with local law
enforcement agencies to conduct this research  For five consecutivo years we (dentified
All hamicides that occurred in the fiome of vicims m King Courity. WA and Shelby County
1N Durning the last two and ong-half years of the project. we aiso identified every case
of homicide that occuried n the home of victims ving in Cuy. hoga C ounty Ohio
(Cleveland). Twenty four percent of the hornicides that occurred 1n these three counties

duning the study interval took place in the home of the victim

From each of 88 houscholds where a homicide occurreu we obtained detailed
mformation about the victm, his (or kier) family, and the home n which the homicide

occurred The charactenstics of each of these "case” households was then compared to

the charactenstics of a randomly selected "control” household i the same neighborhood

that was not the scene o 1 homicide Each "contiol” household contamed an mdividual ot

the same age range. sex, and race as the victim
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By comparing "case” households whare a homicide occurred to “control”
households where a hemicide did not occur, we were able 1o identify factors that
potentially increase (or decrease) a family's risk of homicide in the home. Some were
no furprise  Households with a history ot domestic violence, households whore any
fartiy member used illicit druoc. and households with a member who had ever been
aristed were more likely 1o be the scene of a homicide than comparable households
without one or more of these charactenstics. However, even after taking these and two
other nsk factors into consideration, we found that the odds of a homicide occurring In a
home with guns were almost three times greater than the odds of homicide n a
comparable home without guns. All of this increased nsk was due 1o an almost eight fold

greater risk of homicide at the hands of a family member or intimate acquaintance.

Guns in the home were linked to an increased risk of homicide among women as
well as men, whites as well as blacks, and older as well as younger individuals. Guns
were not found to afford substantial protection trom homicide, even when we restricted

our analysis to the small number of cases that followed forced entry into the home.

These results do not mean that guns are never used 1 protect a family. It 1s
evident, however, that the uncommon instances when guns are used lor self defense are
substantially outwejghed by the number of 1mes guns are involved In tragedies in the
home The fact that an armed citizen occasior.ally uses a gun to stop a cnime is ali the
encouragement many people need 10 keep a loa fed pistol in their night stand. It's the
sarne logic that sells millions of Iottery tickets each year. Unfortunately, the rules of
this game are different  If a state lottery gave one winner a week the jackpot but

randomly selected three people for execution. | don't think they'd sell many tickets.

2 Aside from honucides, what percentage of accidents and suicides can be attubuted to

guns mn the home?

Since our national sources of data are quite linuted, | can only cite local
statistics  One Calforma study determined that approximately half >f cases involving
chitdren shooting children occur when kids play with a loaded gun they have found in the
home My colleagues and | conducted a large scale case control study of suicide in the
home In refation to gun ownership and observed that approximately 70 percent of
suicides N two large metropolitan counties occuired m the home of the victim  Aftei

matching case and control households by victim age ranqe. sex. race. and neghborhood.
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and after taking the etfects of six independent nsk factors into consideration, we found
that homes with guns were almost five times more likely to be the scene of a suimide than
comparable homes without guns

2 One of your studies concludes that homes with guns are 3 imes more likely to be the

S

scene of a hormicide thar comparable homes without guns.  Yet the NRA and others claim

that a gun 1s 75 times more likely to be used to save a life than to take a lite and that
guns are used for self defense 2.4 million tmes each year. How do you expiain those

claims?

The NRA's figures are based on the work of Professor Gary Kleck, a criminologist
at Florida State who is a devoted advocate of guns for self defense. His findings were
released shortly after publication of our study of guns and homicide in the home. To my
knowledge, they have not been published in a peer reviewed journal. However,
Professor Kleck has spoken freely about his findings to reporters. [l've fooked at Kleck's

numbers, and they simply don't add up.

If you believe Kleck and the NRA, then you must corclude that approximately
192,000 people are being shot in self-defense each year. That's roughly equal to the
tolal number of gunshot cases treated in all of our pation's emergency departments. |f
one out of every five dies (a reasonable estimate, based on local police statistics) then
38,400 people die each year after being shot by a gun owner in self-defense. This

figure 1s roughly equal to all of the gun suicides. homicides and accidental deaths that

occur in the U.S. each year.

This leads to one of three conclusions: 1) every person who died of a gunshot
wound in 1993 (whether due to suicide, homicide or accident) was really shot in self
defense. or 2) Approximately 35,000 dead bad guys are left under the bushes of law-

abiding gun owners each year, or 3) Kleck and the NRA are wrong.

T The 75-to-one ratio 1s even harder 1o figure out | think it's based on the
assumption that every one of Kleck's mythical self defense uses saved a life. Data from
the much larger (and far more scientific) National Crime Victimization Survey suggests
that guns are used in self defense about 78,000 times each year- a total that 1s 1/30 the

size of Kleck's estimate This number pales n comparison to the costs of gun violence-
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cnmes each year

A HOow can addrossing e crnee o gun saeeeiine 4 gl fie o frot o he o

ol ag the problem?

Fiearm related injunies are o leading cause of premature death drr.ability, ang
heaith care costs in United States A teenager in Amenica today 15 more likely to die of «
gunshot wound than all "natural” causes of death combined There are several reasons
why public health can compliment the traditional strategies of cnmunal justice to
address this cnsis' public health researchers have access to data and research
lechniques that are outside the domain of criminal justice Pubic health emphasizes
prevention rather than reacting to events after they occur  Public health looks at every
possible angle to prevent illnesses and injuries, and frequently determines that a
combination of strategies is far more effective than any single approach alone. Public
health’s focus on protecting and erihancing the quahty of lite for the viclims of gun
violence comipliments criminal justice's efforts to deter, Incapacitate or rehabtintate
offenders. Finally, it is important to realize that a minority of episodes of gun violence

_nvolve "gun crime” In the traditional criminal Justice sense. More people die from gun
suicides than gun homicides. Gun accidents account for a small petcentage of gun deaths,
but a larger percentage of gun related injuries. A minority of gun homicides occur in the
context of another felony, such as robbery or sexual assault Most gun homicides occur
n the context of an altercation among family members, friends or acquaintances in the
heat of a dispute, few individuals carefully weigh the legal conscquences of their actions.
They're too busy reaching for the most effective weapon readily at hand  If that weapon
happens 1o be a gun, a death or serious injury 1s more likely to occur

H o How effective do you think this legislation would be n curbing qun violonce ™

If this legislation 1s enacted. it will be extremely important to formally evaluate
its impact - There are several reasons to believe, however, that it will be very effective *
at reducing gun violerice: 1) It will expand the list of persons excluded from purchasing
tirearms to include violent crinunals that plea bargan 10 misdemeanors. 2} It will
make gun running from permissive junsdictions to more restrichive ones far more A
dificult, 3) It will dramatically reduce the number of kitchen table gun dealers and

mprove oversight of those that reman. 43 It will requtate secondary transfers of
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guns, currently the mest common way guns get into the hands of juveniles and cnminals;

5) It will ban production of weapons that threaten the hves of our police officers and
ciizens while serving little or no sporting purpose . and 61 It will bring gun

manufacturers mto the wop of pubhc accouiniability

Thank your aqam for nviing me 1o paticipate n this heanng | hope my
information will be helpful 1o you and your fellow Senaterss as you proceed with ths

important and necessary legislation

sincerely,

PR
! H

: f’)") i~

Coidiom
JRAL N peana

Arthur L. Kellermann, M.D., M.P H
Associate Professor and Director

Emory Center for Inury Control




ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS BY SENATOR METZENBAUM AT THE HEARING ON THE
GUN _VTOLENCE PREVENTION ACT, ON 3/23/94 FOR DR. EDGAR SUTER:

i YOU [IAVED ARGUED THAT PEOPLE HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEFEND
THEMSELVES ACATHNST CRIMINALS. DO ALI. PEOPLE HAVE THIS RIGHT? L9
YOU ACREE THAT PELONS, MENTALLY DEFECTIVES, AND THOSE PRONE TO
VIOLENCE SHGULD NOT HAVE GUNS?  IF SO, HOW DO YOU THINK SUCH
PERSONS SHOULD BE PREVENTED FROY BUYING GUNS?

oL YOU DISAGREEL WITH DR. KELLERMAN AND OTHERS ABOUT 'THE
CONNECTION BETWEEN GUN ACCIDENTS AND GUNS IN THE HOME. OTHER
THAN YOUR OWM QPINION, WHAT EMPIRICAL, PEER-REVIEWED STUDIES HAVE
YOU PUBLISHED IN MEDICAL JOURNALS THAT SUPPORT YOUR OPINION?

3. PLEASE L1ST ALL OF YOUR PUBLISHED ARPICLES.

4. HOW MANY MEMBERS ARE IN THE ORGANIZATION "DOCTORS FOR
INTEGRITY IN RESEARCH & PUBLIC POLICY"? WHO CONSTITUTES THE
ORGANIZATION’S LEADERSHIP? WHEN WAS THE ORGAN1ZATION FORMED?

HOW WERE YOU CHOSEN NATIONAL CHAIR? HAVE YOU EVER HAD AN
AGREEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING WITH ANY INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY
REGARDING PAYMENT OR REIMBURSEMENT OF YOUR EXPENSES IN CONNECTION
WITH APPEARING BEFORE THIS SUBCOMMITTEE? IF SO, WITH WHOM?

9. EXPLAIN THE BASIS OF YOUR CLAIMS THAT 2.4 MILLION AMERICANS
USE GUNS 7O 0 ROTECT THEMSELVES AND T IEIR FAMILIES AND THAT 75
LIVFS ARE PROTHECTED BY A GUN FOR EVEKY LIFE LOST TO A GUN.

5. D6YQU PHINK PHAT CHILDREN SHOULD CARRY GUNS FOR THEIR
PROTECTION?  SHOULD THEY BE ABLE TO TAKE GUNS TO SCHOOL?

7. SHOULD MANUFACTURERS BE REQUIRED TO ADD SAFETY DEVICES TO
GUNS TR ORDER T0O PREVENT ACCIDENTS? IF NOT, WHY NOT?

2 RO YOU 'PHINK PEOPLE HAVE THE RIGHT TO HAVE ANY GUN FOR THEIR
PROPECTTIONT

“OALY FIREARY THAT YOU THINK PEOPLE DO NGT HAVE THE

o yege

HAVE CTHE RIGET PO GWIAN URLTXTTED NUSRRR oF

ToA MEMRER OF CI'HE HATIONAL RTIFLE ASSOCTATION?
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5201 Norrls Canyon Road ¢ Sulte 140
Doctors for Integrity in Research & Public Policy San Ramon, CA 94583 USA

€dgar A Suter MD, Chalr o 510627740333
FAX 5102771283

Apnl 13, 1994

Sen. Howard Metzenbaum

Subcommittee on the Constitution
(‘ommuttee on the Judiciary

US Senate - Dirksen Office Bldg., Room 524
Washington DC 20510-6280

Re: Requested supplemental testimony on 8. 1362
Dear Sen. Metzénbaum,

Below please find my responses to your interrogatories. In the interest of saving time, I am
transmitting these responses by facsimile. Originals will follow by express mail. I would
add that I find some of your, or perhaps some of your staff's, questions to be objectionable
since there seems to be no nexus between certain inquiries and the substance of the
Subcommittee’s subject matter. Specifically I am referring to the question asked in item 12
regarding membership in a national civil rights advocacy organization and the questions
asked in item 4. The Subcommittee is, of course, entitled to examine and weigh the
credibility of its witnesses and to factor in its deliberations the bas, if any, that each
witness brings with their testimony.

“Nonetheless, I had imagined that some years ago this nation had dispensed with
questioning hy public officials of perceived or real associations with organizations that,
standing alone, were irrelevant to the public policy issues and discourse at hand. I have
answered your questions pertinent to the discourse. I have even answered your questions
about my background, associations, and beliefs. There is nothing remarkable about my
background, associations, or the behefs that 1 share with milhions of other Amernicans

Herewith are the responses to your supplemental interregatories:

1. You have argued that people have the nght to defend themselves against cruninals
Do gll peeple have this right? Do you agree that felons, mental defectives, and these prone to
violence should not have guns” If so, how do you think such persons should be prevent d
from buying guns?

The night of self-definge is a separate 1xsue albeit related issue to what means ont
niay use to defend oneself. Starting first with that right, all citizens, of course, have
the night to defend themselves from anyone who would attack or harm them without
legal justification or with unlawful force. The question of whether the right is
wronglully or correctly asserted must be assessed an a case-hy-case basis under the
law of the prevailing junisdiction’ The right of self-defense, however, is a
fundamental right, so, regardless of one’s “status” in society, a person has the right
to defend themselves if unlawful force is used aga  t them. No one can properly
dispute that point, even in such a situation as whete a convicted and incarcerated
felon defends himself tor herself from a brutal and unustified attack
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Re-. Erequested supplemental testimony on & 1R%2

pagre 2
From Fdpar A Suter MD, Char, Doctors for Integrity i Research & Pubiu Pohiey

Consistent with the intent of the Bili of Rights Framers and interpretation by the US
Supreme Court, I believe that gun ownership in a free and democratic so ety s a
fundamental, inherent, and irrevocable individual right that has been specifically
cnumerated for protection in the Second Amendment of the US Constitution. Denial

of gun ownership for mental or criminal reasons may be appropriate and, as you

know, present federal law makes that clear. ¢

However, federal law also provides for relief from firearms disabilities.
18 11.5.C. §925(c) states in part:

A person who is prohibited from possessing, shipping, transporting, or 4
receiving firearms or ammunition may make application to the Secretary

for relief of the disabilities imposed by Federal laws with respect to the

acquisition, receipt, transfer, shipment, transportation, or possession of

fircarms, and the Secretary may grant such relief if it is established to his

satisfaction that the circumstances regarding the disability, and the

applicant’s record and reputation, are such that the applicant will not be

likel to act in a manner dangerous to public safety and that the granting of

the relief would not be contrary to the public interest.

I strongly believe that this is appropriate public policy. For example, a felon who has
paid his tor ker) debt to society, as in the case of a “white collar” felon whose conduct
did not involve vioience, would probably be a good candidate for relief from

disability. Most such “white collar” felons have no proclivity to violence and may
be safely entrusted with guns.

Analogously, “mental defectives” are often passive, rather than aggressive. In
fact, on April 8, 1994 Northwestern University released a six year study that showed
mentally ill inmates are no more likely to commit a violent crime after being
rcleased than these with no disorder. Unless mentally and emotionally challenged
indmaduals have been adjudicated a violent threat to pubhe safety or demonstrably
so mtellectually mpaired that they cannot safely handle a frun, I do not believe that
pulilic pohicy should impede their ability to own a firearm or to seek relief from a
firearms disability if they are in remission from a mental disease or defect that
previously disqualified them from owming a firearm,

A “Prone to violence™ test for disquahfying an individual from awning a gun is

far too subjective a criterion. Some researchers have proposed investigating a

venetic link to vielence. A tremendous furor urose because seme felt this mught

have racial implications that could be used against African American citizens

Swmce American jurisprudence operates, at loast thearetically, on the “innocent

unt:l proven guilty” principle, whether or not one is “prone” to violence is ¢+
irrelevant, whether or not one appropriately and overtly acts violently 15

relevant Denying a citizen their civil rights for being “prone to violence™ without

uny avert action, or without an adjudication of a mental disease or defeet showing

that person to he a danger to themselves or the community, would be punishing

~ameone for their mere ctatus, and not for any misconduct.
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Re Requested supplemental testimony on 8. 1882 page 3
From Edgar A Suter MD. Chair, Doctors for Integnty in Rescarch & Pubhe Pohey

As for those individuals who are disquahfied under present law from owning guns
or possessing guns, some interesting approuches to alerting dealers and those
engaged 1n private sales might be tried. Marking drivers’ licenses and other
identification with a disqualifying notice, like some states have done for those
under the legal drinking age, might be considered. As is the case now,
transactions should be denied - and unlawful - if the transferce suffers a
disqualifying impediment. Such a system places legal impediments only in the
path of those properly denied gun ownership, rather than the current system

“Brady Bill,” etc.) that places impediments in the path of good gitizens.

No system ef such checks is infallible, however, the estimated 2.5 million
protective uses »f guns each year represents a net benefit to society notwithstanding
exagperated claims of guns’ detriment to our scciety. Any system of checks must
ensure the continuing protective benefits of guns and, so, be weighted to protect the
civil rights of good citizens. We must not approach intrusive restrictions,
particularly when the overwhelming preponderance of competent research shows
that gun control disproportionately disarms good citizens having little, if any,
effect in decreasing criminal gun use and access. The only measures that
consistently reduce violence are measures that inescapably punish violent crime,
regzardless of instrumentality. Of course, plea bargaining can cause those benefits
tn ¢cvaporate.

In summary, victim disarmament i~ pot a pohey that saves lives

2 You disagree with Dr Kellermann and others about the connection between gun

aecidents and guns in the home, Other than you own opinion, what empirical, peer-
reviewed studies have you published in medical journals that support vour opinion

Actually, Dr. Kellermann has said very httle about gun accidents speaifically. |
take this question, therefore, us related to Kellermann's theories reparding
homicide and suicide

Further, in view of question 13-, 1 am uncertain whether you mean to ask me for a
list of airticles that | have published or whether you mean to sk me for a hst of all
materials published 1n medical journals that support my opinion All of my
articles published in the medical hterature are hsted i my response to your
question (3.

In my most recent article on the subject, “Guns n the Medical baterature A
Failure of Peer Review™ 1lournal of the Medical Associntion of Georpna March
1994, 13348), T cite the sources thut support my contentions and my testimony to this
Subcommittee Among these sources are:

Kleck G. Point Blank Guns and Violence m Amenca  New York Aldine
de Gruyter 1991

Fackler MI., Mahnowshi JA, Hoxie SW, and Jason A “Wonnding Fifects
of the AK-47 Rifle Used by Patrick Purdy in the Stockton, California,
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Re: Requested supplemental testimony on S. 1882 page 4
From- Edgar A. Suter MD, Chair, Docto, 101 ine uriiy in Research & Public Pelicy

Schoolyard Shooting of January 17, 1989." Am J Forensic Medicine and
Path. 1990: 11(3): 185-90.

Fackler ML. “Wound Ballistics: A Review of Common Misconceptions.”
JAMA. 1988; 259: 2730-6.

Fackler ML. “Wound Ballistics.” in Trunkey DD and Lewis FR, editors.
Current Therapy of Trauma, vol 2. Philadelphia: BC Decker Inc. 1986. pp.
94-101.

National Safety Council. Accident Facts 1991, Chicago: National Safety
Council. 1991.

World Health Organization. World Health Statistics 1989. Geneva,
Switzerland: World Health Organization. 1989.

FBL. Uniform: Crime Reports Crime in the United States 1976. 1977.
Washington DC: US Government Printing Office.

FBL Uniform Crinie Reports Crime in the United States 1987 1988.
Washington DC: US Government Printing Office.

FBIL Uniform Crime Reports Crime in the United States 1991. 1992
Washington DC: US Government Printing Office.

US Department of Commerce. Statistical Abstract of the US - 96th. Edition.
1976. Washington DC: US Government Printing Office.

Fingerhut LA, Ingram DD, Feldman JJ. “Fircarm Homicide Among
Black Teenage Males in Metropolitan Counties: Comparison of Death
Rates in Two Penods, 1983 through 1985 and 1987 through 1989." JAMA.
1992; 267:3054-8.

Hammett M, Powell KE, O'Carroll PW, Clanton ST, “Homicide
Surveillanes - Umited States, 1987 through 1989." MMWR. 41/8S.3. May
29,1992,

National Center for Health Statistics. Vital Statistics of the United Statex.
Washington, DC: US Govt. Printing Office. 1976 through 1990.

Centerwall, BS Homicide and the Prevalence of Handguns: Canada and
the United States, 1976 to 1980 Am J. Epidemiol 1991; 134. 1245-1260

Mundt RJ. Gun Control and Rates of Firearms Violence in Canada and the
United States.” Can J Crim. Jan 1990: 137-54.

Mauser GA. “Evaluating the 1977 Canadian Firearms Control Legislation:
An Econometric Approach.” a paper presented to the American Society of
Criminology San Francisco, CA, November 1991,
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Re: Requested supplemental testimony on S 1882 page 5
From. Edgar A. Suter MD, Chair, Doctors for Integrity in Research & Public Policy

Kleck G. “Interrupted Time Series Mesigns: Time for a Reevaluation ™ a
paper presented to the American Society of Criminology annual meeting
New Orleans, LA November 5, 1992.

Kopel DB. Children and Guns. Sensible Solutions. Golden CO:
Independence Institute. 1993.

Kopel DB. Why Gun Waiting Periods Threaten Public Safety. Golden CO:
dependence Institute. 1993.

Kopel DB. The Samurai, The Mountie, and the Cowboy: Should America
Adopt the Gun Controls of Other Democracies? New York: Premetheus
Press. 1992,

Kates DB. Guns, Murders, and the Constitution: A Realistic Assessment of

Gun Control. San Francisco: Pacific Research Institute for Public Policy.
1990.

Suter E. "Assault Weapons” Revisited - An Analysis of the AMA Report.
Journal of the Medical Association of Georgia. May 1534.

Cramer C and Kopel D. Concealed Handgun Permits for Licensed Trained
Citizens: A Policy that is Saving Lives. Golden CO: Independence Institute
Issue Paper #14-93. 1993.

Su -r E. Guns in the Medical Literature - A Failure of Peer Review.
Journal of the Medical Association of Georgia. May 1994: 133-48.

Tonso WR. "Social Science and Sagecraft in the Debate over Gun Control.”
5 Law & Policy Quarterly 3; 1983: 325:43.

Kates DB, Lattimer JK, and Cottrol RJ. "Public Health Literature on
Firearms — A Critique of Qvert Mendacity " a paper presented to the
American Society of Criminology annual meeting. New Orleans, LA.
November 5, 1892.

Blackman PH. Crirunalogy’s Astrology: The Center for Discase Control
Approach to Public Health fiesearch on Firearms and Violence. a paper
presented to the American Society of Criminology. Baltimore, MD
November 7-10, 1990

Blackman PH. Chiddren and Furearms: Ltes the CDC Loves. a paper
presented to the American Society of Criminology. New Orleuns, LA,
November 4-7, 1992.

Blackman PH. The Federal Factoid Factory on Firearms and Violence: A
Review of CDC Rescarch and Politics. n paper presented to the Academy of
Criminal Justice Sciences Chicago 1L. March 8-12, 1994,
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Klech G “Guns and Self Protection ™ Journal .o the Medicrt Neviiar. oot
Georgin January 1994

Kates DB "Bigotry, Symbohisni and Ideologry mn the Battie aver Gun
Control” in Eastland, T. The Public Iuterest Law Review 1992 Carelina
Academic Press. 1992

Centerwall BS. "Television and Violence The Scale of the Problem and
Where to Go From Here.” JAMA. 1992; 267: 3059-63.

Centerwall BS. "Exposure to Television as a Risk Factor for Violence
Am. J. Epidemiology. 198$; 129 643-52.

Centerwall BS "Young Adult Suicide and Exposure to Television Sae
Psy. and Psychiatric Epid. 1990, 25:121

Wright JD. and Rossi PH. Weapons, Crime, and Violence 1n America
Executive Summary. Washington, DC. US Dept. of Justice. National
Institute of Justice. 1981.

Wright JD and Rossi PH Armed and Considered Dangerous. A Survey of
Felons and Their Firearms. Hawthorne, NY: Aldine de Gruyter 1986

Firearms Related Deaths.” ('orrespondence. N Engld Med 1986, 315 1483
5.

Suter E. "A Deceptive Contrivance " Arch Neurol. 1993, 50:345.46,

Guns and lomicide in the Home " Correspondence N Engl J Med 1994,
330¢5): 36568

Martin MJ. “The Cost of Hospitalization for Firearm Injuries ~ JAMA
260:3048.50.

Max W and Rice DP. “Shooting 1 the Dark. Estimating the (‘ost of
Firearm Injuries.” Health Affairs 1204+ 171.85

Zedlewski EW. Making Confinement Decisions - Research tn Retef
Washington LC: National Institute of Justice, US Department of Justice
July 1987

McGonip MDD, Cole J, Schwab W, Kauder DR, Rotondo MF, and Angood
PB. “Urb.on Firearms Deaths: A Five-Year Perspective.” J Trauma 1993,
35(4), 532-36.

Hutson HR, Anglin D, and Pratss MJ. “Adolvscents and Children Imjured
or Killed in Drive-By Shootings in Los Angeles ™ N EnglJ Med. 1994, 330,
324-27.

Snyder JR “A Nauon of Cowards ™ The Public Interest. Fall 1993 40 56
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Roth RR, Porter PJ, Bisbey GR, and May CR. “The Attitudes of Family
Physicians Toward the Peer Review Process.” Arch. Fanuly Medicine.
1993; 2:1271-75.

References most germane to the “assault weapon” issue:

»
- Johnson TD. Report on a Survey of the Use of “Assault Weapons” in
California in 1990, Office of the Attorney General, California Department
of Justice. September 26, 1991.
M Florida Assault Weapons Commission. Assault Weapons/Crime Survey

in Florida For Years 1986, 1987, 1988, 1989. Tallahassee, FL. May 18, 1990.

Bea K. “CRS Report for Congress - ‘Assault Weapons': Military-Style
Semiautomatic Firearms Facts and Issues.” Washington DC:
Congressional Research Service, The Library of Congress; May 13, 1992
(Technical Revisions, June 4, 1992). Appendix B. pp. 65-76.

Helsley SC, Acting Assistant Director, Investigation and Enforcement
Branch, California Department of Justice. memorandum to GW Clemons,
Director, Division of Law Enforcement, California Department of Justice.
October 31, 1988.

Ezell EC. Small Arms of the World. Harrisburg, PA: Stackpole Books.
1983. p. 515.

Cerar JC, Captain and Commanding Officer, New York City Police
Academy, Firearms and Tactics Section, New York City Police
Department. 1989 Firearms Discharge Assault Report. New York City
Police Department. 1990. . 2.

Cerar JC, Deputy Inspector and Commanding Officer, New York City
Police Academy, Firearms and Tactics Section, New York City Polhce
Department. 1992 Firearms Discharge Assault Report. New York City
Pohice Department. 1993.p. 7.

McGonigal MD, Cole d, Schwab W, Kauder DR, Rotondo MF, and Angood
PB. “Urban Fireerms Deaths: A Five-Year Perspective.” J Trauma. 1993;
3514y 532-36.

N Trahin J, Detective, Firearms/Ballistics Unit, Los Angeles Police
Department. testimony before the US Senate. Hearings on $386 and §747
Before the Subcommittee on the Constitution of the Commitiee on the
Judiciary. 101st Congress, st Session. May 5, 1989. Washington, DC: US
Government Printine Office.
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Assault Rifle Fact Sheet 2 Quantities of Semi-automatic “Assault Rifles’
Ouwned in the United States. Washington, DC: Institute for Research on
Small Arms in International Security; March 24, 1989,

Hearings on HR1154 Before the Subcommittee on Trade of the House
Committee on Ways and Means. 101st Congress, 1st Session. April 10, 1989.
Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office. p. 114.5.

Baltimore Police Department. Firearms Submissions. 1990.

DiMaio V, Chief Medical Examiner, Bexar County, TX. and Kalousdian S
and Loeb JM, American Medical Association. Letters: Assault Weapons as
a Pubiic Health Hazard. JAMA 1992; 968: 3073-4.

Simkin JE. “Control Criminals, Not Guns.” Wall Street Journal. March
25, 1991.

Mericle JG. “Weapons seized during drug warrant executions and
arrests.” unpublished report derived from files of Metropolitan Area
Narcotics Squad, Will and Grundy Counties, IL. 1989. in Kleck G. Point
Blank: Guns and Violence in America. New York: Aldine de Gruyter.
1991. Chap. 2.

Kirschner KH, Major, Commanding Officer, Bureau of Police Support,
Connecticut State Police. Letter to Moore GH, Lt. Col., Commanding
Officer, Office of Administrative Services, Connecticut State Police. March
11,1993,

Reply Brief of State of Colorado, Robertson, et al. plaintiffs, State of
Colorado, plaintiff-intervenor v. City ard Country of Denver. # 90CV603
(Colorado District Court). p. 13-15. in Morgan, Eric and Kopel, David The
Assault Weapons Panic: “Political Correctness” Takes Aim at the
Constitution. Independence Issue Paper No. 12:91. Golden, CO:
Independence Institute. October 10, 1991.

Boston Globe. March 26, 1989. p. 12. in Kleck G. Point Blank: (iuns and
Violence in America. New York: Aldine de Gruyter. 1991.

Arnoid M, Massachusetts State Police, Firearms Identification Section.
Massachusetts State Police Ballistics Records. March 14, 1990 and April 11,
1991.

Constance J, Deputy Chicf, Trenton, NJ Police Departient. testimony
before the Maryland Senate Judicinl Proceedings Committee. March 7,
1991 p. 3.

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



107
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Moran, Licutenant, New York City Police Ballistics Unit. in White Plains
Reporter-Dispatch. March 27, 1989.

Zien R, Sergeant, Weapons Unit, Homicide Section, Qakland Police
Department. Year End Report 1990: Homicide Section Weapons Unit
Qakland Police Department. 1991.

Oakland Police Department. Supplementary Homicide Reports. Oakland
CA: Oakland Police Department. 1991.

San Diego Union. “Smaller Guns are ‘Big Shots' with the Hoods.” -
(reporting a study by the city’s firearms examiner). August 29, 1991.

Wilson GR, Chief, Firearms Section, Metropolitan Police Department.
Wall Street Journal. April 7, 1989. p. A-12, col. 3. and New York Times.
Anr. 3,1989.p. Al4.

Wilson GR, Chief, Firearms Section, M:tropolitan Police Department.
January 21, 1992. in Bea K. CRS Report for Congress - ‘Assault Weapons':
Military-Style Semiautomatic Firearms Facts and Issues. Washington
DC: Congressional Research Service, The Library of Congress; May 13,
1992 (Technical Revisions, June 4, 1992). Table 5. p. 18.

US Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Statistics. Survey of State
Prison Inmates, 1991. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office;
March 1993. p. 19.

Mohr C. “House Panel l:sue: Can Gun Ban Work.” New York Times.
April 7, 1989. P. A-15.

At the nexus of public health, public policy, and the constitution, my references are:

US Senate Subcommittee on the Constitution. The Right to Keep and Bear
Arms. Report of the Subcommiittee on the Constitution of the Committee on
the Judiciary. United States Congress. 97th. Congress. 2nd. Session.
February 1982.

Van Alstyne W. “The Second Amendment and the Personal Right to
Arms.” Duke Law Journal. 1994; 43: 6.

Malcolm JL. To Keep and Bear Arms: The Origins of an Anglo-American
Right. Cambridge MA: Harvard U. Press. 1994.

Amar AR. “The Bill of Rights and the Fourteenth Amendment " Yale Law
Journal. 1992; 101, 1193-1284,; Winter 1992.9:87-104
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Cottrol RJ and Diamond RT. “The Second Amendment. Toward an Afro-
Americanist Reconsideration.” The Georgetown Law Journal. December
1991: 80; 309-61.

Amar AR. “The Bill of Rights as a Constitution” Yale Law Journal. 1991;
100 (5): 1131-1210.

Levinson S. “The Embarrassing Second Amendment” Yale Law Journal.
1989; 99:637-659.

dJohnson NJ. "Beyond the Second Amendment: An Individual Right to
2rms Viewed through the Ninth Amendment.” Rutgers Law Journal. Fall
1992; 24 (1) 1-81.

Kates D. "The Second Amendment and the Ideology of Self-Protection.”
Constitutional Commentary. Winter 1992: 9: ©7-104.

Cottrol R. Gur Control and the Constitution (3 volume set). New York City:
Garland. 1993.

Cottrol R and Dismond R. “Public Safety and the Right to Bear Aems” in
Bodenhamer D and Ely J After 200 Years: The Bill of Rights in Modern
America. Indiana U. Press. 1993.; Oxford Companion to the United States
Sup-eme Court. Oxford U. Press. 1992. {entry on the Second Amendment)

Foner E and Garrity J. Reader's Companion to American History.
Houghton Mifflin. 1991. 477-78. (entry on "Guns and Gun Control”)

Kates D. "Minimalist Interpretation of the Second Amendment” in E.
Hickok (ed.), The Bull of Rights: Orginal Meaning and Current
Understanding. Univ. Virginia Press. 1991,

Halbrook S. “The Original Understanding of the Second Amendment.” in
Hickok E (editor) The Bill of Rights' Original Meaning and Current
Understanding. Charlottesville: U. Press of Virginia. 1991. 117-129.

Fields WS and Hardy DT. "The Militia and the Constitution: A Legal
History.” Mihtary Law Review Sprirg 1992; 136+ 1.42.

Young DE The Origin of the Second Amendment Golden Oak Books.
1991

Halbrook &. A Rught to Bear Arms: State and Federal Bills of Rights and
Constitutional Guarantees Greenwood 1989.: Levy L. Orwinal Intent and
the Framers' Constitution. Macmillan. 198«

Hardy . Origtns and Decelopment of the Second Amendment
Blacksmith 1986

Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC




PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

Re- Requested supplemental testirmany on S. 1882 page 11
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Levy LW, Karst KL, and Mahoney . Enevelopedia of the American
Constitution. New York: Macmillan 1986, (entry on the Second
Amendment)

Halbrook S. That Every Man Be Armed: The Evolution of a Constitutionai
Right Albuquerque, NM: U. New Mexico Press. 1984.

Marina, “Weapons, Technology and Legitimacy. The Second Amendment
in Global Perspective.” and Halbrook S. “The Second Amendment as a
Phenomenon of Classical Political Philosophy.” -- both in Kates D (ed.).
Firearms and Violence. San Francisco: Pacific Research Institute. 1984.

Caplan D. "Weapons Control Laws: Gateways to Genocide” in Sank D &
Caplsn D. To Be a Victim. London: Insight. 1991.

Scarry E. “War and the Social Contract: The Right to Bear Arms.” Univ.
Penn. Law Rev. 1991; 139(5%: 1257-1316.

Williams DL. “Civic Republicanism and the Citizen Militia: The
Terrifying Second Amendment” Yale Law Journal. 1991; 101:551-616

Kates D. “The Sccond Amendment: A Dinlogue.” Law and Contemporary
Problems. 1986; 49:143.

Maleolm JL. Essay Review. George Washington U. Law Review 1986, 54:
452464,

Fussner FS, Essay Review. Constitutional Commentary. 1986, 3. 582 R,

Shalhope R. “The Armed Citizen in the Early Republic.” Law and
(oritemporary Problems. 1986, 49:125-141.

Halbrook S. “What the Framers Intended. A Linguistic Interpretation of
the Second Amendment.” Law and Contemporary Prohlems. 1986, 49.161
162.

Kates D “Handgun Prohibition and the Original Meaning of the Second
Amendment.” Michigan Law Review. 1983; 82:203.

Halbraok S. “The Right to Bear Arms in the First State Bills of Right«
Pennsylvania, North Carolina, Vermont, and Massachusetts ™ Vermont
Law Review 1985; 10- 255-320

Halbrook S. “The Right of the People or the Power of the State: Bearning
Arms. Arming Militias. and the Second Amendment.” Valparaiso Law
Review 1991; 26:131.207

Tahmassehi SB. “Gun Control nnd Racism ” George Mason Univ Gl
Kights Law Journal. Winter 1991, 20176799
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Reynolds. “The Right to Keep and Bear Arms Under the Tennessee
Constitution.” Tennessee Law Review. Winter 1994; 61:2.

Bordenet TM. “The Right to Possess Arms: the Intent of the Framers of the
Second Amendment.” UW.L.A. L. Review. 1990: 21:1.-30.

Moncure T. “Who is the Militia - The Virginia Ratifying Convention and
the Right to Bear Arms.” Lincoln Law Review. 1990; 19:1-25.

Lund N. “The Second Amendment, Political Liberty and the Right to Self-
Preservation.” Alabama Law Review 1987; 39:103.-130.

Morgan E “Assault Rifle Legislation: Unwise and Unconstitutional.”
American Journal of Criminal Law. 1990; 17:143-174.

Dowlut, R. “Federal and State Constitutional Guarantees to Arms.” Uy,
Dayton Law Review, 1989.; 15(1):59-89.

Halbiook SP. “Encroachments of the Crown on the Liberty of the Subject:
Pre-Revolutionary Origins of the Second Amendment " Uniy. Dayton Law
Review. 1989; 15(1):91-124.

Hardy DT. “The Second Amendment and the Historiography of the Bill of
Rights.” Journal of Law and Politics. Suminer 1987; 4(1):1-62.

Hardy DT. “Armed Citizens, Citizen Armies: Toward a Jurisprudence of
the Second Amendment.” Harvard Journal of Law and Public Policy 1986;
9:559-638.

Dowlut R. “The Current Relevancy of Keeping and Bearing Arms.” Unay.,
Baltimore Law Forum. 1984; 15:30.52.

Malcelin JL. “The Right of the Peopla to Keep and Bear Armis: The (Common
Law Tradition " Hastings Constitutional Law Quarterly. Winter 1983,
10:21:285-314.

Powlut R. “The Right to Armis: Does the Constitution or the Predilection of
Judges Reign?” Oklashoma Law Review. 1983; 36:65 105.

Caplan DI. “The Right of the Individual to Keep and Bear Arms A Recent
Judicial Trend.” Detroit College of Law Review. 1982; 789.823.

Halbrook SP. “To Keep and Bear ‘Their Private Arms™ Northern
Kentucky Law Review 1982; 10(11:13-39.

Gottlieb A. “Gun Ownership® A Constitutional Right.” Northern Kentucky
Law Review 1982; 10:113-40.

Gardiner R “To Preserve Liberty - A Look at the Right te Keep and Bear
Armis " Northern Kentucky Law Review. 1982; 10(13:63.96

a0



111

Re:  Requested supplemcntal testimony on S. 1882

page 13
From: Edgar A. Suter MD, Chair, Doctors for Integrity in Research & Public Policy

Kluin KF. Note. “Gun Control: Is it A Legal and Effective Means of
Controlling Firearms in the United States?” Washburn Law Journal 1982;
21:244-264.

Halbrook S. “The Jurisprudence of the Second and Fourteenth
Amendments.” George Mason U. Civil Rights Law Review. 1981; 4:1-69.

US v. Verdugo-Urquidez. 494 US 259 (1990).

US Constitution, Article 1, Section 8 (11-16).

Miller v. US. 307 US 174 (1938).

House Report No. 141, 73rd. Congress, 1st. Session. 1933. pp. 2-5.

Perpich v. Department of Defense. 110 S.Ct. 2418 (199G).

Patsone v. Pennsylvania 232 US 138, 143 (1914).

Hartzler v. City of San Jose, App., 120 Cal. Rptr. § 11975).

Warren v. District of Columbia, D.C. App., 444 A.2d. 1 {1981).

California Government Code § 845. "Failure to provide police protection ~

Neither a public entity nor a public employee is liable for failure to
establish a police department or otherwise provide police protection
service or, if police protection service is provided, for failure to
provide sufficient police protection service.”

South v. Maryland, 59 US (HOW) 396, 15 L.Ed., 433 (1856)
Bowers v. DeVito, US Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit, 686F.2d. 616 (1882).

Kates DB. “Toward a History of Handgun Prohibition in the United
States.” in Kates, DB, Editor. Restricting Handguns: The Liberal Skeptics
Speak Out. North River Press. 1979.

Kessler RG. “Gun Control and Political Power " Law & Policy Quarterly.
July 1983: Vol. 5, #3; 381-400.

Stark R. Police Riots. Belmont CA: Wadsworth Publishing Co. 1972.
Simkin J and Zelman A. “Gun Control’ — Gateway to Tyranny: The Nazi
Weapons Law, 18 March 1938." Milwaukee Wi: Jews for the Preservation of
Firearms Ownership. 1992

New York v. United States. 112 Sup.Ct.Rptr. 2408 (1992).

Sheriff Jay Printz v. United States. US District Court, District of Montana.
Copmplaint filed March 4, 1994.

Prudential Insurance Co v. Check. 259 US 530, 543 (1922
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Dred Scott v. Sandford 60 US (19 How.) 393 (1857

Laws of Mississippi, 1865, at 165 (29 Nov. 1865); 1 Documentary History of
Reconstruction 289-90 (W. Fleming ed. 1906). J. Burgess, Reconstruction
and the Constitution, 1866-1876, 47, 51-52 (1902) states of the Mississippi Act.
in Halbrook S. That Every Man Be Armed: The Evolution of a
Constitutional Right. Albuquerque, NM: U. New Mexico Press. 1984. p. 108.

Bruce-Biggs B. "The Great American Gun War.” The Public Interest.
1976 45: 37-62.

US v. Cruickshank. 92 US 542 (1876).
Presser v. Illinois. 116 US 252 (1886).

A copy of my articles are appended for inclusion with my testimony. “Guns in the
Medical Literature - A Failure of Peer Review” (Journal of the Medical Assaciation
of Georgia. March 1994: 133-48) extensively discusses the deceptive “factoids,”
fraudulent claims, and biased and seriously flawed research on guns - mest of
which has been funded by tax dollars through the Centers tor Disease Control.
Included in the article are a discussior of the deceptive and fraudulent claims
regarding gun saccidents.

Additionally, even in testimony before your commtittee regarding S. 1882, incorrect
claims have been made about gun accidents. Regrettably, other business took you
away from the hearir.g before 1 delivered my testimony, but in that presentation I
mentioned that Dr. Wright, the representative of the American Academy of
Pediatrics, in a departure from his written remarks, testified that “There are 7,000
unintentional gun deaths of children every year.” Dr. Wright's statement was a
35-fold exaggeration. When I noted this to Sen. Simon, he consulted a staffer and
then noted, “Surgeon General Elders says the number is 1,200." Actually annual
gun accidents average about 1,400 per year for all ages. The Nutional Safety
Council data shows that, for children ages 0-14, an average of about 200-250 child
accidental gun deaths occur annually. Each of those deaths is tragic, but the
magmnitude is nowhere near the 35-fold exaggeration given by the American
Academy of Pediatrics representative and others.

Pleasc list all your published articles.
The following are articles published in the medical hterature:
Suter E.. A Deceptive Contrivance. Archives of Neurology. 1993; 50/4- 345-6.

Suter E “Guns in the Medical Literature ~ A Failure of Peer Review”
Journal of the Medical Association of Georgia, March 1994. 13348

Suter K. “Assault Weapons® Revisited - An Analysis of the AMA Report”
Journal of the Medical Association of Georgia, May 1994
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Suter E, Morgan R, Cottrol R, and Kates DB. “The Right to Keep and Bear
Arms — A Primer for Physicians” Journal of the Medical Assaciation of
Georgia, June 1994.

Suter E. Letters to the Editor. American Medical News July 1, 1991

Suter E. Letters to the Editor. New England Journal of Medicine. 1992;
326:1159-60.

Debate with George Lundberg, MD, Editor in Chief of Journal of the
American Medical Association, on Physicians’ Journal Update, Lifetime
Medical Television, August 23, 1992. Transcript available form the
producer.

This list does not include numerous publications in the lay press.

4. How many members are in the organization “Doctors for Integrity in Research &
Public Policy”? Who constitutes the organization’s leadership? When was the
organization formed? How were you chosen national chair? Have you ever had an
agreement with any individual or entity regarding payment or reimbursement of your
expenses in connection with appearing before this subcon.mittee? If so, with whom?

Doctors for Integrity in Research & Public Policy (DIRPP) was organized two
years ago in California by a group of physicians. DIRPP was founded as a national
“think tank” of medical school professors, researchers, and clinicians who wish to
bring scientific accuracy and balance to public polizy matters, including
particularly questions concerning firearms control policies. The erganization is
also active in challenging the recent efforts by sone in the public health

community who wish to promote their “public health” gun ban and prohibition
agenda (gun bans, licensing, registration, confiscatory taxation, eic.) by
justifying their actions on the basis of biased research studies DIRPP presently
has severs! hundred members.

Among the founding principals of the organization’s working group there was a
consensus for me to serve as chair. The organization is still relativ ely new and,
upon its formation, immediately began to focus on the public policy issues at hand.
Since internal organization issues have been of limited concern, the organization

will settle upon a permanent leadership and succession process in the future.

I personally paid for all my expenses connected with testifying before this
subcommittee. Based on contact with subcommittee staff, 1 am told that 1 might be
reimbursed by your subcommittee, just as Dr. Wheeler's expenses were
reimbursed. Should I not be reimbursed by the subcommittee, the expenses will
continue to be borne solely by myself or DIRPP.

5. Explain the basis of your claims that 2.4 million Anericans use guns to protect

themselves and their families and that 75 lives are protected by a gun for every life lost to &
gun.
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To suggest that science has proven that defendi
gun is dangerous, gun prohibitionists often clai
likely to kill a family member than an intrud
flawed risk-benefit ratio for gun ownership,1 heavily criticized for its deceptive

approach and its non-sequitur logic.2 .34 Clouding the public debate, this fallacy is
one of the most misused slogans of the anti-self-defense lobby.

The true measure of the Protective benefits of guns are the lives saved, the injuries
prevented, themedx'calcothcawd, audthepmpa-lypmtected—nouhecﬁndzwl
count. Since only about 0.1% —1-in-a-thousand — of defensive gun usage involves
the death of the criminal,2 any study, such as this, that counts criminal deaths as

the only measure of the protective benefits of guns will expectedly underestimate the
benefits of firearms by a factor of 1,000.

ng oneself or one's family with a
m: “a gun owner is 43 times more
er.” This is Kellermann and Reay's

Interestingly, Kellermann and his co-authors themselves described, but did not
use, the correct methodology. They acknowledged that a true risk-benefit
consideration of guns in the home should (but did not in their “calculations™
include “cases in which burglars or intruders are wounded or frightened away by
the use or display of a firearm land} cases in which would-be intruders may have
purposely avoided a house known to be armed., "1

Kellermann and Reay had repeated the harshly criticized folly of Rushforthd from
a decade earlier. In 1976 Bruce-Biggs criticized Rushforth noting that the protective
benefits of guns are the lives saved and the property protected, not the burglar body
count.b Kellermann and Reay would have done well to heed that simple caveat.
Objective analysis, ever. by their own standards, shows the “more likely to kill a
family member than intruder” comparison to be deceptively appealing. However,
Kellermann and Reay's contrivance is even more readily seen to be an illusory
argument when compared to the real issues and concerns that law abiding
Americans must weigh in their risk analysis when deciding how they should
provide for the personal security of themselves and their families.

Caveats about earlier estimates of 1 miilion protective uses of guns each yearZ have
led Kleck to perform the largest scale, national, and methodologically sound study
of the protective uses of guns suggesting between 800,000 and 2.4 million protective
uses of guns each year? - not quite as “intangible” as Kassirer, the editor of the
New England Journal of Medicine, claimed.8 As Kleck concluded, as many as 75
lives are protected by a gun for every life lost to agun, as many as 5 lives protected
per minute. Guns not only repel crime, guns deter crime as is shown hy repeated
Nationul Institute of Justice surveys of criminals.9,10 Thege are the benefits of
guns overlooked by scientists whose politics overshadow their objectivity,

Objective researchers agree,
is not available, however, th

studies? suggests that eve
to protect themselves gnd t

perfect data on the frequency of protective uses of guns
e best available data from nearly a dozen concordant

Ty year as many as 2.5 million good Americans use guns
heir families. In about 1/6th of these cases, the defenders

Q
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believe that they would almost certainly have lost their lives if they did not have &
gun.

Of those dozen studies of the protective uses of guns, all but one agree or the
approximate frequency (generally 1 to 2.5 milli~n per year) of protective uses of
guns by good Americans. This is not surprising since 99% of all American guns in
circulation do not have to be used for anything other than sporting, collecting, or
hunting each year. The only study to find otherwise is the only study upon which
Kellermann relies, the National Crime Victimization Survey (NCVS). The NCVS
has several methodological weaknesses. NCVS screening questions disallow
counting one of the most common protective uses of guns, shopkeepers defending
against armed robbery and similar attacks. It 1s also clear that the NCVS
undercounts another of the most frequent protective uses of guns, the use of guns by
women to defend against domestic attacks on themselves and their chiidren. The
NCVS also undercounts the less frequent, but important, use of guns to repel rapists.

There are additional important sources of NCVS sampiing error. Even to
anonymous inquiry, many are unwilling to be forthcoming about their gun
ownership or their use of guns. Prudently, many survey respondents deny their
gun ownership to avoid becoming a target of theft. In somc urban jurisdictions, like
Washington DC, the mere ownership of certain guns (like handguns) is a “crime.”
Importantly, since the NCVS is a survey conducted by law enforcement, it is
unlikely that such urban respondents would incriminate themselves of the
victimless “crime” of requiring or using self-protection.

Kleck's data is recent, so it has yet to be published in the peer-reviewed literature.
Because sound public policy demands an honest measurement of the protective uses
of guns, Kleck has generously and publicly shared his data set Kleck himself has
noted and explained the ur.expectedly high percentage of defensive shootings
discovered by the survey. K'exk’s recent study is the largest scale methodologically
sound study to date and the - ample size of 5,000 (compared to the usual 1,000 for most
national surveys) allows a h gh level of confidence in the total protective uses of
guns. The infrequency of pri-lective shootings, however, makes any survey
susceptible to sample artefact - a difference of a few shootings in a sample of 5,000
can affect the estimated percentage of defensive shootings. It appears that the
unexpected 8% shooting rate in Kleck's recent study is such a sample artefact
Generally about 2% of defensive uses involves shooting the assailant and about
0.1% of defensive uses involve fatelly shooting the assailant.

ntil “perfect” data is available and in view of the flaws in the NCVS data, most
will trust the dozen studies that agree, rather than the aberrant NCVS study.

At his presentation tz the October 17, 1993 Handgun Epidemic Lowering Program
conference, Dr. Kellermann emotionally admitted his anti-gun bias, a bias
evident in the pattern of his “research.” mm;mmmmmmL
Dr. Kellermann continues to accy  t1axdo)

of course, raises guestions about tuc objectivity and reliability of his work,
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- . . .
mmmmmmmmm’. ity of b funded iall

It is also worth reviewing the inflated claims of the economic costs of guns.
Medicine’s politicians have exaggerated the human and economic costs of gun
violence and underestimated, even totally denied, the protective benefits of guns.
They look to tap honest, tax-paying gun owners for a new source of revenue, just as
inner-city hospitals have been hit with budgetary constraints.

The real cost of medical care for gun violence is approximately $1.5 billion per
yearll - less than 0.2% of America’s $800 billion annual health care costs. To
exaggerate the costs of gun violence, medicine's gun prohibitionists are fond of
including estimates of lost lifetime earnings!2 - assuming that “gang bangers”
and rapists would be as socially productive as teachers, factory workers, and other

good Americans - to generate the assorted, inconsistent, und inflated claims of $20,
$40, or $80 billion in “costs.”

In fact, it has been estimated that active criminals cost society untold human
suffering and an economic toll of as much as $400,000 per year while *on the street”
and $25,000 per year while incarcerated. 13 It has also been noted that about three-
fourths of gun death victims are invalved with drug trafficking or use.14.15
Though DIRPP deems any death is tragic, regardless of instrumentality, some
analysts have argued that the gun deaths of predators and misfits actually
represent a net savings to society in both huinan and economic terms.

6 Do you think that children should carry guns for their protection? Should they be
able to take guns to school?

No, but [ do not think that children’s safety should be threatened to the degree that
compels many children to believe that they should “carry guns for their

protection.” T believe that there are certain extraordinary situations where a person
normally not allowed access to firearms may use them to defend themselves. You
are aware of Senator Kohl's ainendnient to the Senate crime bill which specifies
when children can have access to firearms. One of these circumstunces is the use of
a firearin in the home for self-defense purposes.

I hope that Sen. Metzenbaum would not deny access to the safest and most effective
means of protection if a child is threatened with serious violence or unlawful force.
For instance, when a 14 year old girl who might be home alone when a rapist
attacks, she, like every human being, should be able to protect herself. This, of
course, assumes that she knows how to do so and, certainly, firearms safety
treining is readily available to children of this age group.

The U.S Bureau of Justice Statistics has shown that guns are the safest and most
effective means of protection for oneself or ones family.2 Defense with a gun
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Re: Requested supplemental testimony on S. 1882 page 19
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results in fewer injuries to the defender than resisting with less powerful means
and in fewer injuries than not resisting at all. The fact that guns are the safest and
— . most effective means of protection 1s particularly important to women, children, the
elderly, and the physically challenged - those most vulnerable to vicious
] predators. Th . fact that we have public policy reasons why we deny one of the
Fe mentioned groups, children, routine access to firearms does not mean that we must
lose all common sense and have the law deny them access in specific situations
where they are threatened.

7. Should manufacturers be required to add safety devices to guns in order to prevent
accidents? If not, why not?

The question should really be phrased with the word “more” included - “more safety
devices.” In fact, for liability and other reasons, most modern firearms are
manufactured with a variety of safety devices. It is likely that gun accidents would
INCREASE if even more safety devices were required on newly manufactured
guns.

A false sense of security would develop and a reliance upon a device rather than
- upon safe gun handling habits, would result. Those not properly trained in safe
) gun handling might assume that every gun would be “accident proof” when, in fact,
no such gun could be designed or manufactured and remain functional for the
purposes intended - whether self-protection or sport.

For example, S. 1882 proposes to make a gun inoperable by a child of less than 7
years of age. Such a policy would make such a gun also inoperable by some adults -
the frail, the elderly, and some small women. Making a trigger difficult to operate
also increases the chance that & gun will, in pulling a heavy trigger in self-defense
or the defense of one’s children, be thrown off target, increasing the chance of
missing the assailant and injuring innocent bystanders.

Gun safety is not a device, it is a mind-sct of safe handling practices that prevent
accidental injuries:

1. Treat every gun as if it is loaded

C 2. Never point a gun at anyone or anything unless you intend to shoot that
R object or person.

3. Keep your finger off the trigger until you are on target

: Additionally it is a much simpler proposition to teach those simple rules, than it
. would be to educate 120 million gun-owning Americans to the intricaries of the
different safeties and chamber-loaded indicators required by the endless variety of

S manufactured firearns. Because guns ure different, their safeties will be
_ different.

., It is much simpler to teach children:

1 Stop

J
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2. Don’t touch
3. Leave the area

4. Tell an adult

These safety instructions are fool-proof and simpler than attempting to teach Y
children about an endless variety of confusing devices. These simple rules are the

entire substance of the NRA's Eddie Eagle safety program. The model of gun

safety training for children.

8. Do you think that people have the right to have any gun for their pro‘ection? 4

Yes, but a distinction needs to be drawn between ownership and the regulatory
pathway to ownership. This discussion is also pertinent to question (9) following.
True military arms like fully automatic weapons and destructive devices are
already heavily regulated by the National Firearms Act of 1934 (NFA).

For all small arms, including weapons known by the misnomer “assault
weapons,” checks of the type discussed in my response to question (1) are
appropriate. I need not repeat that discusswn here.

DIRPP’s general approach on this issue is extensively discussed in my articles:

Suter E. “Assault Weapons' Revisited — An Analysis of the AMA Report”
Journal of the Medical Association of Georgia, May 1994,

Suter E, Morgan R, Cottrol R, and Kates DB. “The Right to Keep and Bear
Arms — A Primer for Physicians” Journal of the Medical Association of
Georgia, June 1994.

A manuscript of those articles are enclosed for inclasion as part of this testimony.

The responsihle ownership of any kind of fircarm causes no social il and leaves
no victims. Guns' protective uses overwhelmingly outweigh criminal gun use and
accidental gun injury. Whether one uses a human or economic measure, the
protective benefits far outweigh the costs of guns to society. Guns offer a pet benefit
to society. Guns have benefits with which good Americans can LIVE'

9 Is there any firearm that you think people do not have the right to own”
No, but see also the comments I have made in response to question (8)

I have included a manuscript of my article “Assault weapons' Revisited — An
Analysis of the AMA Report™ for inclusion as part of this testimony. That article
discusses over two dozen studies that show “assault weapons” are a barely
measurahle fraction of crime guns. The article also exposes the false imagery
being uses to fuel the hysteria against “assault weapons,” the current bogeymen of
violence.
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The Journal of the American Medical Association published an American Medical
Association (AMA) position paper on military “look alike” guns, the buzzword
named “assault weapons.” That position paper was based on a single flawed study
of gun traces. Since gun trace data are nok representative and are ok an accurate
sample of crime guns, the Congressional Research Service (CRS), the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (BATF), and the Federal Bureau of Investigation
(FBD) have explained that gun TRACE data cannot be used for statistical purposes,
and therefore cannot be used for developing sound public policy.

In fact, over two dozen studies ignored by the AMA show that these “assault
weapons” represent a barely measurable fraction of crime guns. In the worst areas
of drug and violent crime, so-called “assault weapons® represent from zero to 3% of
crinie guns. Best current evidence suggests that, overall, these false symbols of
violence represent a minuscule fraction of American crime guns; nothing like the
nightmare suggested by the imagery of gun prohibitionists.

The editor of the New England Journal of Medicine has stated in print that he
needs no data because he finds these guns abhorrent. He describes all guns'
benefits as “intangible” though there the 2.5 million good Amercans protected by
guns annually would disagree with him, including the good citizens and
shopkeepers who used these *black guns” to protect themselves, their families, and
their livelihoods from gang and mob violence in the Los Angeles Riots, Hurricane
Hugo, and Hurricane Andrew. As this subcommittee has heard , good citizens use
these guns for protection of themselves and their children.

It is this kind of “science” that allows the AMA and even members of Congress to
cite a single flawed study in the face of over two dozen contradicting studies. We
are pummeled incessantly by flawed studies and sensationalized imagery. Each
rare “assault weapon” tragedy is newsworthy for months precisely because such
incidents are rare.

Do people have the right to own an unlimited number of firearms?

Yes, and ammunition as well. There are already regulatory checks in place. For
instance, gun dealers, under current law, must report multiple handgun sales to
the BATF. This caiis BATF attention to the possibility of interstate gun trafficking
without interfering with the civil liberties of good citizens.

Contrast this approach with the S. 1882 provision limiting a law-abiding citizen to
one handgun purchase per month when that citizen has already cleared a
background check. The notion that such a one-gun-per-month limit will actually
affect criminals, reduce gun-related crime, or reduce gun trafficking is
completely unfounded. In fact, the S. 1882 provisions will only impede the ability of
good citizens to exercise their own freedoms.

Are you a member of the National Rifle Association?

Yes, I am & member of the oldest {123 years) and largest (3.4 imilion dues-paving
members) civil rights group in America. Mere membership i this or any other
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Re. Requested supplemental testimor;, on S. 1882 page 22
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group has no nexus with the objective public policy implications of S. 1882 . except
perhaps in the ucs lmucmpting to determine whether or not my views

ally correct,” rather than scientifically correct.
s
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TP ANSWERS G Dbt SOl oW, fE sl B sk iel M 1REAYNY AN NOD O BELYS

PICEIVES NG P

SEHATOR SETENBAL PHE_HEARING ON THE

S VAN Y PHEN_TERET:
1. WHEN PROPLE LIFE YoU ADVOCATE THAT “ANUFACTURERS SHOULD BE
REQUIRED TG AL CERTALIN CH11L,D=-PRIOF AND OTHER SAFETY DEVICES TO
GUNS, MANUFACTURERS DISMISS SUCH PRCOPOSALS AS IGNORING THE
RESPONS 18I LITY THAT EACH PURCHASER MUST BEAR FOR HIS OWN SAFETY.
FOR EXAMPLE, TIE COMMURTICATIONS DIRECTOR FOR SMITH & WESSON
RECENTLY SA1D: “IF PEOPLE ARE GUING TO BUY A WEAPON, THEY HAVE TO
LEARN TO TAKE RESPONSIBILITY FOR IT." WHAT DO YOU THINK QF THE
MANUFACTURERS® POSITION? WHY DO YOU THINK MANUFACTURERS HAVE
CHOSEN NOT 'O XAKE HANDGUNS SAFER?

2. GUN MANUFACTURERS ALSC CLATM THAT GUNS DO NOT INCREASE THE
PTHREAT OF TNJURY AN ACTUALLY ARE AN ASSET TO POTENTIAL CRIME
VICTIMS.  HOW DO YOU RESPOND TO THOSE ILATMS?

3. {iow CAN ADDRESSING THE CRISIS OF GUN VIOLENCE AS A PUBLIC
HEALTH PROBLEM HELP 1N SOIVING THE PROBLEM?

02 AT_TIE_HEARING ON FHE

FOR RYCHARD  ABORN:

Gl wOULD MR GUN VICGLERCE PREVENTTON ACT BE IN
e

Vorb RSP e Te CLADTYY ST MEASURES LIEE LICENSTRG
URIEALH WEAPONS THAT POSE SPECTAL DANGER TO SOCIETY
FUSH CPHE GUN CFRADE INTO THE BLACK MARRET?

{ FEOPLE POINT OUT THAT WE CAH NEVER PREVENT CRAZY PFROPLE
FROY GETTIRG GUNS AND GOING ON A SHOOTING SPREE. HOW DO YOU
RESPORE TO THE CLAIMS BY SOME PEOPLE TUAT THEY SHOULD BE ABLE TO
CARRY A GUN WHEREVER THEY GO SO THAT THEY CAN PROTECT THEMSELVES
ANIY O'FHERS TN CASE THEY ARE CAUGHT IN SUCH A SITUATION?

4. MANY PHOPLE ARE CONCERNED ABOUT THE FACT THAT THE SAFETY OF
GUNS 18 COMPLETELY UNREGULATED. “60 MINUTES" DID A PIECE ON
DEFECTIVE GUNS AND ACCIDENTAL SHOOTTNGS THIS PAST SUNDAY. ONE OF
PHE PRIMARY GOALS OF THIS LEGISLATION 1S TO IMPROVE GUN SAFETY,
TO REQUIRE GUN MANUFACTURERS TO MAKE SAFER GUNS. WHY HAVEN'T
HANUFACTURERS REEN MORE DILIGENT ABOUE PRODUCING SAFER GUNS?

. HOW IPORTANT 18 IT THAT COMPREHENSIVE FIREARM LEGTSLATION
BE CONSTDERED AT THE NATIONAL LEVEL?

f. THE CENTPER PO PREVENT HANDGUN VIOLENCE IIAS PARTICIPATED IN A
HUMBER OF LEGAL SUITS INVOLVING THE ILLEGAL OR NEGLIGENT SALE OF
GUNS PO FELONS AND OPHER PROHIBITED BUYERS BY LICENSED GUN
DEALERS. DG YOU SEE ANY NEED FOR FEDERAL LEGISLATION WITH
RESPECT TO %1 1 TABTLTTY OF GUN DEALERS FOR DAMAGES RESUITTNG
FROY WIGLAT CONS OF FHE FEDERAL FIREARMS LAWS?
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ADDITIONAL _QUESTIONS BY SENATQOR_METZENBAUM AT THE HEARING ON THE
GUN _VIOLENCE PREVENTION ACT, ON 3/23/94 FOR DR. TIM WHEELER:

1. YOU HAVE ARGUED THAT PEOPLE HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEFEND
THEMSELVES AGAINST CRIMINALS. DO ALL PEOPLE HAVE THIS RIGHT? DO

E THAT FLEIONS, MENTALLY DEFECTIVES, AND “HOSE PRONE TO
VTOLENCE SHOULD NOT HAVE GUNS? IF SO, HOW DO YOU THINK SUCH
PERSONS SHOULD BE PREVENTED FROM BUYING GUNS?

2. YOU APPEAR TO DISAGREE WITH DR. KELLERMAN AND OTHERS ABOUT
THi. CONNECTION BEETWEEN GUN ACCIDENTS AND GUNS IN THE HOME. OTHER
THAN YOUR OWN OPINION, WHAT EMPIRICAL, PEER-REVIEWED STUDIES HAVE

YOU PUBLTSHED IN INDEPENDENT MEDICAL JOURNALS THAT SUPPORT YOUR
OPINION?

L4

2. PLEASE LIST ALL OF YOUR PUBLISHED ARTICLES.

4. HOW MANY MEMBERS ARE IN THE ORGANIZATION *DOCTORS FOR
RESPONSIBLE GUN OWNERSHIP“? WHO CONSTITUTES THE ORGANIZATION’S
LEADERSHIP? WHEN WAS THE ORGANIZATION FORMED? HOW WERE YOU
CHGSEN CHAIR? HAVE YOU EVER HAD AN AGREEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING
WITH ANY INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY REGARDING PAYMENT OR REIMBURSEMENT
OF YOUR EXPENSES IN CONNECTION WITH APPEARING BEFORE THIS
SUBCOMMITTEE? IF SO, WITH WHOM?

[

5. YOUR TESTIMONY REFERS TO DR. GARY KLECK'’S FINDING THAT THERE
ARE 2.4 MILLION DEFENSIVE GUN USES PER YEAR. HAVE YOU PERFORMED
ANY INDEPENDENT RESEARCH THAT CONFIRMS THIS FIGURE? IF S0,
PLYASE EXPLAIN SUCH RESEARCH.

6. DO YOU THINK THAT CHILDREN SHOULD CARRY GUNS FOR THEIR
PROTECTION?  SHOULD THEY BE ABLE TO TAKE GUNS TO SCHOOL?

7. SHOULD MANUFACTURERS BE REQUIRED TO ADD SAFETY DEVICES TO
GUNS IN ORDER TO PREVENT ACCIDENTS? IF NOT, WHY NOT?

R. M} YOU THINK PROPLFE IAVE THE RIGHT TO HAVE ANY GUN FOR THEIR
PROTECTION?

. 7S THERE ANY FIREARM THAT YOU THINK PEOPLE DO NOT HAVE THE
RICHT 0O OWN?

NS FECPLE HAVE THE RIGHT TO OWN AN UNLIMITED LUMRER OF
PIKEARNS
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ADDITIONAL SUBMISSIONS FOR THE RECORD

PAGE
$TH STORY of Level 1 printed in FULL format .

Copyr:ght 1994 The Courier-Journal
The Courier-Journal

l‘ April 10, 1994, Sunday - METRO Edition
GECTION: NEWS; Pg. 11D
LENSTH: 347 words

t lE!::\DL‘!!IF: DAKCER KiLLED WHEN HANDGUN ACCIDENTALLY DISCHARGES

BYTLE CHRISTI POOLE

KENTUCKY; INDIANA; FATALT?Y; SHOOTING; ACCIDENT WEAPGRE

BOOY
A 2Teyear-old Hardinsburg, Ind., woman died varly yesterday aftoer a gun sl
¢ earrying  accidentally drecharged Friday night at a Shepherdsville bar,

pelree saud.

Martha Ana Winkle Lee arrived for her job as a dancer at Shanes Lounge in
enepherdsville akout 11 p.m. Friday. She threw her leather vest oa a table an
Aqressyng reom. The | 38-caliber derringer in a vest pocket discharged, hitting
her in the <hest, said shepherdsville Police Chief Joe Rogers.

Lew was taken by ambulance to Umiversity of Louisville Hospital, where she
diyed about 1:30 a.m. during surgery, said Jofferson County Deputy Coroner Sam

dcaklaey.

N one else was in the dressing room when the gun discharged, said Rogers,
and ne foul play is suspected. The gun was still in the vest pocket after it
Jischarged.

Lee was a member of the National Rafle Association and the Kentucky Bikers
Associration.

Survivors include her hushand, Lowell Lee; her mether, Margaret A. flamilton;
her father, Charles P. Winkle; two sisters, Patricia G. Oshner of Sutton, Netb.,
and Arancda L. Winkle; and five brotaers, Michael McbDaniel of Sellersburg, Ind ,
and Charles T., Joseph A., James F. and Danic! P. Winkle.

The tuneral will be at 1 p.m. Tuesday at Arch L. Heady Southern Funeral Hore,
3601 Taylor Blvd., with burial in Pennsylvania Run Cemetery. visitaticn will be
from 6 to 9 p.m. today, 1 to 9 p.m. LomOrrow and afrer 9 a.m. Tuesday.

LANGUAGE: 1. 1lish
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UAGE
134TH STORY of fevel 1| printed in FULL format.

Copyright 1992 Toronte hLtar NHewspapers, Ltd.
The Toronto Star

December 8, 19931, Wednesday, FINAL EDITION
NEWS; Pg. A29
J1B werds
Sentence suspended an teen’s fatal qun actident
BY WEFNDY DARRQOCH TORCNYO STAR
nhrYe

A young man who accidentally ki1lloed his best friend as a teehayer was Qives
a ruspended gentence yesterday.

Juson fall was 18 when he end Cedric Aknthonv King, 19, were piayinyg with a
ew .27-calibre rafle in the basement of Ball’s drion park Rd. home in
cexbornugh.

The gun accidentally went off, with the shot ripping through Xing’s temple.

Ball ran screaming up the stairs for his father and out into the cold night
in his shorts and a T-shirt wavirng frantically for the ambulance attendants, t'

Ontario Court, gencral division, jury was told.

-I‘ve shot him in the head. I didn‘'t mean to do jt. Oh, my God, I‘ve killed
my {riend, - Hsil was quoted as saying when police arrived after the shooting
Jan. 5, 1991,

He was fiantic, cfficers testaticed.

hing ¢ Prudentaal Dr., scarborvagh, died after 36 hours in Centenary
Hospital.

Hall's tacher Thomas, 46, told court his son was ercited abeut the ritie an:
wanted to buy 1t {rom a triend.

Ball, now 21, pleaded not quilty to manslaughter. At first, the jury ot sewe:
women and five men told Mr. Justice Peter Grossi chat they could not reach a
unanimous decision in the case.

atter being urged to try a little harder so both families cculd put the
tragedy behind them, they returned with a verdict of guilty as charged.

LANGUAGE: ENCLISH
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196TH STORY u»¢ Leve! 1 prainted in FULL {nrma:t

Copyright 1993 The Chronicle Publishing (o.

3
The San Francisco Chronicle

OCTOBER 23, 1993, SATURCAY, FINAL EDITION
SECTION: NEWS; Pg. A2l; BAY AREA REPCRT
LENSTH: 1{]1 words

HEAD! : EAST BAY
Apparent  Gun Accident  Fiils Woman on Couch
BGLY:
Blackhawk -- A woman described as a ‘’caring grandmother ‘ was k:illed as s!
sat or her couch when her husband's gun accidentally discharged, authorit:e:s
said.

Carc! Lamantia, 51, died shortly before midnight Wednesday, said Contra Tos-
County sheriff*s Sergeant Richard Weckel.

Homicide 1nvestigators determined that the shooting was accidental, he sai=n

Lorenzio Lamantia was sitting on the couch with his wife taking apart a
20-gauge shotygun when it went off, Weckel said.

He said that the case wus submi<ted to the district attorney’'s offijice but
that charges are unlikely.
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